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TECHNOLOCGY ONE UK LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEFTEMBER 2023

The directors present their Strategic Report on the Company for the year ended 30 September 2023.
Principal activities

The principal activities of Technology One UK Limited are the marketing, sales, implementation and support of
fully integrated enterprise business software solutions.

Business review

The loss before tax for the year amounted to £131,000 (2022 profit of £4,036,000). The directors do not
recommend the payment of any dividends (2022: Mil).

At 30 September 2023 the Company had net assets of £4,548,000 (2022: £4,615,000) and had net current
liabilities of £503,000 (2022: net current assels of £1,221,000).

Key performance indicators

The Company's management consider the key performance indicator for the Company to be growth of revenue
from the sale of software as a service (SaaS). This is monitored on a regular basis, with the Company achieving
a 43% increase in the current year (2022: 14%). The directors regard SaaS revenue as a superior revenue
stream as it is recurring, contracted and predictable.

Another key non-financial performance indicator for the Company is customer retention and no concerns were
noted in the current peried. The directors recognise that customer retention is essential in maintaining a strong
revenue and cash pipeline over the medium to long term, considering that the Company provides software
products as a service.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The following is a summary of material business risks that could adversely affect our financial performance and
growth potential in future years and how we propose to mitigate such risks.

Russia-Ukraine conflict
The current conflict in the Ukraine has no impact on the Company,

Credit and cash flow risks

The Company's policies are aimed at minimising credit risk. The Company trades only with recognised,
creditworthy third parties. It is the Company's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures.

This report was approved by the board on 12th of March 2024 and signed on its behalf

Cale Bonnett /;g
Cale Bennett (Mar 12, 2524 11124 GMT~1G,
Cale Bennett Stephen Kennedy
Director Director
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TECHNOLOGY ONE UK LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2023,

Results and dividends
The loss for the year, after taxation, amounted to £67,000 {2022: profit £4,035,000).

The directors have not declared any dividends during the year ended 30 September 2023 {2022: Nil). The
directors do not recomimend a final dividend (2022: Nil).

Directors
The directors who served during the year were:

Edward Chung

Cale Bennett (appointed 1 August 2023)
Stephen Kennedy

Paul Jobbins (resigned 17 July 2023)

Directors' Responsihilities Statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directars to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law, including FRS 101
‘Reduced Disclosure Framework'). Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs and profit or loss of the
Company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
0 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

Company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and enable them tc ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2008. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information

included on the Company's website. Legisiation in the United Kingdorm governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Review of operations

Refer to the Business review in the Strategic Report for review of operations,
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TECHNOLOGY ONE UK LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

Event after the reporting date

No matter or circumstance has arose since 30 September 2023 that has significantly affected, or may
significantly affect the Company's operations, the results of those operations, or the Company's state of affairs in
future financial years.

Corporate governance

The Company benefits from the corporate governance arrangements established by its parent company
Technology One Limited, an entity listed on the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX), full details of which can
be found in Technology Cne Limited's own Annual Report, together with more detailed corporate governance
disclosures. The board has overall responsibility for the Company's system of internal control and for reviewing
the effectiveness of these systems. It is responsible for ensuring the Company meets its obligations to its
shareholders and meets from time to time to facilitate this.

Likely future developments

The directars intend to continue to grow the business of the Company in line with Technology One Limited's
stated ambition for the UK business.

Research and development

The Company is a reseller of the integrated enterprise business software solutions developed by the parent
entity, Technology One Limited, therefore no research or development was performed by the Company.

Charitable and political donations
No charitable or political donations were made during the year.

Indemnity of directors

The Company has indemnified the directors of the Company for costs incurred, in their capacity as a director, for
which they may be held personally liable, except where there is a lack of good faith.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they believe that the
Company can continue to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due. The Company has the continuing financial
support of its parent company, Technology One Limited for a period of at least twelve months from the date of
approval of the financial statements.

The directors have made detailed enquiries, including confirmation of the strong liquidity position announced by
Technology One Limited and review of the latest annual report released on 08 December 2023. After making
these detailed enquiries, the directors are confident that Technology One Limited has sufficient resources to
enable it to provide financial support.

The Company operates within the software service industry as part of the Technology One group. The directors
believe support will continue to be forthcoming from the parent company for a period of at least twelve months
from the date of approval of the financial statements, confirmed by a parent support letter, and so the financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,
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TECHNOLOGY ONE UK LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT {(CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

Disclosure of information to auditors

The directors confirm that:

. so far as each director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors
are unaware; and
. the directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make

themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are
aware of that infarmation.

Auditors

The auditors, Grant Thornton UK LLP, will be proposed for reappointment in accordance with section 485 of the
Companies Act 2006.

This report was approved by the board on 12th March 2024 and signed on its behalf.

Calo Bonmott 7
Cale Bennett Stephen Kennedy
Director Director
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Q GrantThornton

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TECHNOLOGY ONE UK LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Technology One UK Limited (the 'Company") for the year ended 30
September 2023, which comprise the Income Statement, the Statement of Financial Pesition, the Statement of
Changes in Equity and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’
{United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion;

. the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 September
2023 and of its loss for the year then ended;

. the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice; and

. the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reguirements of the Companies Act
2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internaticnal Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs {UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements,
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to medify the auditor's opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

In our evaluation of the directors' conclusions, we considered the inherent risks associated with the Company's
business model including effects arising from macro-economic uncertainties such as the war in Ukraine and the
inflationary economic environment, we assessed and challenged the reasonableness of estimates made by the
directors and the related disclosures and analysed how those risks might affect the Company's financial
resources or ability to continue operations over the going concern period.
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Q Grant Thornton

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TECHNOLOGY ONE UK LIMITED
{CONTINUED)

in auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the financial
statements and our Auditors’ Report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained
within the Annual Report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the cther information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we
are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing te report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

{n our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors' Repart for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
. the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report have been prepared in accordance with appiicable legal

requirements.
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Q GrantThornton

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TECHNOLOGY ONE UK LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

Matter on which we are required to report under the Companies Act 2006

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Directors' Report,
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have ncthing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to repart to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are nct made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a frue and fair view, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease cperations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Q Grant Thornton

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TECHNOLOGY ONE UK LIMITED
{CONTINUED)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' Report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs {UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.

[rreguiarities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below:

. We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Company.
We determined that the following laws and regulations were most significant: Companies Act 2008,
Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’. In addition, we concluded that there
are certain significant laws and regulations that may have an effect on the determination of the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements and those laws and regulations relating to taxation laws;

. We understood how the Company is complying with those legal and regulatory frameworks by making
enquiries of management;

. We assessed the susceptibility of the Company's financial statements to material misstatement, including
how fraud might cccur, by evaluating management's incentives and cpportunities for manipulation of the
financial statements, This included the evaluation of the risk of management override of controls and
through manipulation of accounting estimates. Audit procedures perfermed included:

- identifying and assessing the design effectiveness of controls that management has in place to
prevent and detect fraud;

- identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted with unusual account
combinations; and

- challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant accounting
estimates.

. These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements
were free from fraud or error. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than
the risk of not defecting one resulting from error and detecting irreguiarities that resuit from fraud is
inherently more difficult than detecting those that resuit from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional misrepresentations. Also, the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations is from events and transactions reflected in the financial statements,
the less likely we would become aware of it;
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Q GrantThornton

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TECHNOLOGY ONE UK LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

. The engagement partner's assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and
capabilities of the engagement team included consideration of the engagement team'’s:

- understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a similar nature and
complexity through appropriate training and participation;
- knowledge of the industry in which the client operates; and

- understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the entity including the provisions
of the applicable legislation, the regulators rules and related guidance, including guidance issued by
relevant authorities that interprets those rules, the applicable statutory provisions.

. We communicated relevant laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team
members, and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations
throughout the audit,

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financiai
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditors' Report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' Report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsihility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this repaort, or for the opinions we have formed.

Tmotry Taylos Mar 12, 2024 02,22 GMTY
Timothy Taylor FCA
Senior Statutory Auditor
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Chelmsford
Date: 12 March 2024
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TECHNOLOGY ONE UK LIMITED

INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Administrative expenses
Other expenses

Other income

Other gains

Operating profit

Finance costs

{Loss)/profit before income tax

Income tax benefit{{expense)

(Loss)/profit for the year

All amounts relate to continuing operations.

Note

12

2023 2022
£000 £000
11,232 8,040
(1,798) (826)
9,434 7,214
(13,252) (7,984)
(308) (98}
4,388 1,107
2 4,062

264 4,301
(395) (265)
(131) 4,036
64 (1)
(67) 4,035

There is no other comprehensive income or expense during the year ended 30 September 2023 and 30
September 2022 other than the ioss attributable to the members of the Company of £67,000 (2022: profit

£4,035,000).

The accompanying notes on pages 14 to 37 form an integral part of these financial siatements.
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TECHNOLOGY ONE UK LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER: (05234413

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

Non-current assets

Investments

Plant, property and equipment
Right-oi-use assets

Trade and other receivables
Contract assets

Contract acquisition costs
Deferred tax asset

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Contract assets

Contract acquisition costs
Current tax assets

Amounts from related parties

Total current assets

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Deferred revenue
Lease liability

Total current liabilities
Net current (liabilities)/assets
Total assets [ess current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Lease liability
Amounts due to related parties

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

Note

23
15
21
13
14
16
22

17
13
14
16

20

18
19
21

21
20

2023 2022
£000 £000
10,199 10,199
684 762
1,765 2,085
119 127
119 230
1,357 477
108 1
14,351 13,881
599 1,405
4,746 2,403
470 510
480 218
70 189
1,777 2,203
8,142 6,928
(2,492) (1,426)
(5,795) (4,003)
(358) (278)
(8,645) (5,707)
(503) 1,221
13,848 15,102
{1,716) (2,047)
(7,584) (8,440)
(9,300) (10,487)
4,548 4,615
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TECHNOLOGY ONE UK LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER:05234413

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

2023 2022
£000 £000
Equity
Contributed equity 24 - -
Retained earnings 26 4,548 4,615
Total equity 4,548 4,615

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its behalf on

12th of March 2024,

T4

_Cale Bonnott _

Cale Bennett
Director

The notes on pages 14 to 37 form part of these financial statements,
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TECHNOLOGY ONE UK LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER:05234413

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

Contributed Retained
equity earnings Total equity
£000 £000 £000
At 1 October 2021 - 580 580
Profit for the year - 4.035 4,035
Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - 4,035 4,035
At 1 October 2022 - 4,615 4,615
Loss for the year - (67) {(67)
Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (67) (67)
4,548 4,548

At 30 September 2023 -

The notes on pages 14 to 37 form part of these financial statements.
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TECHNOL OGY ONE UK LIM{ITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

General information

Technology One UK Limited is a private company, limited by shares and incorporated in England and
Wales. Its registered head office is located at Fourth Floor Abbots House, Abbey Street, Reading,
Berkshire, RG1 3BD.

Accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of Technology One UK Limited ("the Company") were authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 12th March 2024. The Statement of Financial
Position was signed on the board's behalf by Mr Cale Bennett. The Company is a private company,
limited by shares incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales.

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS 101) and in accordance with the historical cost convention and

applicable accounting standards.

The Company's financial statements are presented in Sterling and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand pounds (£000) except when otherwise indicated. The principal accounting policies
adopted by the Company are set out further in this note,

The Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101:

a. the requirements of paragraphs 45(b) and 46 to 52 of IFRS 2 Share based Payment,
hecause the share based payment arrangement concerns the instruments of another group
entity;

b. the requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures;

the requirements of paragraphs 91 to 99 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement;

the requirement in paragraph 38 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements to present

comparative information in respect of:

i. paragraph 79(a)(iv) of IAS 1;

it. paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment;

iii. paragraph 118(e) of IAS 38 Intangible Assets,

e. the requirements of paragraphs 10(d), 10{f), . 16, 38A, 38B, 38C, 38D, 40A, 40B, 40C, 40D,

111 and 134 to 136 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

the requirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows;

the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in

Accounting Estimates and Errors;

the requirements of paragraph 17 and 18A of |AS 24 Related Party Disclosures;

the requirements in IAS 24 Related Parly Disclosures to disclose related party transactions

entered into between two or more members of a group, provided that any subsidiary which is

a party to the transaction is wholly owned by such a member, and

j. the requirements of paragraphs 130{f){ii), 130(f)(iii), 134(d) to 134(f) and 135(c) to 135(e} of
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

oo

> @

The directors have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis. At 30 September
2023, the Company had net assets of £4,548,000 (2022: £4,615,000) and a net current liability
position of £503,000 (2022: net current asset position of £1,221,000). The net current liability position
includes £5,795,000 (2022: net current asset position £4,003,000) in relation to deferred revenue for
services not yet delivered which do not constitute a cash obligation in the future.
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TECHNOLOGY ONE UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

2,

Accounting policies {continued)

21

2.2

Basis of preparation (continued)

The ultimate parent company has issued a letter of support to the Company stating that it will
continue to provide funding, as necessary for a period of at least twelve months from the date of
approval of the financial statements, in order for the Company to meet all of its operational and
capital requirements as they fall due. Please see further details in note 27. The direclors therefore
consider that the going concern basis of accounting remains appropriate.

Technology One UK Limited is exempt from the requirement to prepare consolidated Financial
Statements. Section 401 of the Companies Act 2006 exempts, subject to certain conditions, an
intermediate UK parent from the requirement to prepare consolidated financial statements where its
parent is not established under the law of an EEA state, as long as the Company and all of its
subsidiary undertakings are be included in consolidated accounts for a larger group drawn up to the
same date, or to an earlier date in the same financial year, by a parent undertaking (refer to note 29).

There were a number of narrow scope amendments to existing standards which were effective from
1 April 2022. None of these had an impact on the Company. Certain new accounting standards,
amendments to accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for 30 September 2023 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the
Company. These standards, amendments or interpretations are not expected to have a material
impact on the Company in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

These standards, amendments or interpretations include:

+ Amendments to IAS 1 - Classification of liabilities as current or non-current
Amendments to IAS 1 - Disclosure of accounting policies
Amendments to IAS 8 - Definition of accounting estimates
Amendments to |AS 16 - Lease liability in a sale and leaseback
Amendments to IAS 12 - Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a
single transaction [FRS 17 - Insurance contracts

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company is
expected to be entitled in exchange for transferring services to a customer. For each contract with a
customer the Company determines the transaction price based on the contract taking into account
estimates of variable consideration and the time value of money. Contracts are assessed fo
determine the performance obligations contracted for, and where there is more than one
performance obligation under the same contract value, the transaction price is allocated to the
separate performance obligations on the basis of the relative stand-aione selling price of each distinct
service to be delivered.

Variable consideration within the transaction price, if any, reflects concessions provided to the
customer such as discounts, rebates and refunds, any potential bonuses receivabie fram the
customer and any other contingent events. Such estimates are determined using either the ‘expected
valug' or 'most likely amount' method. The measurement of variable consideration is subject to a
constraining principle whereby revenue will only be recognised to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur. The
measurement constraint continues until the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resclved. Amounts received that are subject to the constraining principle are
recognised as a refund liability.
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TECHNOLOGY ONE UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

2, Accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Revenue recognition (continued)
The Company has the following key revenue categories:

1. Saa$s Fees

2. Annua) Licence fees
3. Consulting Services
4. Initial Licence Fees

The accounting policies for each of these categories has been set out below:

Revenue categories
1. Saa8s Fees

Revenue from term Saa$S contracts are recognised on a daily basis over the term of the contract
Included within this category is revenue from contracts for annual Saa$S licences as well as Platform
services associated with initial licence fees. The Company considers that SaaS licence contracts
represent a right to access the Company's licenced intellectual property and as such the performance
obligation is fulfilled over the contract term.

Payment terms in respect of SaaS Fees are typically annual within 14 to 30 days of invoice. Invoiced
amounts are reflected in trade receivables.

Unsatisfied performance obligations in respect of SaaS Fees received or receivable are recognised
as Deferred revenue in the Statement of Financial Position. Refer to note 19 for details of Deferred

revenue.

Costs incurred in obtaining the customer contract are expensed, unless they are incremental to
obtaining the contract and the Company expects to recover those costs, Costs that meet the criteria
for capitalisation will be amortised over the life of the contract that they relate to. The Company has
identified certain commission costs as meeting the criteria of directly related contract costs. These
costs are capitalised in the month in which they are incurred and amortised over an average contract
term of 5 years. The movement in the year and the closing balance of this asset is disclosed within
note 16 as 'contract acquisition costs'. This balance is presented as "confract acquisition costs' in the
Statement of Financial Position. The current year amortisation of contract acquisition assets is
recognised within the Administration Expense line on the Income Statement.

2. Annual licence fees

Annual Licence Fees are for the annual support and maintenance services provided to customers for
the perpetual licences and the subscription licences. The fees are recognised on a daily basis over
the term of the contract. The Company considers that Annual Licence Fees represent a right to
access the Company's perpetual and subscription licences and as such the performance obligation is

fulfilled over the contract term.

Payment terms in respect of Annual Licence Fees are typically annual within 14 to 30 days of invoice.
Invoiced amounts are reflected in trade receivables until paid.

Unsatisfied performance obligations in respect of Annual Licence fees are disclosed as Deferred
revenue in the Statement of Financial Position. Refer to note 19 for details of Deferred revenue.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEFTEMBER 2023

2.

Accounting policies {continued)

2.2

23

24

Revenue recognition {continued)
3. Consulting Services
Consulting services includes services for licenced software and project services revenue.

Revenue from these services is recognised as services are rendered, typically in accordance with the
achievement of contract milestones and/or hours expended.

4, Initial licence fees

Licence Fees includes perpetual licence fees that are recognised on provision of the software. The
Company considers that such contracts represent a right to use the Caompany's licenced intellectual
property and as such the performance obligation is fulfilled at the point in time at which the customer
receives the licence key.

Payment terms in respect of Initial Licence Fees are typically within 14 to 30 days of invoice. Invoiced
amounts are reflected in trade receivables.

5. Associated contract balances

Under IFRS 15, the timing of revenue recognition, customer invoicing and cash collections results in
lhe recognition of trade receivables, contract asset and deferred revenue (contract liability} on the
Company's Statement of Financial Position. At 30 September 2023, the Statement of Financia!
Position shows a net current liability balance of £0.5m (30 Sepfember 2022. net current asset
balance of £1.2m). As deferred revenue represents payments received or receivable in advance from
customers for SaaS Fees and Annual Licence Fees which will be recognised in future periods, and
not a future cash outflow, this balance deces not impact the Company's ability to meet its short-term
obligations as and when they fall due.

Marketing support fees

The Company's parent entity, Technology One Limited, has entered into an Advance Pricing
Agreement ('APA") with the Australian Taxation Office ("ATO'"), the Australian tax authority, which
covers all subsidiaries wholly owned by the parent. This APA is effective for the 5 year period
commencing on 1 October 2022 conciuding on 30 September 2027. As per this agreement, the
Company should achieve an annual return between 0.93% to 3.02% measured on Earnings Before
Interest, dividends, gains, non-operating items and Income Tax (EBIT) and if the margin is not met, a
compensating adjustment will be calculated. Any transfer pricing adjustments are recognised as
Marketing support fees which is included in the Other income line item in the Income Statement.

Fixed assets

Fixed assels are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful economic lives of the
assets as follows:

Life Method
Office furniture and equipment 3-11 years Straight line
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

2.

Accounting policies {continued)

25

2.6

2.7

Receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less expected loss provision. Trade receivables
are generally due for settlement within 14 to 30 days.

The Company uses the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses. The amount of the
expected credit loss is recognised in the Income Statement within administrative expenses.

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at
the Statement of Financial Position date where transactions or events that result in an cbligation to
pay more or a right to pay less tax in the future have occurred.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that the directors consider that it is more likely
than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying
timing differences can be deducted.

Deferred tax is measured on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
periods in which timing differences reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively

enacted at the Statement of Financial Position date.

Leased assets

IFRS 16 lLeases sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise most leases on the Statement of Financial

Position.

The Company's lease portfolio consists of property leases. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a range of different terms and conditions. Early termination options within
the leases are considered unlikely, as such the full lease term is used in accounting for the leases.

Lease contracts may contain both lease and non-lease compeonents. The Company allocates the
consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-

alone prices.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

2,

Accounting policies (continued)

Leased assets (continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of outstanding lease payments (including
those to be made under reasonably certain extension options), The payments used in this calculation
inctude the following;

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable

. variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date

. amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise
that option, and

. payments of penailties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company

exercising that option.

The lease payments above are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is
readily determinable. This is not the case for the Company's current leases. When the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable IFRS 16 requires the use of the incrementat borrowing
rate to calculate the present value of the lease payments. This rate is the rate of interest that a lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to purchase the right of use asset, over a similar
term and with a similar security, in similar economic environment.

The most appropriate rate to use as a starting point in determining the incremental borrowing rate
would be the interest rate incurred on existing borrowings. However, the Company does not have any
existing borrowings. In the absence of this the Company uses the swap curve with a corresponding
rating as the starting point in determining the incremental borrowing rate, In line with the accounting
standard the Company adjusts the swap curve rate for the term of the leases, the value of the leases
and the creditworthiness of the Company.

Once the lease liability has been recognised on the Statement of Financial Position the periodic lease
repayments are allocated between an interest and a principal element. The interest is charged to
profit or loss (included under finance costs) over the lease period so as ta produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the petiod in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment oceurs.

The carrying amounts are remeasured if there is a change in the following: future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or a rate used; residual guarantee; lease term; certainty of a
purchase option and termination penalties. When a lease liability is remeasured, an adjustment is
made to the corresponding right-of use asset, or to profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset is fully written down.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023

2. Accounting policies {continued)

2.8

29

Leased assets {continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is initially calculated as being equal to the lease liability and then adjusted for
the following:

. Lease payments made on or before the commencement date less any incentives
received

. Any initial direct costs, and

. An estimate of restoration costs,

This right-of-use asset is then depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment testing under IAS 36 Impairment of assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the Statement of Financial Position comprise cash at bank and in
hand and short- term deposits with an ariginal maturity of three months or less.

Investments

All investments are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration. Subsequently
investments are carried at cost less any impairment losses.

2.10 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade creditors and other amounts are carried at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the
entity. Payables to related parties are carried at the principal amount.

2.11 Foreign currency

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Sterling at rates
of exchange ruling at the Statement of Financial Position date. Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into Sterling at the average rate for the month in which the transaction occurs. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in the Income Statement.

2.12 Pensions and other post employment benefits

Contributions to defined contribution schemes are recognised in the Income Statement in the period
in which they become payable.
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Accounting policies (continued)

2.13 Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds lts recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value-in- use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.14 Finance costs
Finance costs are charged to profit or loss over the term of the debt using the effective interest

method so that the amount charged is at a constant rate on the carrying amount. Issue costs are
initially recognised as a reduction in the proceeds of the associated capital instrument.

2,15 Financial assets and liabilities

Financial instruments recognised in the Statement of Financial Position include; cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, contract assets and trade payables.

() Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities into the following measurement

categories;
. those to be measured at amortised cost {using the effective interest method) and;
. thase to be measured at fair value with changes through the profit or loss (FVPL).

Classification into these categories is based on an assessment of the Company's business model for
managing its financial instruments and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

(i)  Measurement

Amcrtised cost

Under this method the financial instrument is measured at the amount recognized at initial
recoghition minus principal repayments. Further adjustments to the carrying value of the financial
instrument will arise if there is a modification to the contractual cash flows creating a gain/loss in the
measurement or if there is no longer a reascnable expectation of recovery of a financial asset
resulting in a write off.
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2.

Accounting policies (continued)

2.15 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

EVPL
The financial instrument is measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in profit and

loss as they arise.
(i  Impairment

The Company recognises impairment losses on its financial assets using an expected credit losses
{ECL) model in line with [FRS 9. The ECL model essentially aims to calculate the assets’ credit risk. It
involves consideration of scenarios that would lead to default, calculating the shortfall between what
is contractually due and what would be received under each scenario and then multiplying the
shortfallfloss by the probability of the default situation occurring.

The Company has elacted to apply the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected credit loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract
assets, The Company has also made use of the practical expedient available for calculating expected
losses for short term receivables. This practical expedient involves using a "provision matrix" to
calculate the loss allowance. This matrix is based on historical default rates over the expected life of
the trade receivabtes and it is adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

A 6-month histarical default rate is applied to the trade receivables balance to calculate the expected
credit Joss. This appears as a provision against the trade receivables balance. Movements in this
provision are recognised as an expense in the Income Statement to the extent that the related
revenue has been recognised in the Income Statement. If a receivable balance is identified as being
unrecoverable it is written off against the allowance for expected credit losses.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company's accounting
policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Company makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

Critical judgement in applying the Company’s accounting policies

No critical judgements were made in the preparation of the financial statements.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements {continued)

Key accounting estimates and assumptions

i. Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

The annual depreciation charge for property, plant and equipment is sensitive to changes in the estimated
useful economic lives and residual values of the assets. The useful economic lives and residual values
are re-assessed annually. They are amended when necessary to reflect current estimates, based on
technological advancement, future investments, economic udtilisation and the physical condition of the
assets. See note 15 for the carrying amount of the property plant and equipment and note 2.4 for the
useful economic lives for each class of assets.

il. Lease term

The lease term is a significant component in the measurement of both the right-of-use asset and lease
liability. Judgement is exercised in determining whether there is reasonable certainty that an option to
extend the lease or purchase the underlying asset will be exercised, or an option to terminate the lease
will not be exercised, when ascertaining the periods to be included in the lease term. in determining the
lease term, all facts and circumstances that create an economical incentive to exercise an extension
option, or not to exercise a termination option, are considered at the lease commencement date. Factors
considered may include the importance of the asset to the Company's operations; comparison of terms
and conditions to prevailing market rates; incurrence of significant penalties; existence of significant
leasehold improvements; and the costs and disruption to replace the asset. The Company reassesses
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option, if
there is a significant event or significant change in circumstances.

iii. Incremental borrowing rate

Where the interest rate implicit in a lease cannot be readily determined, an incremental borrowing rate is
estimated to discount future lease payments to measure the present value of the lease liability at the lease
commencement date. Such a rate is based on what the Company estimates it would have to pay a third
party to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset, with
similar terms, security and economic environment.
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Revenue

Revenue, which is stated net of value added tax, is attributable to one continuing activity, the sale of, and

provision of support for, software.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Saas fees*

Annual licence fees*
Consulting services®
Initial licence fees**

Total revenue from contracts with customers

* Recognised over time / as services are rendered
** Recognised at a point in time

Qther income

Marketing support fees from Technology One Limited

Other gains

Fair value on remeasurement of contingent consideration
Foreign exchange (losses) / gains
Other revenue

2023 2022
£000 £000
6,370 4,445
351 212
4,485 3378
26 5
11,232 8 040
2023 2022
£000 £000
4,388 1,107
2023 2022
£000 £000
. 4,058
{3) 4

5 -
2 4,062
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Finance costs

interest on loans from related parties
Interest on lease liabilities

Operating profit

This is stated after charging:

Depreciation of owned fixed assets
Depreciation of right-of-use asseis

Auditors' remuneration

Auditors' remuneration - audit services

Non- audit services

Accounts production fee

2023 2022
£000 £600
237 183
158 82
395 265
2023 2022
£000 £000
157 79

320 -
2023 2022
£000 £000
43 49

2 -

Auditors' remuneration is in respect of the audit of the financial statements provided to the Company.
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10.

11.

Wages and salaries

2023 2022
£000 £000
Wages and salaries 9,303 5,105
Sacial security costs 1,129 749
Other post-retirement benefit costs 390 226

10,822 6,080

The average monthly number of employees, including the directors, during the year was as follows:

2023 2022

No. No.

Sales 23 17
Consulting 37 27
Research and development 40 20
Administration 6 3
106 &7

Directors’ remuneration

The directors of the Company are also directors of the parent company and fellow subsidiaries. The
directors received total remuneration for the year of £1,973,064 (2022: £1,848,393), all of which was paid
by the parent company. The directors do not believe that it is practical to apportion this amount between
their services as directors of the Company and their services as directors of the parent company's and
fellow subsidiary companies. The expense recorded in these financial statements relating to Directors’

Remuneration is £Nil (2022: £Nil).

The directors of the Company, as employees of the Technology One Limited group, are subject to the
following option arrangements provided by Technology One Limited.

The group provides benefits to certain employees in the form of share-based payment transactions,
whereby employees render services in exchange for rights over shares. The cost of share based payment
transactions with employees are measured by reference to fair value of the equity instruments at the date
at which they are granted. The cost of share-based payments is recognised, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, aver the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award (the
vesting period). No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest as a resuit of unfulfiled

service conditions.
The highest paid director received remuneration of £1,372,214 (2022: £1,279,079).

The value of the Company's contributions paid fo a defined contribution pension scheme in respect of the
highest paid director amounted to £Nil (2022: £NJi).
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12,

Income tax {benefit)/expense

2023 2022
£000 £000
Current tax:
UK corporation tax on profits for the year - 12
Adjustments in respect of prior year 43 -
Total current tax expense 43 12
Deferred tax
Originaticn and reversal of temporary differences (30) {11)
Adjustment in respect of prior year (77) -
Total deferred tax (107) {(11)
Tax (credit)expense on (loss)/profit on ordinary activities (64) 1

Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The tax assessed for the year is higher than (2022: Jower than) the standard rate of corporation tax in the
UK of 19% (2022: 19%). The differences are explained below:

2023 2022
£000 £000
{Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before tax {131) 4,036
{Loss)/profit on ordinary activities muitiplied by standard rate of corporation
tax in the UK of 19% (2022: 19%) {25) 767
Effects of:
Income not taxable for tax purposes - {(771)
Prior period adjustment (42) -
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 3 5
Tax (credit)/expense on (loss)/profit from ordinary activities (64) 1

Factors that may affect future tax charges

The Finance Act 2021 was substantively enacted in May 2021 and has increased the corporation tax rate
from 19% to 25% with effect from 1 April 2023 on profits over £250,000. The rate for small profits under
£50,000 will remain at 19%. When the Company's profits fall between £50,000 and £250,000, the lower
and upper limits, it will be able to claim an amount of marginal relief providing a gradual increase in
corporation tax rate. The deferred taxation balances have been measured using the rates expected to
apply in the reporting periods when the timing differences reverse.
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13.

Trade and other receivables

Current

Trade debtors - gross
Provision for expected credit loss

Trade debtors - net

Prepayments

Non-current

Prepayments

(2) Impaired trade receivables

Movements in expected credit Joss allowance:

Opening balance - 1 October

Increase in expected credit loss allowance recognised in profit and loss
during the year

Unused amounts reversed

Closing balance - 30 September

2023 2022
£000 £000
3,969 2,196
{(43) (25)
3,926 2,171
820 232
4,746 2,403
119 127
2023 2022
£000 £000
(25) (22)
(43) (25)
25 22
(43) (25)
]

The Company's normal trade credit term ranges from 15 to 45 days (2022: 15 fo 45 days). Other credit

terms are assessed and approved on a case-by-case basis.

The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk that may arise from exposures to a single

debtor or to groups of debtors.

There are debtors to the value of £196,000 (2022: £104,000) included in Trade Debtors that are

considered past due.

Amounts due from related parties do not bear interest and are repayable on demand.
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14,

Contract assets

Contract assels
Provision for expected credit loss

Provision for expected credit loss

Movements in the provision are as follows:

At 1 October

Increase in expected credit loss allowance recognised in profit and loss
during the year

Unused amounts reversed

At 30 September

2023 2022
£000 £000
592 741
(3) (1)
589 740
2023 2022
£000 £000
() (1)
@) (1)

1 1

(3) (1)

Contract assets as at 30 September 2023 is made up of £470,000 (2022: £510,000) held in current
assets and £119,000 (2022: 230,000) held in non-current assets in the Statement of Financial Position,
The current year portion of the balance is the portion that is expected to be invoiced in the next 12

months.
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185.

16.

Property, plant and equipment

Cost

At 1 October 2022
Additions
Disposals

At 30 September 2023
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 October 2022

Depreciation charge
Disposals

At 30 September 2023

Net book value

At 30 September 2023

At 30 September 2022

Contract acquisition costs

At 1 October
Additions
Amortisation

At 30 September

2023
£000
695

1,466
(324)

Office

furniture &
equipment

£000

1,403
79

M

1,481

641
167

(1

797

684

762

2022
£000

641
257
(203)

1,837

695

Contract acquisition costs as at 30 September 2023 is made up of £480,000 (2022: £218,000) held in
current assets and £1,357,000 (2022: £477,000) is the non-current portion of the contract acquisition
costs in the Statement of Financial Position. The current year portion of the balance will be amortised

over the next 12 months.
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17.

18.

19,

Cash and cash equivalents

2023 2022

£000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 599 1,405
Trade and other payables

2023 2022

£000 £000
Trade creditors 530 379
Other creditors - employee bonus 818 197
Accruals 336 4086
Other taxes and social security costs 8os 444

2,492 1,426

Trade creditors are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 40 day terms. Other creditors are

non-interest bearing.

Deferred revenue

2023
£000
Carrying amount at 1 Ociober 4,003
Carrying amount at 30 September 5,795
Revenue recognised from the opening balance 4,003

2022
£000

2,882
4,003

2,882

Deferred revenue represents payments received or receivable in advance from customers for SaaS Fees
and Annual Licence Fees which will be recognised as revenue in future periods, generally over the next
12 months. These amounts are a contract liability under IFRS 15. These amounts do not result in a future

cash outflow. The operating costs to deliver the services are not significant.
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20.

Amounts with related parties

Amounts from related parties

Receivables from related parties

Amounts due to related parties

Loan payable to related parties - non-current
Other payables to related parties - non-current

The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

2023 2022
£000 £000
1,777 2,203
6,199 6,978
1,385 1,462
7,684 8,440

An interest only agreement was signed post 30 September 2021 for an initial amount of £6,117,000 plus
further advances. The balance of the loan at 30 September 2023 is £6,199,000 (2022: £6,978 000). The
nature of the loan is non-current as it is not repayahle until 2031. The existence of this loan does not

impact the Company's ability to pay its debts when they are due.

The parent company has also issued a letter of support to the Company stating that it will continue to
provide funding, as necessary for a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the
financial statements, in order for the Company to meet all of its operational and capital requirements as

they fall dus. Please see further details in note 28,
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21,

Leases

Right-of-use assets

Year ended 30 September

Opening net bock amount
Additions
Depreciation charge

Closing net bock amount

At 30 September

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net haok amount

Lease liability

1 October

Opening liability
Additions
Payments
Interest expense

Closing Liability

Current
Non-current

Closing Liability

2023 2022
Property Property
£000 £000
2,085 45
- 2,245
(320) {205)
1,765 2,085
2,085 2,245
{320} {160)
1,765 2,085
2023 2022
£000 £000
2,325 30
- 2,245
{409) (32)
158 82
2,074 2,325
358 278
1,716 2,047
2,074 2,325
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21,

22,

Leases {continued)

The following are amounts recognised in profit or loss under IFRS 16:

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Interest expenses on lease liabilities

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

Cashflow from leases

Total cash outflow as a lessee

Deferred taxation

At beginning of year
Deferred tax credited in the Income Statement for the period

At end of year

2023 2022
£000 £000
320 205
168 82
478 287
2023 2022
£000 £000
409 32
2023 2022
£000 £000
1 {10)
107 11
108 1
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22,

23.

Deferred taxation (continued)

The deferred tax asset is made up as follows:

Accelerated capital allowances

The deferred tax included in the Statement of Financial Position is as follows:

Deferred tax liability
Deferred {ax asset

Net deferred tax asset/(liability)

Investments

Cost or valuation
At 1 October 2022

At 30 September 2023

Net book value

At 30 September 2023

At 30 September 2022

2023 2022
£000 £000
108 1
2023 2022
£000 £000
{113) (1)

221 2
108 1

fnvestment
in
subsidiary
£000
10,199
10,199
10,199
10,199
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23.

24.

25,

Investments {continued)
Subsidiary undertakings

The following were subsidiary undertakings of the Company:

Class of
Name Registered office shares Holding
Scientia Resource Management Limited Fourth Floor Abbots Ordinary 100%
House, Abbey Street,
Reading, Berkshire,
England, RG1 3BD
Scientia Limited* Fourth Floor Abbots Ordinary 100%
House, Abbey Street,
Reading, Berkshire,
England, RG1 38D
* Indirectly held subsidiary.
Share capital
2023 2022
£ £
Authorised, allotted, called up and fully paid
2 (2022: 2) ordinary shares of £1.00 each 2 2

There is a single class of ordinary shares. There are no restrictions on dividends and the repayment of
capital.

Reconciliation of movement in Shareholders' funds

2023 2022
£600 £000
Opening shareholders' funds/(deficit) 4,615 580
(Loss)/profit for the year (67) 4,035
Closing shareholders' funds 4,548 4,615
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26,

27,

28.

29.

30.

Reserves
Contributed equity

Contributed equity is the total par value of called up and fully paid shares.

Retfained earnings

Includes all current period profits and losses.

Support of controlling entity

The operations of Technofogy One UK Limited rely on the continued product and financial suppaort of
Technology Cne Limited, the parent entity of Technology One UK Limited. The directors of Technology
One Limited have resolved to provide financial and product support for a period of at least twelve months
from the date of approval of the financial statements should there be challenges with Technology One UK
Limited's ability to continue operating as a going concern and meet its debts as and when they fall due.

The directors have made detailed enquiries, including confirmation of the strong liquidity position
announced by Technology One Limited and review of the [atest annual report released on 08 December
2023, After making these detailed enguiries, the directors are confident that Technology One Limited has
sufficient resources to enable it to provide financial support.

Related parties

During the year the Company entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with other
related parties. Those transactions with diraectors are disclosed in note 11. The Company has taken
advantage of the exemptions provided by FRS 101 regarding disclosure of transactions entered into
between two or more members of the TechnologyOne group. Copies of these group accounts are
available from www. TechnologyOneCorp.com.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Technology One Limited, a company domiciled in Australia
and listed on the Australian Securities Exchange, the consolidated financial statements of which are

publicly available.

Ultimate party undertaking

The uitimate parent undertaking of the largest and smallest group of undertakings for which group
financial statements are drawn up and of which the Company is a member is Technology One Limited, a
company registered in Australia, which owns 100% of the issued share capital. Copies of these group
financial statements are available from www, TechnologyOneCarp.com.

Events after the reporting date

No matter or circumstance has arose since 30 September 2023 that has significantly affected, or may
significantly affect the Company's operations, the results of those operations, or the Company's state of

affairs in future financial years.

Page 37



technology

Ao U LULSG F1i4

COMPANIES HOUSE

Technology One Limited

ABN 84 010 487 180

e e L

Pt v S Ao and S T

for the year ended 30 September 2023




Contents

Results for announcement to the market 3
Directors’ Report 4
Independent Auditor's Declaration 16
Remuneration Report 17
_Corporc:te Governance Statement 43
Voluntary Tax Transparency Report 56
Financial Report 57
Consolidated income statement 58
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income 58
Consolidated statement of financial position 59
Censolidated statement of changes in equity 60
Consolidated statement of cash flows &1

Notes to the consolidated financial statements 62

Directors' Declaration 99
_lndependent Auditor's Report 100
Shareholder information 106
Corporate directory - Technelogy One Limited 107

2 TechnologyCne Annual Financial Report 2023



Appendix 4E

Results for announcement to the market

For the year ended 30 September 2023
(Compared to the year ended 30 September 2022)

2023 2022

{$'000) ($'c00)

Revenue from ordinary activities Up 17% t© 429,378 368,234

Profit from ordinary activities after tax attributable to members Up 16% to 102,876 88,843

Net profit for the peried attributable to members Up 16% 0w 102,876 88,843

Franked

Amounts amount per

per security security

Dividends (cents) (cents)
CURRENT PERIOD

Interim divicdiend 4.62 277

Finail dividend 190 714

Special dividend 3.00 1.80

PRIOR PERICD

nterim dividend 4.20 2.52

Finct dividend 10.82 6.49

Special dividend 200 1.20

The record date for determining entitlerments to the final dividend for the year ended 30 September 2023 is 1 December 2023.
There will be no conduit foreign Income paid on the final dividend. The payment date for the final dividend is 15 December 2023.

Profit for the ordinary activities after tax attributable to members
Breakdown of the revenue figures cbove

2023 2022

($'000} (3000}

Revenue - SqoS and continuing business Up 19% o 426,373 358,668
Revenue - Legacy licence business Down 69% to 2,993 9566
Revenue from ordinary activities 429,3
2023 2022

(cents} {cents)

Basic EPS 31.@ 27.51
Diluted EPS d .59 21.38
-Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period u;éd in the caleulation of the Basic EPS 324,422,823 322,953,789

NTA backing

2023 2022

{cents) {cents)

Net tangible asset backing per ordinary share 20.04 10.01

Compliance statement
The report is based on the consolidated financial report which has been audited,
Refer to the attached full financial repert for all other disclosures in respect of the Appendix 4E.

OM&

Pat C'Sullivan
Chair

Brisbane
21 November 2023

Making life simple for our community 3



Directors’ Report

Your Directors present their report on the consolidated entity {referred to hereafter as the Company or
the Group) consisting of Technology One Limited and the entities it controlled at the end of, or during, the

year ended 30 September 2023.

The following persons were Directors of Technology One Limited during the financial year and up to the date of this report;

4 TechnologyOne Annual Financial Report 2023

Pat
O'Sullivan

Appointed 2 March 2021,

Experience and expertise

Pat is a Chartered Acceuntant and has

40 years' experience working across < wide
range of industries both as an executive
and g non-executive director. His last
executive role was the Chief Operating
Officer and Finance Director of Nine
Entertainment Co Pty Limited, a position he
held for 6 years until June 2012 and prior to
that he was the Chief Financial Officer of
Optus for 5 years.

He is currently Chair of

Carsdles.com and Siteminder. His previous
ASX non-executive director roles include
Afterpay, iiNet, iSelect, APN Qutdoor,
iSentic and Marley Spoen.

Pat is a member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Ireland and Austrdlia. He is a
graduate of the Harvard Business School's
Advanced Management Program.

Special responsibilities
Board Chair

Interests in shares and options

39,779 ordinary shares held in
Technology Cne Limited.



Edward
Chung

Appointed 15 August 2023,

Experience and expertise

Edward has led TechnolegyCne through
its continued growth trajectory and
transformation into Australia’s leading
enterprise Software as a Service (Saa$)
business. With a passion for growth,
innovaticn, and TechnologyOne's people,
he led the business to become cne of
Australia's ASX 100 listed companies in
2023 and has long-term continued growth
in his sights for the future.

Appointed as CEQ in May 2017 ofter
mare than 10 years in senior executive
roles at TechnelogyOne, including one
and a half years as the company’s Chief
Operations Officer. From 2014, Edward
headed up TechnologyOne's products

John
Mactaggart

FAICD
Appointed 8 December 1999,

Experience and expertise

Mr Mactaggart's experience spans
industries such as agriculture, agri-tech,
manufacturing and software.

He co-founded the Australian Association
of Angel Investors Limited, is a co-founder
of Brisbane Angels and was the Australian
representative of the Werld Business
Angels Association. Mr Mactaggart played
an integral rele in the creation, funding,
and development of TechnologyOne and
remains a major sharehelder. John has
been a Fellow of the Australian Institute of
Company Directors since 1991.

and solutions division, including Research
and Development (R&D) where he led the
team that transitioned the business into
a fully SaaS-based organisation, Prior to
that he led the finance and corparate
services division and developed the
commercial frameworks to drive the
company's expansion.

Special responsibilities

Managing Director

Interests in shares and options

700,048 ordinary shares and 1,34C,002
options held in Technology One Limited.

Interests in shares and options

24,872,500 crdinary shares in Technology
One Limited held beneficially through

JL Mactaggart Holdings Pty Ltd. 30,000
ordinary shares in Technology Cne Limited
held via the Jontra trust.

Making life simple for our community §
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Richard
Anstey

FAICD, FAIM
Appointed 2 December 2005.

Experience and expertise

Mr Anstey’s career has spanned over
40 years. His first company, Tangent
Group Pty Ltd, established a strong
reputation for the develcpment of
software products and strategic
management consultancy for the
tanking and finance sector.

With the sale of Tangent, he then
co-founded InQbator/iQFunds in 2000,
an early-stage investment group focused
upon the technology, telecommunications
and life sciences sectors.

Through iQFunds and personally,

Mr Anstey has co-invested In more

thar 30 companies with the support of
Commenweaith Government programs,
Venture Capital Funds and both corporate
and personal investors. While being an
active Non-Executive Director of

Dr Jane
Andrews

GAICD, PhD
Appointed 22 February 2016.

Experience and expertise

Dr Andrews joined the Board in

2016, bringing more than 15 years
leadership experience in research
and inncvation-based organisations.

As a founder and investor in

numerous innovative companies,

Dr Andrews has extensive experience
in corporate strategy, entrepreneurship,
commercialisation, innovation, research
and development,

Dr Andrews is a Graduate of the Australion
Institute of Company Directors, helds o PhD
in Life Sciences, a Bachelor of Science

{First Class Honours) and a Graduate
Diploma in Applied Finance and Investrment.

his investments, Mr Anstey has added
value wherever appropriate to maximise
shareholder value and has also been
actively involved in the trade sale of
seven comganies to organisations in the
US, Europe and Australia.

Mr Anstey is a Fellow of the Australian
Institute of Company Directors.

Mr Anstey now continues his career in
venture capital and corporate advisory
roles as o founder of Q3460 Pty Ltd.

Interests in shares and options

20,000 ordinary shares in Technology
Cne Limited held beneficially through the
Anstey super fund.

Special responsibilities

Chair of the Remuneration Commitiee,
member of the Audit and Risk
Committee and the Nomination

and Govermnance Committee.

Interests in shares and options

30,600 crdinary shares held in
Technotogy One Limited,



Sharon
Doyle

B Laws (Hons), B iT {Dist), G Dip Bus Admin, FAICD

Appointed 28 February 2018.

Experience and expertise

Ms Doyle is the Executive Chair and
majority cwner of corporate advisory
firrn, InterFinancial Corporate Finance
Limited. She has successfully navigated
technolegy companies through the
challenges of steep global growth curves,
with a strong understanding of the
dynamics in Software as a Service (Saa$).

Ms Doyle's leadership of InterFinancial
has seen her develop a core practice
providing strategic advice for technology
and cther IP-rich, high-growth companies.
She also has extensive international
experience managing merger, acquisition
and private equity processes across

the technology industry. Ms Doyle was
previously Vice President at Mincom, one
of Australia’s most successful enterprise
software companies.

Clifford
Rosenberg

B8 Bus Sc {Hons), M Sc (Hons}
Appointed 27 February 2019,

Experience and expertise

Mr Rosenbkerg has more than 25 years'
experience leading change and innovation
in technology and media companies.

As the former Managing Director of Linkedin
for Australia, NZ and South-East Asia,

Mr. Rosenberg started the Australian office
in 2009 and oversaw the expansion of
Linkedin in Australiaa from 1 million members
in 2009 to more than 8 milion members in
2017. Previously, he was Managing Director
at Yahoo! Australia and New Zealand, and
pricr to that role he was the founder and
Managing Lirector of iTouch Australia NZ
where he grew the Australian office to

ene of the largest mobile content and
application providers in Australia.

Mr Rosenberg has more than ten years'
experience on the boards of publicly listed
companies. His directorships include AZB

Ms Doyle is a Non-Executive Director at
Autc & General. She holds a Bachelor of
Laws (Hons) and Bachelor of Information
Technology (Dist.) from the Queensiand
University of Technology, as weli as

a Graduate Diploma of Business
Administration from the University of
Queensland. She is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Special responsibilities

Member of the Audit and Risk Committee
and the Nomination and Governance
Committee.

Interests in shares and options

18,280 ordinary shares in Technology
Cne Limited.

Australia Limited and Bidcorp.

Cliff was also a Non-Executive Director
with Nearmap which was sold and
delisted in December 2022 as well as
Afterpay, which was acquired in January
2022. He holds o Bachelor of Business
Science (Hons) from the University of Cape
Town and a Masters of Science (Hons)
from the Universitat Ben Gurion Ba-Negev.

Special responsibilities

Chair of the Nomination and Governance
Committee and member of the
Remuneration Committee.

Interests in shares and options
27,533 ordinary shares held in Technology
One Limited held beneficially through
Clifro Pty Ltd ATF Cliffro Trust.

Making life simple for our community 7
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Peter
Ball

B Bus, CA
Appointed 2 March 2020.

Experience and expertise

Mr Ball is a Chartered Accountant

who has enjoyed a long career in the
profassicnal services sector spanning
nearly 40 years, initially in audit both
nationally and internationally, with the last
30 years in management consulting.

Mr Ball was a Partner with KPMG for

25 years providing a range of professional
services and advice to both public and
private sector organisations. He has also
held senior roles with KPMG including

the national leader of KPMG's Strategic
Pianning and Economic Development
service line and more recently as naticnal
partner responsible for the finance

and operations for KPMG's Government
Advisory Practice.

Most of Mr Ball's work involves providing
strategic, economic, commercial and
business improvement advice to enable
organisations to make fully informed
business decisions.

Ron
MclLean

Appointed 8 December 1999
Retired on 22 February 2023.

Experience and expertise

Mr Mclean has more than 40 years’
experience in the enterprise software
industry including holding Senior
Executive and Managing Director roles
in several international and Australian
software companies.

His involvement in the enterprise

software industry has included leading
and managing software development,
consulting and sales and marketing teams.

During his management consulting career
Mr Bail has worked across a number of
industries including tourism and leisure,
gaming and wagering, arts and spoerts,
and state and local governments.

Mr Ball has an entrepreneurial spirit

and has been involved with a number

of start-ups across a range of sectors
including property, education, gaming
and the pharmaceutical sector. He is also
actively involved in the community/not
for profit sector having been a Director of
Alzheimer's Queensland for over 10 years.

Special responsibilities

Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee and
member of the Remuneration Committee.

Interests in shares and options

21,200 ordinary shares held in Technolegy
One Limited held beneficially through the
Noosa Hill Super Fund.

Mr MclLean joined the Board as a
Nen-Executive Director in 1992. He was
appointed as the General Manager in
1994, Chief Operating Cfficer in 1999 and
was promoted to Chief Executive Officer
of Cperations in 2003,

Mr McLean retired from this role at
TechnologyOne on 15 July 2004

and retired as Non-Executive Director
on 22 February 2023,



Company Secretary

Stephen
Kennedy

B Bus, FGIA
Appointed 13 April 2017,

Mr Kennedy was appointed Company
Secretary on 13 April 2017 and has been
employed with TechnclogyOne since
January 2017,

Meetings of Directors Principal activities
Tre rumibers of meetings o the Company s Boarg of Directors
ond of cach Board Commi'ttee beld during the yoar onded

30 Sepiembar 2023, ard the numbeaers of meetings atierded by

The parcipal activity of Techrology One Limited he Company

during the financial yoar was the aevelopmeanrt, marketrg,
sales, implementat'on and support oF fully Imegrated enterpnse
Tor were: e fhie e
busiress seftware sciutiors, incluairg:

Full meetings Meetings of committees

f Directors "
@ Audit

{Board) o p. Nemination Remuneration Tecrrology Cre Corporate Performarce Managemant

Tectrology Ore Business Analyt'cs

Techrolegy Ore DXP Local Governrment
Teckrology Ore Crterprize Asset Maragemeant
Techrology Ore Enteroris

Techralogy Ore Erteronse !

Techrology Cne Erterprise Con

S Do o Tachnology Ore Firarcias

i Techrelogy One Homaon Resource and Fayrol:
T Techrology One Perfarmarce Plarnning
Technaiogy One Property o~d Rotirg

fechroiogy One Spotia

Technology Cne Strategic Asset Managament

Technoiogy One Student Maragemert
Technology Gne Supply Cran Maragemart

fechnology One Timetabling ard Scneduling

Whers a Director did rot attend oll meetings of tre Board o
reievirt committee, the number of meeatirgs “or woch the Directol
~as eligible to attend is shown in brackets. in sectiors where

o aask, the Dracton was not o member of that committoed.,

Mo o e oormpis o0 ot community @




L3 L4 H
DiV!dendS Strong balance sheet and Strong cashflow generation at
102% of NPAT — Vo returned cashfiow gereration 1o NPAT ratio
Cividends pa'd w0 members duning tee financial yeor were 08 oo

2023 2022
Ordinary shares ($'000Q) (s'000}

of approarmately 100%, cre year earlier than glanrad. With
zgnificart cash ard irvestmont hoidirgs of $223.3 miflon ana
~o debt, our holance sheet retaing “lex bility and stre~gth for

Finai on e : o i nNergonic growth in the ‘Liure,

These pornits are discussed (atar ir more dotail
Gw%-10% growth,
Srecic Profit After Tax of 102,51 up "9%, beatirg guicance of
Sneci ¢ < : - =
-~ O 1 . . 10%-15% growtn.
Total Anrual Recuning Reverue (ARRY o $392.9m, wip 23%
Net Reverusz Retortion INRR) of 119%. Above cur lorg-term
rarget of $15%.
Total Revenue' o 44141, up 19%:
Roverue from our S0as ard Recurring Susiness of 8320.7m,
L 22%.
Sxpenses of $315m, up 2%, .
Total dividends paid
Cash Flow Gereratior’ of 37046, up 367
. - Cash ard Investmerts of $223.3m, o 27%.
Review of operations
Or behalf of Tecrnology One Limited (TechrcloayCnel we are
pleasad to announce our fourteenth consacutive year of record
profin, recoerd reverucs, and record Saas fees. Cur Global Saas

Total Dividena of 19.52cps, ircuding o specal div
3.00ns, up 15%.
QED nvestment of ST12.0m befoce caoitalisation, Lp 21%.

- ) ] N woichis 25% of reverue,
ERP soiution iz meking [Te simple for our commu=ity.

Continuing strong performance

TechnoiogyOne has consistently delvered strorg rezuts

hsting on the ASX in 1999, Cur ability to deliver these results “or
20~ years is due to our clear vsion, stratedy, culture ard our
orgoing investmant ir R&D, which Fas beer validoted ir March a3

we entered the ASX 100 index

Highlights for the Year Results Summary

Profit before tax, up 16% - Seating guidarce set ic May 2023 of
10%-15% proft growth.

Total ARR up 23%

Adootior of the TechroiogyOre giobal SoaS ERP sciution

Total Annual Recurring Revenue {ARR} up 23% — Drver by the exceaded our expectorions, wih customor adapton divirg

o N - ool ARR te §3 ion Lo 23
sigrificart value proposition of our global SoaS ERP solution. ol ARF o 53929 mlicn. Lp 23%.

Net Revenue Retention {NRR} of 119%, up from 116% pep - Existing TecknolegyOne cortivues 1o 6o in the LoC s Govermment sectar,

R . LR e s oyer 25 s < i v o PnOre -y
customers continue to expard their use of our globa! Saas ERP where we closed over 25 megar deais in FY23 totaling mare thon

$113 m ortract value eque~thy, more h c i
solution 1o streamiling their operations $113 millon in cortract value. Conseguetly, mare tnan 300 council
customars now benefit fror our high-cuaity products in APAC. We

o, = v e et , .

UK ARR up 52% - Cur long-term investment . ihe UK contitues 1o cortirue 1o win clients from o larger corrpetitors, including
build momertum. the City of Parrametta’s digital rarsfermaton project, ora of

. p < rtwirs from Infor, and, ard FretLring CLsiomsar
Upgrade to medium-term guidance: now on track to surpass several excellert wirs from Infor, and, arother returrirg customer

$500 million ARR by FY25 - One year ear ier than plasred.

form Orocle. These Local Goverrment cusiomears are just a few
examp es of courcils choosing cur market-leacirg ERP, CiA, with
Investing in the future — Witk strong rosults and o stong saies
pipeting, this yegr we madce additioral invastmerts 1o enab o

the digital custormaer at its centre,

In the Goverrment sector we sl

gred five Mmoo deais with &
towl cortroct val.e of more thar $23 miler TecrnofogyOna

us to continue to double in size every five yoors beyord $500
million ARR, These irclude additional nvestments in the UK, new
products and moduies nciudirg DXP, AppBuilder, and Saas
Plus. Additionally, we undertook acguisition due diligerce cr a
potertially trarsformational cambination opportunity.

succassfully completed the trarsition of our axisting 230~
ne new customers we

7

a
Goverrment customers 1o Saad
signed validatad our SaasS-‘or-Governiment vsion, with the

most rotable being tre Dopartment of Veteran's Affairs IDVAL,

We became the world’s first Solution as a Service (SaaS+)
ERP company - W ostatlished our visiorary SaoS- offering
by comiziring cor mission-critical gloial Saas ERP soution
and implementation in one sngle ‘e, removirg the need
for traditonal, complex, long, risky and expensive consuting
implerrentations to provide faster go-lives and there‘cre
urlocking walde “or our customers more quic«ly.

i Annual Financiai Report 2023

winicn was cwarded 1o TechnologyOre at the corciusior

of o competitive terger crocess agaeirst SAR. DVA, a large
agency, chose TechnologyGre for the first stage of its digial
ransformation based on our oreven ability o deiiver witkin the
Sodoral Covernment. Egualy, the Commorwealtt's Natioral
Anti-Corruption Commissior, with less thon 200 swalf, know
chey will get the same enterprise grada, bult-for-Government
corfiguration, and industry-leading cyber securnity standards as
our largest Goverrmeant customars,




We hove successully compioted our trensitior rom ar
or-premise legacy licence business 1o o Saos
Cur plar o reducoe on premisa legacy licerce fees from a high
of civea 75 milion to zerc over five years is complete. Wao Fave
sggressively growr our Saas recurring revenue busiress to
eplace ol -everues, delivering increasinrg omings cvely year

ZusIiness.

This transition was extremely complex as we re-engineered al
parts of our busiress including our products, our structure, our
policies, processes, ard disciplires. No other ERP compary ir the
world has seecessfully made this transition without regatively

impacting cither its work or its profit growth,

TechnologyCne made the transition 1o our Saas solutior ‘or our
on-premise customors smple ard seamless, Customers can move
st to those using our

10 SouS r wesks, not yeOrs, Ir star< contra

competitors’ products.

From the
cur next generation Saas ERP CiA, ard toke asvartage of naw

rfisst step to SaaS, our customers can easily move to
technolog:es, suer as Artificial Inteligence ard cur new Digita:
Experience Platform (DXP).

Net Revenue Retention (NRR} of 119%, up from 116% pcp

In FY23, we delivered Not Revenue Retertion of 1199 which is
imdustry ccading in the ERP market and above Sur
A 115% per annum, we will covinue 1o doubla i

cng term

target ¢ 115%.
size avery fve years

This clearly shows our products and sclutiors are resonatng with
the market. Customers are cortinuirg to toke up more products
and madules from s s they emibyrace our enterprise visior ard
the significart efficiencies and productivity lift that come weth L

Cur focus is 1o lard a customer with preducts such as Fmancials,
Property ond Rating, or Student Managoement and then expand
with other products and modules over time. As the only true Saas
FRP vendo: in the market, our Saas customers have all products
and modules availobic at all times and are always on the latest
seftware re‘ease. This oper ficence approach iemoves trhe friction
from TechroegyOre selling ard from our customers taking L

new products ard modules to streamline thenr busiress,

We continue tc imvest in our products ard modules to provide ever
deeper misson-critical functionalty for the markets we serve. in
doirg sc we incregse the avalable whitespace and rurway for our
team to el aaoational value to ow existirg cusicmers.

Our SoaS custormers continue 1o take-up products crd modules
at a ‘aster rate thar we had seen for our or-premisa customers
The average ARR from our custamaers Fas grown from $100,000 in

FY12 1o aimost $403,000 in FY22,

UK ARR of $26.5 million up 52%

WWe Pave seor our LM Dl s T groys stk ARR Lp
52% 10 $26.5 millon, We ol iorett ot 237 il
profit $2.4 milior last ye nificant Goporturites

mup frerm o

irthe comitg yeats ninis morker yvhioh exceed: the size of e

APAC market corsidaeranhy,

now comnlets
s ard Payroli

Tne reg.onalisator of o
‘or aur Student Maro
{HRP! oroducts ard
doos this yeor

Monagemant
srirg ond Too broadth
and depth of furctioraity © ol Government

B oty o the Lo

ang Highoer Eoucation miarsets a2 urigue in the LK ard our

pincling is growing strongly, W 4TI el i mroducts,
scies, morketing ard ol ot e UK o further

Gooeierats our otk

Upgrade to medium-term guidance, on track to surpass
$500 million ARR by FY25

gersratior g.obal Sug
ERP busi iy 7 d GoeCut g
rature, com

sntes NL.:J\

ot of ~T

Our ARR stands at L oF Tonnt Reserne which meons most of cur
revenue s lookes pe “rorcizniyear This positors

s well o achieve L the ray year

loday, our Tota: ARR iz §392.2 L 23% e e upgrodirg
CLr MeQILM=TSI™ 10U HaeT i« AxE oy Fras

Ipraviously, Rooy FY26"1

Investing in the future

TechnologyOre irveste
Our R&D oro
industry, oS

G §112 -

Sro™ ConTrues 10 o8

o, L 21%.

o ombirace new tec ro ToleEs.

and rew Doradioms,

Our R&D tearm s focused or &
and capablites oF o

ncrzases the writespoaoe

VW contnue 1o rvest i new e 5T T RO A0S,

inciuding Soiution as o Sorvice [SaaS+: Ap ier ara Digita
=~t ard =igher
Education. Our 164 oradust ased for genaera
adootion ard exterds cur IR fror rrodticsal tack -office users

1o residerts,




We became the world's first Solution as a Service

{SaasS+) ERP company

Sclution as a Service (SaaS+ will be a game changer i the
ERP ‘ndustry. 7 is trhae next logico: evoluton of Sa0f wrere
TechrologyOre deivers the ertire outcorre ‘aster, ittle risk
and ir one singe arnual fee to cur customers. SaaS- wili defiver
vaiLe 4% we continue to dramatco

faster time 1o Iy drive Sowr

mplemertotion timeframes, remaoving the nees for traditional
long-drawn out, risky imolementatiors. Through s "Power of One”,
TechrclogyOre is the only S5aaS ERFP provider akle to dewver on
this compzling sropositor as we owr ol parts of the value chaoir
wath deep missior- critical products, imdustry-specific = buit over

36 years and our bighly skilleo in-house consultng team.

Durng FY23 TechnologyOne launched our rew Sa
which was embracea by 34 customers aoross ofl cur irdustry

vertica's, surpassing all our iritias expectaticons ard demorstratirg
o very positive outiook for our ‘uture opproach to
defivery, Quesnsard Patdiamaentary Services was the st
= recognsing hos crucicol ©

= of L.H\’J

solas and

mMe 1o val.e
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to Saas reverce, which is now complete. This stiatagic move

enhgroes out focus or high - guaity, recursng reven.e,

We are excited chout the opportur tics these nyasiments wil
bricg to our APAC anel UK customers, importantly, SaaS- has

bocorre the go-to-mar<et sales ospproacs I the UK

Trese irvastrients n RAD and ScaS-, o build our Tuture platforms
for growth, enable our ability to corticue o doubkle ir size every

five yoeors We wil marage this significant investment within our
total cost bose, cortinuing to belance strong profit growth with
investrmert for future growth beyord 3500 millor ARR.

Profit Before Tax margin to return to growth in FY24

As we trarsinoraa to 5005 and contirue 1o build deep o poincs,
our proft and o2ss has become mora pred ctas’e. Early ir our
second ~alf, we could scoowish corfiderce that we were gqoirg 1o
hova a strong T year, We have delivered above guicance profit
before wax growth of 16%, strong ARR growtn o 25%, NRR of 119%
labove our long-term targer of 15%) and cashilow gererator to
NPAT of 102°% for the year, one year earlier than planned.

Caombinad win a streng proeling, this allowed us to moke cdditioral
nvestrients in cur ambitous R&D progromr earfer than oionned.

These long-term investmerts, includ ~g LXP, AppBulzer, aocitonal

modues and SaasS+ will onable us w grow beyord $500 ko ARK
ard cor:im

tre UK feinte

: to double in size every fve years, We aisd irvested in

scolng our service centra in Maloys:a.
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Strong balance sheet and Strong cashflow generation
at 102% of NPAT

TecrnoogyOne continugs o have & strong oa'orce sheet win
net assets of $306.0 miliior, up 28% arg
o 52233 milior, up 27%. Cash &
agan strong at $104.6 milion for the fuil year, varsus a Net Profit
After Tax of $102.¢ million, @ CFG wo NPAT ratic »*00°% whics iz
one year ecrler than planned. Techno\ogyor*p corsiraes s
long history of strong CFG, whic will continue to
approximate Net Profit A%ter Tox in FY24 ard beyer

cash and investments
ow Conoratcs (CFG was once

W e pect

Dividend

Ceorsidering the compary's stiong resuits, cur corfideraa in the
future, and the significort capacity in Sur balarae sheet to nvest
in growth and opportunities that may arise, we have anrou ¢!
o Special Civigerd o° 3.0 cents ner sharg i- add'tor to our final
FY23 aividend of "1.90 certs per sbar:.

For the “wl year, our dividend has ircregsed to 19.52 cer
shore (including the Special Dividend!, up 15% o~ the oric
arg irlire with cur Net Profit After Tax growtk of 16%

Executive remuneration

TechncicayOre remains focused on d(.:l;\-cw‘q sUong growth
rs s ‘-.’,-‘OU o
cortinue to achieve this — both ir the shory and lorg e, 2ot
ciso 10 ersure gigrment Goross our Sxecutive <MP,

Gro our current riemuneration structurs pos.Le

We continued to execute our strategy, delive: rg ot

FvY23 \Whor many businesses have strug

again :n T
urcertoir economic and geopolitical times, e-_r..ﬂo '_‘__;'\;Or“e has

deiivered exceptioral growth - Total ARR growtr 2%, Secord
Net Proft After Tax growth of 16%
ard ypgraded our madium taerm guldarce to surpass

$500 milion ARR by FYZ25.

Our Z-year :wling T3R s 97% and anrugl TSR ¢ 48%,
There is a clear glgrment between 178 perforr arce of the
busiress and executive remuneratior

Environment, Social, Governance (ESG)

Environment

TechnoiogyOne is committed to 11s ESG obtigotions. beyond just

reguiatorny recuiremanrts. We pecame Carbor Nestral gichally

ara this year is our second year benchmarkirg ard reporing
under the recommerdations of the Task Force on Climata-related

Finaraal Dieclosures (TCFDE,

While the TechnelogyOre cparatons do rot have a motaris
impact on tre environmert we ackrow cdge that it is the
changing attiteze of many that wilk have o material impact or
reducing climata change.

Social - TechnologyOne Foundation
The Tec no ogyOre “oundation cefnes whe we are 05 a

CoOMpary Qg il an moortart driver of oo Culture and valkdes

Vie ore coriritio ; o oitference to urderprivieged,
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Significant changes in the state
of affairs

Trere were no s'gnificant changes in tre Comparny's state of
cof‘oirs during the “nancial year,

Matters subsequent
to the end of the financial year

Gn 21 Noverrber 2023, the Directors of Technology One Limitod
declored @ firal ond special dividend or ordnary shares in
respect of the 2023 finarcial year. The total amount of the
dividend iz $48.375,534 and 15 60% frarked.

No other matter or circumstarce has occuried subsequent o
penod erd that hos signi:cantly a“ected, or may sigrificantly
affect, the ooeratiors of the Compary, the results of those
opecrations of the state of affairs of the Company ar econamic
erity in subsaguant finarcial yvears.

Likely developments

Refer 1o the Review of Operations soctior above.

Indemnification and Insurance
of Officers

Insurance and indemnty arange-nents concern ng off cers of the
Compay we

An indemn'ty agreement s in place between Technoogylne

and each of the Directors of tne Company namred earlier n tnis
recort and veth each ful tme Executive officer and secretary of
the Company. linder tne agreemant, the Corrpany has indemafied
those off cas aganst any coim or for any expenses or costs tat
may arise due to wark parformed n their respective capacites.

TechnalogyGre paid an insurance premivm in respact of a contract
insurng each of tne Ditectors of the Company nomed earier in

this report and eac full time Executive officer and secretary of

the Company, aganst ail liabiit'es and expenses arising as @ esult
of work pe-forned v their respectve capacities, to the extent
permitted by iaw.

yire Annual Financial Report 2023

Non-audit services

Non-oudit services provided by e
Ernst & Young, in the corre~t firancia perod a-d pros financio

Corpany's aud tar,

yoar irch.ded toxction advice and oo Asvisony Services.

The Directors are satisficd that the provision of non-aud't servicos
5 compatiple with tne gereral standard of independoenae for

auditors imposed by the Corporatans Aot

Ernst and Young:

Taxat N s NS o .
197 24

SEMVICE:

Total remuneration 948,484 197,241
Nor-audt services iclude $301734 inrelaticon 12 taxation advice
andd 36446750 in relaticn 10 oog crvices for

an qocquisitior torgat that thae Compary dd rot LUmotely pursue.

ion due diigen:

Auditor’s independence declaration
A copy of the auditer's irdepercerce declaraue. s required
under secton 307C of the Corporaticrs Act 2001

His st out an

poge o,

Rounding of amounts

Tne Compary is of @ kind reforas 1o inirstroment 2016191, issucd
b3y the Australiar Securities ard Investments Commission, relating
o the rounding o of amcunts in the Diectors report and francia
report. Arourts Iin tre Directors report ond Ararcial .eport have
peer roundad of’ in accordance with that Class Order to the
rearest thousand doilars, or -~ cerla:n cases, to tho nearest dollar

Environmental regulation
TecknologyOre hoas assesscd the recommendations of the
Task Force on Climate-related Fnancia Discosures [TCFDY.

The outcome of the assessment g discussed ir tho seotior boow

TechnologyOne's Climate change position

Cur operotions oo not have o materclimpact o tha
onvironment, We acknowledge that cirate crarge mitigatior
wil reguire deeg and permarent greertouse gas reductions as
part of a universal transformation from busiress, govemment,
anc irdividuals colectively. 7o tois end, Technoiocgylre acoents
the science of cimate change ond 5 comimnted to reducing oLt
carbon emissions to the lowest amoort possibie ard ofsetting
resich,or QMSUnts to maintan carbor neutrabty

TechnologyOre bas adopted ar itergtive aoproach to
mplamentirg the TCFD recommerdations.

We will continue to ussass now we guartify aimote reloted risks

and coportunities, how the Boars etagraies climate-related

consideratiors irtc decision ma«ng ona strategy, and Fow we
engage with shareholders, custortars, toarm members, suppliars

and other key staxerolders,




Climate Governance

Tre TecrrologyOne Board maintains oversight of sustaimaoiity
matters, trarsloting thase into our strataay for long-term value.
TechrologyOne's broader focus on envircnmenial, socicl

and govenarce *actors [ESG) is overseen oy the Nomingtion
& Goverrance Committee, The responsibility for implemaonting
S8G sits with eack internal Business Division.

Cur Risk Management Framework, the Audit & Risk Committee ovamsoes
TechnologyOre's mataricl eracrprsc-wide risks ard e imegrity o°

cur statutory stetemerts. The Remuneration Committes corsiders
executive periomance on ESG issues.

Climate Strategy

To understand the strategic implicatons of climate-related
risks and oppoert.nities, we assessed Lthe potential positive
ard negative mpacts on our busiress against three giobai
Warmirg sCenanos.

Under the 2°C scenario charactersed by late, disruptive

ard sudden climate action, our key risks incluce reputational
ard logal risks associated with a lock of climato risk disclosure
and action, as well as financial risks.

Under the 4°C scenario choracterisad by limited climate action
beyond whot Fas already beer committed, key asoects of the
risks reiate to physical damage, network disruptionrs, missed sales
opporturities and bealtr impacts on our staff,

Climate Risk Management

We gim 1o ensure TNt our risk managemeant process 1s dynamic
and tnat emorging ard existirg material climate related nsks
are idertifies, maraged, and incorporated into our existing risk
managarmert processes,

Cur GHG reductior strategy invaolves three phoses:
Phase 10 Phase 1. measure {understend the key emissior sources)
Phase 20 Phase 20 marage and minimise reduce energy
corsumption and associated carnon emissiors
where practicable]
Phase 3 Phase 3 o'fset jall or o proportion of our
caroon emissions),

Climate Metrics and Targets

During the reporung period, TechnologyOne corducted o GHG
gssessment in accordance with the GHG Protocol A Corporate
Accounting and Repaorting Stardard and Cerporate Value Chain

TecrnologyOne's total global emissions for FY23 amounted to
8,465 tonnas of carbon dioxide eguivalent.

We aim to uge any arising oppaortunities 1o reduce our Emissions
Wea'te focusec on regucing our impact on the envirgment and
are proud to be Cimate Active carbon-reutral certified “or

cur gioha! operations. Reflective of the ircreased urgency 1o
gecelerate carbon reductior iritiatives, we recent!ly set reductiar
targets to reduce our Scopa 1 and 2 glebal emissions by 80% by
2025 ars 100% by 2030 from a FYZ22 basaine.

Refer to our 2023 Sustcinability Report for further TCFD
related informatior

Share options

Unissued shares

As at the date of this report, there viore 5,909,979 unissued
ordinary shares under opticns {4,752 991 at the reporting date;.
Fefer to note 32 for further detai s ©F tre options outstardng.

Option holaers do rot bave ary ngrt, by virtue of t~e option, to
[ C ¥ 8]

participate in ary share issug of the compary. Options granted
carry no dividend fight 1o holoers

Shares issued on the exercise of options

During the year, employees ard Executives hove exgraised
options to acquire 1303,804 fuly paid ordinary shares in
Technology Cne Limited at o weghtod average axorcise proe of
$6.24 Refer to rote 32 for ‘urther details of the options exeicised
cduiing the ysar,

Corporate governance statement

The most recent Corporate Gaverrarce Statemert can e
locoted gt the Group's Webs'te wwew technolegyonoooro. ool

[Fis report is made in accordance with a resolution of Dircctors.

QM%/

Pat C'Sullivan
Chir

Brishane
21 November 2023
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Independent Auditor's Declaration

teli+617 3C11 3332
Fax:4£1 7 3011 3100

I ] =y Comfau
GEC Box 7878 5 stane OLD 2001

Building a better
working world

Auditor's Independence Declaration to the Directors of Technology
One Limited

As lead auditor for the audit of the financial report of Technology One Limited for the financial year
ended 30 September 2023, | declare to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

a. No contraventions of the auditor independence reguirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit;

b. No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit; and
c. No noen-audit services provided that contravene any applicable code of professional conduct in

relaticn to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Technelogy One Limited and the entities it controlled during the
financial year.

Evmgt + l/aw?/

Ernst & Young

L2

John Robinson
Partner
21 November 2023

rast & Younz G ebal Limite:
scneme approned under Prolessional Standarcs Legistation
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Remuneration Report

(Unaudited)

Introduction from the Chair of the
Remuneration Committee
Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of TechnelogyOne's Remuneration Committee
(the Cornmittee), | am pleased to present our Remuneration
Report (the Repecrt) for the year ended 30 September 2023.

The primary objective of the Committee is to ensure that we
align Executive Key Management Personnel (KMP) rewards with
shareholder interasts and achievement of our business strategy,
whilst ensuring that we attract and retain exceptional Executives,
Directors and Employees who are collectively responsible

for delivering long-term profitable growth and sustainable
shareholder returns.

We are one of only a few ERP vendors globally. Cur unique
approach sees us highly focused on six vertical markets with the
deepest functionality for those markets, delivered through our
16 products and over 400 moduies. This includes mission-critical
operational systems for local government and higher education.
We have rewritten our rich ERP four times over the last 36 years,
taking advantage of the latest technological shifts for our
customers — relational database, PC, web and now SaaS.

Our Power of One approach, core to our strategy, means we
build, market, sell, implement, support, and run cur ERP for our
customers. TechnologyOne's products make life simple for our
customers, but our business is complex and unique, demanding
deep and broad expertise from our exceptional team.

Execution of our consistent strategy by our leaders has been
key to our strong growth. We constantly adapt and evolve

to changes in technology, the market and feedback from our
customers while remaining focused on delivery for our verticals.

This yvear TechnologyOne entered the S&P/ASX 100 index. This
is an important milestone for the company, which commenced
in 1987 as a small start-up venture operating from a hide

plant in Hemmant, Brisbane, Since listing on the ASX in 1999,
TechnologyCne has delivered more than 18% compound growth
for our shareholders, turning $1 invested 24 years ago into more
than $50. With dividends reinvested, over the last 10 years,
TechnologyOne's Total Shareholder Return (TSR) has exceeded
the ASX 200 by more than 6 times-meore than 860%. The growth
has been delivered via execution of our strategy which cims to
double our ARR every five years. Pleasingly, through this same
period, our employee Net Promoter Score has grown from +1 to
+34, and we are on track to deliver our ambitious goal of $5C0m
Annual Recurring Revenue (ARR) by FY25, earlier than planned.
As we move into this next period, we have set our focus on
doubling from $500m to $1on ARR by FY30.

Cur remuneration framework crovides a tight relationship between
performance and remuneration and has driven strong growth for the
company. In FY23, we undertock independent benchmarking for KMP
remuneration. We will continue to benchmark to ensure we remain
competitive and can attract and retain talented executives with the
specialised skills and expertise reguired.

This Report intends to describe the linkage between our strategic
initiatives, remuneration principles and remunercation framework,
and how these, in turn, drive shareholder returns.

Incentive outcomes and alignment to
Company performance

Company performance was strong with exceptional results
delivered in FY23 across all key metrics:

»  Total ARR growth of 23%.

«  Net prefit before tax growth of 16%.

+ UK profit up 54% at $3.7m.

These results indicate we are on track to deliver cur ambitious
goal of $500m ARR by FY25, earlier than planned.

Centinuing Executive KMP remuneration continues to be clearly
aligned with shareholder value creation:

- Total continuing Executive KMP remuneration grew by 5%
between 2022 and 2023 (excluding retention LTI} Remuneration
growth is relative to, and less than, the Company's 16% growth in
statutory net profit before tax (NPBT).

+  Short-Term Incentive {8TI) outcomes across our continuing
Executive KMP were up 15% directly reflecting 15% growth in
Executive NPBT.

+ Deferred STt earned was up 16% in line with average growth in
Executive NPBT over the last three years.

- The Long-Term Incentive (LTI plan, based on eamings per
share [EPS} growth ond total shareholder return (TSR) relative to
technology companies, resulted in 100% of ‘at risk’ LTI vesting
for our Continuing Executive KMP. This result reflects the strong
performance over the 3-year vesting period, with challenging
LTi targets set by the Board achieved, ensuring superior
performance and long-term shareholder wealth creation.

Executive and Director changes

Mr Edward Chung, our CEO for the past é years was appointed

to the Board as Managing Director on 15 August 2023. Mr Paui
Jobbins resigned as CFC and company secretary on 17 July 2023,
Mr Cale Bennett commenced as CFO cn 1 August 2023,

Mr Ron McLean retired from the Board at the end of the 2023
AGM on 22 February 2023.

(@) Executive KMP remuneration

There has been no change to the continuing Executive KMP
remuneration framework. Fixed base salary increases were
fimited to 1.5%, including the super guarantee rate increase.
Actudl short-term incentive and deferred STl increased in line with
Executive Net Profit Before Tax (NPBT). Long-term incentives were
increased by 1%, as the opportunity as a percentage of salary
rermained unchanged. Increcses in salary and LTI were less than
inflation. For FY23, Fixed remuneration comprised no more than
29% of Executive KMP remuneration.

{bl Directors’ fees

Shareholders resolved to increase the fee pool to $2,000,000
at the FY22 Annual General Meeting. The increase is the first
increase since the Director Fee Pocol was set at $1,500,000 four
years earlier. The increased pool resutted frem independent
benchmarking, Board renewal, including an experienced
non-executive Chalr, and recognition of the increased
workload and management of complexity and growth for the
non-executive Chair and Directors, Further details are described
in section 7 of the Report.

Afterword

TechnologyOne remains focused on delivering sustainable
long-term growth. We believe that our remuneration policies
continue to position us well for providing our shareholders with
strong returns via effective executive attraction, retention
and focus on performance.

Dr Jane Andrews

Chair, Rermuneration Committee

Brisbane
21 November 2023
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Remuneration Report
(Audited)
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1  About this report

11 Basis for preparation of FY23 Remuneration Report
The information in this Remuneration Report has been prepared based on the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and applicable
Accounting Standards.

The Remuneration Report is designed to provide shareholders with o clear and detailed understanding of TechnologyOne's remuneration
framework, and the link between our remuneration policies and Company perfermance.

The Remuneration Report details the remuneration framework for TechnologyOne's Key Management Personnel (KMP). For the purpose
of this report, KMP are defined gs those persens having autherity and respensibility for planning, directing and controlling the major
activities of TechnologyOne, ditectly or indirectly, including any Director (whether Executive or otherwise).

This report has been audited.

1.2 People covered by the Remuneration Report

The Remuneration Report discloses the remuneration armangements and outcomes for those individuals who we have determined to meet the
definition of KMP under AASB 124 Reiated Party Disciosures. The below table identifies each KMP, their position and term as KMP.

Name Position Period
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Pat O'Sulliven Independent Non-Executive Chair Full year

Ron Mclean

Independent Director

1 October 2022 —
22 February 2023

John Mactaggart Neon-independent Director Full year
Major shareholder

Richard Anstey Indepandent Director Full year

Dr Jane Andrews Independent Director Full year
Remuneration Committee Chair
Audit and Risk Committes
Nomination and Governance Committee

Sharon Doyle Independent Director Fuil year
Audit and Risk Committee
Nomination and Governance Committee

Clifford Rosenberg Independent Director Full year
Nomingtion and Governance Committee Chair
Remuneration Committee

Peter Ball Independent Directer Full year
Audit and Risk Committee Chair
Remuneration Committee

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Edward Chung Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer Full year

{Managing

Diractor from 15
August 2023)

EXECUTIVE KMP

Stuart MacDonald

Chief Qperating Officer

Full year

Paul Jobbing Chief Financial Officer 1 Cctober 2022 -
17 July 2023
Cale Bennett Chief Financial Officer 1 August — 30

September 2023

Making life simple for our community 19



Remuneration Report

(Audited)

2 Remuneration governance

The Remuneration Committee (the Committeg) is responsible for
developing the remuneraticn framework for TechnologyOne KMPs
and making recommendations for KMP's remuneration to the
Board. The Committee sets the remuneration philosophy

and policies for Board approval.

The responsibilities of the Committee are further outlined in their
Charter, which is reviewed annually by the Board.

The key responsibilities of the Committee include:

+  Advising the Board on TechnologyOne's policy for
KMP's remuneration.

+ Making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
arrangements for KMP to ensure they are aligned with
TechnologyOne's vision and are set competitively to the market.

Appraving KMP terms of employment.

In making recommendations to the Board, the Committee reviews
the appropriateness of the nature and amount of remuneration to
KMP on an annual basis.

Prior to the award or vesting of any deferred remuneration

including deferred Short-Term Incentives (STI) and Long-Term
Incentives (LTI, the Committes considers whether there are any
iregularities or other factors {including ESG matters) that would
affect the payment or vesting of that award. This is a formal agenda
itern for the Remuneration Committee and it is conducted without
the executives present.

3 Executive Remuneration at
TechnologyOne - strategy,
principles, and target mix

3.1 Our remuneration strategy and principles

At TechnologyOne, our remuneration strategy is aligned with our
vision of ‘making life simple for our community”. The Board believes
that in order to deliver on our vision and build sustainatle long-term
shareholder growth, TechnologyOne must have a remuneration
framework that aliows it to compete for talent both locally and
glebally in a highly competitive and fast-moving environment, and
against companies such as Oracle, SAP and Workday, as well as
cther Australian and global software companies.

The remuneration principles that underpin our remuneration strategy
and framework are to:

Attract, retain and motivate skilled Directors and Executives in
leadership positions,

Provide remuneration which is appropriate and competitive both
internally and against comparable companies (our peers).

«  Align Executives' financial rewards with shareholder interests
and our business strategy.

Achieve outstanding shareholder wealth creation.

+  Articulate clearly to Executives the direct link between individual
and Company performance, and individual financial reward.

+  Reward superior performance, while managing risks.

Provide flexibility to meet changing needs and emerging
competitive market practices.

Commit to diversity, reflecting a fair and equitable
remuneration framework.
= Commit to simplicity.

Our Executive remuneration framework aligns with common practices
for ASX 100 companies, with adaptations to meet the demands of a
growing company in the enterprise software market. The structure of
our Executive remuneration comprises:

Comparatively low fixed remuneration to enable a greater
emphasis on perfermance,

Relatively large at-risk STl portion aligning focus te current
year performance.

+ A deferred STl component to help further drive long-term
shareholder wedalth and retention.

+  LTls linked to long-term strateqy, targets, and sharehclder
wealth creation.

Due to the nature of our Saas revenue generation, the winning
of new business and driving continued profit growth in the
current year is the key to our long-term success. It is for this
reasen, our short-term incentive (STH, as a percentage of the
total remuneration, tends to be higher than our ASX-listed peers.
Correspondingly, the fixed remuneration for our Executives

is comparatively low compared to our ASX-listed peers. The
significant weighting towards the ST encourages our Executives to
drive new business and financial performance in the current year,
which creates Annual Recurring Revenue (ARR)' for future years,
therefore securing long-term success and sharehclder wealth,

1 ARRis not an IFRS measure and is unaudited 1t reprasents future contracted annual revenue at year end.
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TechnologyOne Executives are focused on, and rewarded for, the long-term outcomes of the business through the Deferred ST and a generally
larger LT proportion of remuneration than our ASX-listed peers.

The talent peol in Australia for Executives with large-scale enterprise software companies is highly competitive. Therefore, it is important to
ensure that our remuneration framework s appropriately structured for the enterprise software market, We believe that our remuneration
structure offers the necessary flexibility and incentive to ensure that we attract and retain talented Executives who understand the industry
and, in turn, drive shareholder value.

Target remuneration mix

Target granted remuneration mix at the beginning of the contract for the CEO (Figure 1), and other Executive KMP (Figure 3) is represented
below, based on target STl achievement and maximum LT achievement. Qver time, the remuneration changes due to a larger increase in STI
relative to other remunerdtion components.

The below represents the target contract remuneration mix for the CEO at the beginning of a contract (Figure 1) and demonstrates how

the remuneration mix changes over time {Figure 2). The below graphs show the accounting expense of the remuneration mix, excluding the
expense related to the one-off retention LTs granted in FY22.

Figure 1. Target CEQ remuneration mix Figure 2, CEO remuneration mix
{contract target started in FY17) FY23

At-risk At-risk

Fixed Fixed

® Fixed @ STicurrent @ DeferredSTi @ LTI @ Fixed @ STlcurrent @ DeferredSTI @ LTI

The below represents the target contracted remuneration mix for other continuing Executive KMP at the beginning of a contract
[Figure 3) and demonstrates how the remuneration mix changes over time (Figure 4).

Figure 3. Target Executive KMP remuneration mix Figure 4. Executive KMP remunetration mix
(contract target started in FY17) FY23

At-risk At-risk

Fixed Fixed

@ Fixed @ STi-current & Deferred STI @ LTI @ Fixed @ STi-current & Deferred STI @ LTI

While the STl is the largest companent of remuneration, Deferred STl encourages Executives to have a sustainable long-term mindset when
approaching profit generation. The combination of ST1 for the current year, and deferred STI and LT! for future years, ensures the overall
variable remuneration is balanced between achieving shert-term and long-term outcomes for the business and sharehclders.

The growth in STl-current and Deferred ST as a proportion of overall remuneration seen In the graphs above arises due to the STI being
directly linked to profit, which has grown strongly over time. Refer to section 4.2 for more details on the STl-current.

Making life simple for our community 21



Remuneration Report
(Audited)

4 How Executive Remuneration is structured

41 Fixed remuneration
Fixed remuneration comprises base salary plus superannuation.
Fixed base salary increased by 1% for FY23. The increase in the Superannuation Guarantee rate was paid for by the company for Executive

KMP, in line with policy for all employees. This resulted in a further increase in fixed remuneration of 0.5% from July 1 2023.

4.2 Short-term incentive (STI)
Executives participate in an ST plan which is based on Executive NPBT. Key features of the STI plan are detailed below:

Feature Description

Cpportunity The volue of the STl is based on a percentage of applicable Executive Net Profit Before Tax!. The percentage is
determined at the cutset of the Executive's contract and remains fixed for the contract period for each Executive KMP.
Refer to section 5.2 below for each Executive's agreed percentage.

5Tl awarded is uncappad to encourage over-achievement, drive perfermance in the current year ond the creoticn

of long-term shareholder wealth. Given expected growth in NPBET over time, the longer the Executive stays with
TechnologyOne, the greater the weighting of the STI component of total remuneration in comparison to the fixed and
LTI components, which typically only increase by CPl or less on an annual basis. An illustrative example of how this works
over time in practice has been presented following this table. This effect encourages retention of outperformers by
increasing their eaming potential the longer they stay with the Company, which aligns them with shareholders.

Award vehicle Cash.

Perfoermance meagsures The STl is based on o percentage of applicable Executive Net Profit Before Tax'. This effectively aligns the target
incentive with shareholder return since share price hos trended with the increase in earnings.

TechnologyOne's use of STis differs from most other organisations in that it utilises only one performance measure

in determining ST awards. This is to create focus and clarity for Executives whilst also providing transparency for
shareholders as to how ST| awards are determined. The Board and Remuneration Committee continue tc monitor ST
performance measures to ensure that they best align with the Company’s commitment tc providing shareholder wealth.

As o ScaS company, NPBT is critical to driving long term shareholder wegalth. This is because the winning of new
business, drives NPBT growth in the current year. This winning of new business translates to growth in ARR? in o ScaS
company, which results in contracted returns for the business in the future. Therefore, although the KMP are rewarded
in the Short-Term for incredses in profitability, the Company and shareholders continue to reap the benefits of that
increase in profitebility for the foreseeable future.

STl cop An important element of the success of our STl has been that it is uncapped so the greater the results in the current
financial year, the greater the STI. This not only encourages over performance in the current financial year for the
Company, it aisc has a dramatic flow on effect in future years through the greater recurring revenues for the Company.
Combined with the LTI, the uncapped STl also helps retain Executives over the long-term because the more they
succeed, the more financial incentive there is to stay with us and continue to work bard to achieve results each
year, and the greater benefit to our shareholders through an ever-increasing recuriing revenue base, Market value is
contingent on high and sustcined annual growth,

Likewise, if the Company under-performs {e.g. loss of customers) or the results in a year are lower {e.g. impairment),
there is a significant financial impact to Executives as their STI forms o large pertion of their total remuneration. Just as
the STl is uncapped on the upside, it is also uncapped on the downside. Given that our Executives' fixed remuneration
is significantly lower than our ASX-listed peers, under-performance has a significant, negative impact on their totai
remuneration. This ensures that Exaecutive awards are aligned with shareholder returns.

The 5TI framework aligns performance with remuneration outcomes encouraging over performance and penalising
under performance.

Malus The ability to apply Malus Provision to Deferred STI exists in the unlikely event that business outcomes differ materially from
expected or if there are any iregularities or other factors that would or have affected the payment of that award.

Controls To mitigate inappropriate actions that could increase short-term incentives, the Company has tong-standing effective
controls in place, including internal and external audits, and practice management reviews.

Specific internal controls in place include strict pricing and discounting policies and processes; selling solutions into only six
(6} specific markets reducing risk and complexity, maintaining robust approval processes for any non-standard or high-risk
contractual terms; performing active management of outstanding debtors; and malus provisions for Deferred STls.

Termination On termination, the Executive foregoes any further STI payments which would have otherwise been available for the
remaincler of the financial year under their STI plan.
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TechnologyOne Executives have an ST| set at the start of their contract which is typically 33% of their total targeted remuneration.
As noted above, this percentage of their total remuneration will increase with the Executive's tenure, The best way to consider the
mechanics of the TechnologyOne STl is by way of the following worked example,

Example 1: STl calculation and model over time

Consider a candidate who can command a remuneration package of $900,000 in the open market. The TechnologyOne STI opportunity
is determined as 4/3 of the total remuneration package and modelled as follows:

STl rate set at 75% to 100% of fixed remuneration (as estoblished during contract negotiations).

ST target $300,000 is used as the initial STl target. If we assume that NPBT of the Company, applies for this employee and the
forecast NPBT is $100m then contract ST will be 0.30% of NPT ($300,000/$100m).

Assuming an ambiticus profit target increase of 15% per annum and actual profit increases of 12% per annum, the following illustrates the
operation of the STI.

Profit Actual §Tl target Actual STI

STI target profit (ST1 % x profit (STl % x actual

Year (%) ($m) {$m) target ($)) profit {$))
1 .30 100.00 87.40 300,000 292,200
2 .30 12.01 109.09 336,030 327270
3 Q.30 125,45 12218 376,350 366,540

As can be seen in this example, growth is achieved in the ST1, in line with growth in company profit. This leads to an increase, over time, of
the proportion of STI to fixed remuneration.

4.3 Deferred STI

Feature Description

Opportunity TechnologyOne introduced a Deferred STl in the FY19 year. An additional ameunt egual to 25% of the annual STl earned
in the year under review is deferred (ie. 20% of tota! STI} and paid at the conclusion of the two-year period following the
end of the financial year.

Award vehicle Cash.

Cap For the same reasons outlined in section 4.2 for the STI, this Deferred STl is also uncapped on both the upside and the
downside.

Deferral period and service The award will only be paid at the conclusion of the two-year period following the end of the financial year, on the

requirements condition that the Executive KMP remcains employed with the Company for the entire deferral period.

Malus The Deferred ST| component is subject to @ malus provision in that there must be no irregularities or other factors that

would have affected the payment of that award.

Controls The controlg arg in line with those in place for the STI. Refer section 4.2 for detail.

Termination On termination, the Executive forgoes any cccrued and Deferred STI

The following provides a worked example to illustrate the operation of the Deferred STI.
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4 How Executive Remuneration is structured (continued)
4.3 Deferred STI (continued)

Example 2: Amounts recognised for Deferred ST!

As can be seen from the table below, the Deferred STI expense is recognised over a three-year period, being the year of award plus the
two years of deferral. The award is paid at the conclusion of the two-year period following the end of the financial year of the award.
A reward granted in FY23 will be paid to the Executive following the conclusion of FY25.

Amounts expensed for Deferred STI

Financial STI-received Deferred

STI 5Tl result immediately STl Deferred
FY Measure {%) {$m) $ (%) sTI Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
1 NPBT 0.30 97.40 292,200 25 73,050 24,350 24,350 24,350 - -
2 NPBT 0.20 112.01 336,030 25 84,008 - 28,003 28,003 28,003 -
3 NPBT 0.20 12218 346,540 25 91,635 - - 30,545 30,545 30,545
Total Expense 24,350 52,353 82,898 58,548 30,545
Cash Received by Executives - - 73,050 84,008 91,635

4.4 Long-term incentives (LTI)

TechnologyOne Executives are eligible to participate in an LT] Plan. The LTI Plan is designed to previde participants with the incentive to
deliver substantial consistent growth in shareholder value:

Feature

Description

Opportunity

The value of the total number of LTI options and/or rights issued each year (a grant] to an KMF is typically set at 75% to
100% of fixed remunerction and is determined during contract negotiation when an KMP is hired.

Award vehicle

Each LTl entitles the KMP the right to purchase one TechnologyCne share in the future ot an ogreed strike price, subject to
meeting specified performance targets. The KMP has a choice between Options or Equity Performance Rights [EPRs, rights).

Parformance pericd

LTIs have a three-year performance pericd. The number of options and/or rights in the grent are split into tranches
based on the weighting of each performance measure. For performance measures with a three-year torget, the relevant
tranche vests at the end of the three-year period in accordance with the vesting schedule provided below.

For accounting purposes, the expense is recognised in accordance with AASB 2 Share Based Payments over the
three-year period.

Parformance measures

Parfermance measures for the most recent Tl grants are:
75% of the options / rights vest based on EPS Growth. See Vesting Conditions below.

25% of the options / rights vest bosed on Relative Total Shareholder Return (FFSR) compared cgainst the
constituents of the ASX All Technology (XTX) index. See Vesting Conditions below.
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Feature Description

Vesting conditions For each performance target there is a mid and stretch target. Mid hurdles have been calculated so that if they are
achieved, this will create substantial shareholder wealth.

Performance

Metric Growth <5% Growth >=5%, <15% Growth »=15%
50% vest at 5% growth with linear vesting

EPS growth’ 0% vest {50% to 100%) up to 15% growth 100% vest

Performance

Metric Percentile <50 Percentile >=50, <75 Percentile »=75
50% vest at 50th percentile relative TSR
with linear vesting (50% to 100%) up to 75th

Relative TSR?2 0% vest percentile 100% vest

The number of options / rights that vest at the end of the relevant performance period is determined as follows:

. Number of LTI options/rights earned per three-year performance period = Number of LTI cptions/rights granted
x percentage earned x individual performance factor®

Vesting conditions are applicable to KMP only.

Allocation methodology The LTl is allocated based on the fair value of the option or right with no discount for the likelihood of non-market
performance conditions being met.

Board discretion In situations where the vasting conditions are offected by factors beyond the control of the ermployee {e.g. global
pandemic, trade restrictions, war, large-scale natural disasters, profit windfalls or unforeseen tailwinds), the Board has
discretion to increase or decrease the number of LTI options and/or rights vesting.

The Board retains scle discretion to determine the amount and form of any award that may vest (if any) to prevent any
unintended outcomes, or in the event of a corporate restructuring or capital event,

Change of control The Board has discretion to determine the extent to which LTls vest based en the pericd elapsed since the start of the
performance period and the performance at the time of any change of control event.

Termination Awards lapse unless the Board determines otherwise, in which case it considers performance of the individual over the
relevant period up to the date of termination of employment.

Expiry Any LTls that have vested will expire 5 years after vesting.

Revision We do not revise our TIs over the relevant performance period.
Malus The LTl component is subject to a Malus Provision in that there must be no irregularities or other facters that would

affect the vesting of the award. Under the Malus Provision the Board has the ability to vary the LTl as appropricte eq.
reduce, forfeit, defer for longer period.

Margin loans Directers and Executives are not permitted to use TechnologyOne securities as security for margin loans.
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4 How Executive Remuneration is structured (continued)

4.4 Long-term incentives (LTI) (continued)

The following provides a worked example to illustrate the operation of the LTI
Given an LTI grant value of $300,000, the KMP has the following two choices or a 50:50 mixture of each. The value remains the same in

all three choices.

Feature Des¢ription Description

Aword vehicle Options Equity Performance Rights
Vesting period 3 years 3 years

LTl grant value $300,000 $300,000

LTI metrics and weighting

EPS {75% weighting) and relctive TSR (25% weighting)

EPS (75% weighting) and relative TSR [25% weighting)

Fair value of option at

grant date $150 $7.50
Share price at grant date $7.65 $7.65
Exercise price $7.39 $0.00

In this example, we assume the KMP makes a 100% choice of Options.

Amounts recognised for LTI, given 100% weighting to a choice of Options

5 Cimeves  weoniag TR Deemest S S

1 EPS growin % 75% 150,000 $225,000 $7.65 $7.39

2 Relative TSR 25% 50,000 ) $75,000 $7.65 $7.3¢
200,000 $300,000

For the Year 1 tranche of LTls, the fair value is $300,000, recognised over 3 years. For the purposes of this worked example, we have

assumed that the fair value of options granted with each metric is the same.
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5 Relationship between remuneration and Company performance

5.1 TechnologyOne's five-year performance

The below table sets cut information showing the creation of shareholder wealth for the years ended 30 September 20192 to 30
September 2023. Profits and dividends have grown over the last five years, and growth in the fair value of Executive KMP's remuneration
has not exceeded growth in profits over the pericd.

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Net Profit before Tax reported ($'000} 76,389 82,470 97,843 112,320 129,854
Profit before tax growth (%) 15 8 o 19 15 16
Tetal dividend, inciuding special {cps) ) 1.93 12.88 13.91 47.02 19.52
Share price for the yea; {closing) %) 718 7.94 11.34 10.40 15.51
Eamings per share {basic) [eps) 18.43 19.75 22.64 275 A
EPS growth 1%) _ 14 8 15 22 15
Annucl Total Shareholder Return (TSR) {%) k3| 12 45 (5 48
Rolling 3-year TSR 1%) 35 58 97 61 97
Continuing Executive ST ($,000) 1,047 i 1136 1343 1537 1,767
Continuing Executive ST Growth 1%) 16 @ 18 14 15
Continuing Executive STI % of NPBT i %) 1 1 1 1 1
LTl vesting as ¢ % of maximum 1%) 72 8 ¢ 97 100
Continuing Executive KMP remuneration growth! {%) 12 12 12 8 5
Executive Remuneration % of NPBT 1%) & 7 _6 5 4

Profits have grown strongly and sustainably over the last five years, as have earnings per share and dividends, all while transforming
from perpetuai licenses ta a SaasS model.

As can be seen from the tgbles above, the Executive Remuneration Framework has successfully driven performance and the creation of
shareholder wealth over the longer term.
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5 Relationship between remuneration and Company performance (continued)

5.2 Detuil of Executive remuneration and performance

The remuneration for Executives comprises the ameounts outlined in the following tables.

Refer to section 6 below for detgils of service agreements with Executive KMP.

Edward Chung
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
2023 2022 Variance
3 ($) (%) Notes
Fixed remuneration
Base salary 521,250 513,358
Superannuation 27,500 27500
Total fixed remuneration 548,750 540,858 1 Increase includes statutory increase for
superannuation.
STl
STI - profit! 124,542,612 117,090,048 15
STl % 0.78% 0.78%
Total ST1 1,049,588 913,302 15 Growth in 571 is consistent with growth in NPBT,
the primary measure of ST,
Total Deferred ST 230,081 198,851 16 Deferred STl (refer to section 4.3)
LTI
Fair vatue of options recognised 391,346 508,468 The value included for FY23 includes one third of
the FY21 LTI fair value plus cne third of the FY22
LTI fair value plus one third of the FY23 LTI fair
value.
Fair value of options forfeited - (18,684)
Fair value of EPRs recognised - -
Fair value of EPRs forfeited - -
Total LTI 391,346 489,784 (20
Fair value of Retention LT recognised 305,710 152 855 400 Grant in FY22 to encourage retention of key
executive during critical growth phase through to
November 2026 and the transition from a founder
led company. This is not an annucl grant.
The fair value of the grant will be recognised
over the five year vesting term FY22 to FY26.
The increase year on year here is reflective of a
partial year in the year of grant versus a full year
of expense in FY23.
Total remuneration 2,525,475 2,295,650 10 Total remuneration has grown by 10%, less than

reported net profit before tax growth of 16%.
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Stuart MacDonald

Chief Operating Officer
2023 2022 Variance
$) (%) (%) Notes
Fixed remuneration
Base salary 432,592 425,976
Superannuation 27,500 27,500
Total fixed remuneration 460,092 453,476 1 Increcse includes statutory increase for
superannuation,
T
STI - profit! 134,562,612 117,090,048 15
STl % 0.533% 0.533%
Total STI nz2e 624,090 15 Growth in STl is consistent with growth in NPBT,
the primary measure of 57,
Total Deferred STI 157,222 135,882 16 Deferred STl [refer to section 4.3)
LT
Fair value of options recognised 234,040 272,214 The vaolue included for FY23 includes one third of
the FY21 LTI fair value plus ane third of the FY22
LTI fair value plus one third of the FY23 LTI fair
value.
Fair value of options forfeited - [9,258)
Fair value of EPRs recognised - -
Fair value of EPRs forfeited - -
Total LTI 234,040 262,956 {11
Fair value of Retention LT recognised 173,138 76,181 127 Grant in FY22 to encourage retention of key
executive during critical growth phase through to
November 2026 and the transition from a founder
led company. This is not an annual grant.
The fair value of the grant will be recognised
over the five year vesting term FY22 to FY26.
The increase year on year here is reflective of a
partial year in the year of grant versus o full year
of expense in FY23,
Total remuneration 1,741,710 1,552,585 12 Total remuneration has grown by 12%, less than

reported net profit before tax growth of 16%.
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5 Relationship between remuneration and Company performance (continued)

5.2 Detail of Executive remuneration and performance {continued)

Paul Jobbins

Chief Financial Officer (resigned 17 July 2023)

2023 2022 Variance
(s ($) {%) Notes

Fixed remuneration

Base salary 227,023 223,363

Superannuation 27,500 27,500

Total fixed remuneration 254,523 250,863 1 Increase includes statutory increase for
superannuation.

STl

STI - profit! 134,562,612 117,090,048 15

STl % 0.343% 0.343%

ST forfeit {92,310) - (100} Mr Jobbins forfeited the 20% retention element of
his ST1 on resignation.

Total STI 349,240 401,619 {8) Mr Jobbins resigned on the 17th of July 2023.

His service continued for the full FY23.

Total Deferred 5TI {91,960) 87,444 {205) The Deferred ST! recognised in prior years wos
forfeited on resignation.

Tl

Fair value of options recognised 98,736 262,304 The value in FY23 includes only the final year of
expense for the FY21 grant.

Fair value of options forfeited (40,457) [9,557) The vrilue represents 191,015 sharg options that
were awarded as LTl in previous and current
financicl years and were forfaited on resignation.

Fair value of EPRs recognised - -

Fair value of EPRs forfeited - -

Total LT 58,279 252,747 (77}

Fair value of Retention LT recognised (29,115) 29,115 {200} Grant in FY22 to encourage retention of key
executive during critical growth phase through to
November 2026 and the transition from a founder
led company. This is nat an annual grant.

The retention LTl recognised in prior pericd
represented 205,761 share options that were
forfeited on Paul's resignation.

Post-employment benefits 247,000 -

Total remuneration 807,967 1,021,788 (21)
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Cale Bennett

Chief Financial Officer ([commenced 01 August 2023)

2023 2022 Variance
($) $) {%) Notes

Fixed remuneration

Base salary 60,060 - The value included the salary in relation to two
months of the current year.

Superannuation 4,607 -

Total fixed remuneration 55,687 - 100 The value included the remuneration in relation te
two months of the current year.

STl

STI - profit! 41,970,337 -

ST % 0.297% -

Total 5TI 124,652 - 100 The value included is in relation to two months of
the FY23 STI.

Total Deferred STI 10,388 - 100 Deferred STI (refer to section 4.3)

LTI

Fair value of cne-off LTI cptions 96,153 - FY23 volue for buycout of equity held from
previous employment,

Total LTI 96,153 - 100

Totol remuneration 297,860 - 100
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5 Relationship between remuneration and Company performance (continued)

5.3 Options and EPRs that became eligible to vest during FY23

During the year, Eaward Chung, Stuart MacDonaid and Paul Jobbins completed a three-year performance period relating te the LTI
instruments granted to them in FY21 and vesting in FY23. 100% of the Relative TSR options and 100% of the EPS Cptions became eligible
to vest, resulting in 100% of total LT vesting.

A summary of the targets set and performance against each target and options which have vested and are available to be exercised
has been set out below:

Edward Chung
Number Performance
Performance  Option or of LTls Testing measure Number % LTI
Grant year measure EPR available Testing year Target achieved forfeited  LTls vested vested
. ) 75th
Relative TSR Option 63,730 3 year FY23 ’ 88.63% - 63,730 100%
percentile
Fv21 . .
EPS Growth Option 191,189 3 yeor Fy23 15% 17.10% - 191,189 100%
254,919 254,919 100%
Stuart MacDonald
Number Performance
Performance  Qption or of LTls Testing measure Number % LTl
Grant year  measure EPR avallable Testing year Target achieved forfeited  LTls vested vested
. ) 75th o
Relative TSR Qption 38,113 3 year FY23 . 88.63% - 38113 100%
percentile
Fy21 .
EPS Growth Option 114,339 3 year FY23 15% 17.10% - 114,339 100%
152,452 152,452 100%
Paul Jobbins
Number Performance
Performance  OQption or of LTls Testing measure Number % LTI
Grant year measure EPR available Testing year Target achieved forfeited  LTls vested vested
Relative TSR Opti 33,359 3 FY23 75th 88.63% - 33,359 100%
ptien . year percentile D ’ °
Fyzt ] ' . e
EPS Growth Cption 100,077 3 year FY23 15% 17.10% - 100,077 100%
133,436 133,436 100%
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5.4 Options/EPRs that have been granted in FY22 and FY23 and not yet vested

Edward Chung
Grant year Perf Number of Testin Testing year LTis due to vest
¥! erformance measure LTis avaitable g g v
Relative TSR 48,104 3 year FY24 Nov 2024
Fy22
EPS Growth 144,312 3 year Fy24 Nov 2024
Relative TSR 43,126 3 year FY25 Nov 2025
FY23 e
EPS Growth 129,378 3 yeor Fy25 Nov 2025
Stuart MacDonald
Grant year Perf; Number of Testin Testing year LTls due to vest
b4 erformance measure LTts available esting gy u v
Relative TSR 28,768 3 year Fy24 Nov 2024
Fy22 ——
EPS Growth 86,304 3 year 24 Nov 2024
Relative TSR 25,791 3 year FY25 Nov 2025
Fy23
EPS Growth 77,373 3 year FY25 Nov 2025
Paul Jobbins
Number of .
Grant year Performance measure LTIs available’ Testing Testing year LTls due to vest
Relative TSR - 3 year Fr24 Nov 2024
Fy2z -
EPS Growth - 3 year Fy24 Nov 2024
Relative TSR - 3 yaar FY25 Nov 2025
FY23 rmsnes
EPS Growth - 3 year FY25 Nov 2025
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5 Relationship between remuneration and Company performance (continued)
5.5 LTI Retention options granted during the prior year that will vest on 30 November 2026

Edward Chung
Grant year Performance measure Number of options Vestin Vesti Total grant val
¥ available for vesting 9 esting year stalg value
Fy2z2 Service 720165 Nov 2026 Fy2v $2,038,066
Stuart MacDenald
Grant year Performance measure N1:|mber of OPU?“ Vesting Vesting year Total grant value
available for vesting
Fy22 Service 475,000 Nov 2026 Fy27 $1,154,250
Paul Jobbins
Grant year Performance measure Number of options Vestin Vesting year Total grant value
Y available for vesting’ 9 Y g
FY22 Service - Nowv 2026 Fy27 $582,305

6 Service agreements for the Executive KMP

Remuneration and other terms and conditions of employment for Executive KMP are formalised in service agreements which are
reviewed each year. All Executive KMP service agreements are roliing contracts which cease following notice of termination by either
employee or employer.

The following table presents some of the key contractual arrangements for the Executive KMP:

KMP Contract Termination notice Post-employment

term by either party restraint
CEQ Ongoing & months 12 months
QOther Executive KMP Ongoing 12 weeks 12 months

If a service agreement is terminated, payment in lieu of notice that is not worked may be provided, in addition to any statutory
entitlements. Typically, no other additional termination or post-ermployment benefits are provided on termination of employment. Refer
to sections 4.3 and 4.4 for treatment of STls and LTIs on cessation of employment.

7 Non-executive Director fees

Determination of Non-executive Director fees

Director fees are set to enable TechnologyOne to attract and retain high calibre Directers and in recognition of the workload for
Directors. Director fee levels and fee pool are reviewed every three years by an independent consultant to remain competitive with
comparable companies based on market capitalisation, operational scepe and key geographical areas. Fee Increases between
independent reviews are capped at CPl.

In FY22, Board fees were $145230 per Director, including statutory superannuation contributions. This was increased to $175,000 in FY23.
An additional fee of $27,500 was paid to each committee chair. The Independent Chair's fee was $300,000 in FY23 (FY22: $145,230).

Aggregate fee pool

The total amount of Directors’ fees is capped at a maximum pool that is approved by shareholders. The current fee pool is capped at
$2,000,000, which wos approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 22 February 2023,
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FY23 aggregate fee pool and Non-Executive
Director fees

An independent market review of Non-Executive Director (NED)
fees was conducted in the prior year. Cansegquently, the board
determined that an increase in the Board and Committee fees
was appropriate given:

+  The need to appropriately compensate an Independent
Nen-Executive Chair in recognition of the additional workload
of Pat G'Sullivan who was appointed to the position on 30
June 2022.
Increased workload of Directors due to significant growth
in size over the last 3 years, additional responsibilities
transitioning from @ founder-led company, cnd internationai
expansion in the UK.

NED fees were below market and inconsistent with market

Non-Executive Director shareholdings and
requirements

Non-Executive Directors (NEDs) are required to hold a minimum
shareholding of one year's NED fees {pre-tax} in TechnologyOne
shares. NEDs are required to rectify any shert fall within o
12-menth period. New NEDs are allowed 346 months to meet

this requirement. The Board in total holds 25,040,592 shares
representing 8% of the total shares outstanding of the Company.
Individual holdings are as shown below. The share price as at the
end of the reperting period was $15.51.

% of Mandatory
Shareholding
Requirement

Balance at the
2023 end of the year

Non-Executive Directors of Technology One Limited

P O'Sullivan 39779 100%
practice where additional fees are paid to recognise the
additional workload in chairing a committee, 4 Mactaggart 24,902,500 100%
Shareholder approval was obtained at the FY22 AGM to increase R Anstey 20,000 100%
the fee pool to $2,000,0QO, from $‘IZSOO,C.}OO. ThIS.WIH c:I!ow the Dr J Andrews 30,600 100%
Board to attract and retain high calibre directors (including overseas
directors) in o competitive technology market, provide flexibility for S Doyle 18,280 100%
i I ing and appointment of irectors.
Board succession planning PP of new directors C Rosenberg 27533 100%
Thg table below sets out the Non-Executive Directer Fees paid o Ball 21500 100%
during FY23.
Board and Committee Fees (inclusive of % of Mandatory
superannuation) FY23 Fees Balance at the Shareholding
2022 end of the year Requirement
Board Chair -
all-inclusive fee $300.000 Non-Executive Directors of Technolegy One Limited
Nen-Executive Director - base board fee $175,000 P &'Sullivan 39,779 100%
Audit and Risk Committee Chair $27,500 R Mclean 69737 100%
Audit and Risk Committee Member - J Mactaggart 26,202,500 100%
Remuneration R Anstey 30,000 100%
27 !
Comrittee Chair $27.500 - "=
Dr 1 Andrews 30,600 100%
Remuneration _ -
Committee Member S Doyle 18,280 100%
inati C Rosenber 27533 100%
Nomingt\on and.Govemance $27,500 g .
Committee Chair
P Ball 21900 100%

Nomination and Governance
Committee Member

The Board Chair does not receive any additicnal cormmittee fees,
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9 Additional statutory disclosures

2.1 Long-term incentive scheme

In 2016, TechnologyOne replaced its previous Executive Option Plan (EOP) with an LTI Plan aligned to market, shareholder and Executive
requirements. Options and EPRs issued under the new plan are outlined in the tables below.

Options
2023
Number Number
Number of options of options
Opening of options exercised forfeited Closing
balance of granted during during the during the Other balance of Vested and
Name share options the period period period' movements? share options exercisable Unvested
Edward Chung 1,425,033 172,504 {257,535) - - 1340,002 254917 1,085,085
Stuart MacDenald 905,425 103,164 (54,000} - - 954,589 152,450 802,139
Paul Jobbing 582,497 90,298 {142 583) (396,776) (133,436) - - -
9.2 Fair value of options granted in FY23
2023
Weighted
average/
Number  Fair value per
of options  options issued
granted during during the Fair value of
Name the period' period? Grant date  Exercise price  Vesting date Expiry Date grant Metrics
129,378 2.65 o1/40/2022 1.03 30/11/2025 30/11/2030 342,852 EPS
Edward Chung — -
43,126 2.32 C1/10/2022 1.03 30/11/2025 30/11/2030 100,052 Relative TSR
77,373 2.65 01/10/2022 1.03 30/11/2025 30/11/2030 205,038 EPS
Stuart MacDonald _.
25,791 2.32 01/10/2022 1.03 30/11/2025 30/11/2030 59,835 Relative TSR
47,722 2.65 01/10/2022 1.03 30/11/2025 30/11/2030 179,463 EPS
Paul Jobbins? S
22,574 2.32 01/10/2022 1.03 30/11/2025 30/11/2030 52,372 Relative TSR

The model inputs for options granted to Executives are as follows:

{a) Options are granted for no consideration. Each tranche vests subject to meeting performance hurdles
fo) Dividend yield — 135%

(c] Expected volatility — 33.89%

{d) Risk-free interest rate — 3.61%

(g) Price of shares on grant date — $10.60
{

f

Fair value of options ~ $2.32-$2.65

The performance measures for LTI grants made in FY23 are presented below while the Retention LTis vest based on service conditions.
The performance targets, set out below, are such that they are all considered to be challenging targets that, if met, will drive significant
shareholder weaith creation.
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9 Additional statutory disclosures {continued)
9.2 Fair value of options granted in FY23 (continued)

Performance Metrics Performance petiod Testing Weighting {all KMP)
EPS growth X years 3 years 75%
Relative TSR’ 3 years 3 years 25%

The performance targets to be achieved by the Executives are set out below:

Performance Metric

Growth <5%

Growth >=5%, <15%

Growth »>=15%

EPS growth 0% vest

50% vest at 5% growth with linear vesting (50% to
100%) up to 15% growth

100% vest

Performance Metric

Fercentile <50

Percentile >250, <75

Percentile »=75

Relative TSR 0% vest

50% vest at 3Cth percentile for relotive TSR with
lingar vesting (50% to 100%) up to 75th percentile

100% vest

9.3  Equity instruments held by Directors and Key Management Personnel

XTX

The number of shares in the Group held during the financia! year by each Director and Exacutive KMP of Technology One Limited,
including their personally related parties, are set out below. There were no shares granted during the reporting period as compensation.

Balance at the start

Purchased during the

Balance at the end of

2023 of year year Sold during the year Other movements’ the year

Directors of Technology One Limited

P C'Sultivan 39779 - - - 10779

R MclLean 69,737 - (20,000) 149,737) -

J Macteggart 26,902,500 - (2,000,000) - 24,902,500

R Anstey 30,000 4,000 {14,000) - 20,000

Dr J Andrews 30,600 - - - 30,600

S Doyle 18,280 - - - o 18,280

C Rosenberg - 27,533 - - - - 27,833

P Ball 21,9010 - - - 21,96;)_

Balance at the start

Purchased during the

Balance at the end of

2023 of year year Sold during the year Other movements' the year
Senior Executives of the Group

£ Chung 200,068 257,535 {457,535} - 700,068
5 MacDoenald 46,367 54,000 {100,367} w-“2,8152 2,862
P Jobking o 68 142,583 - (142,583) (68) -
C Bennett - - - - - —
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Balance at the Purchased Sold during Other Balance at the
2022 start of year during the year the year movements' end of the year
Directors of Technology One Limited
A Di Marco - 17,378,500 (17,378,500} _
R Mclean 469,737 - - - 9,737
J Mactaggort 26,902,500 - - - 26,902,500
R Anstay 30,000 - - - 30,000
Or J Andraws 30,600 - - - 30,600
S Doyle 18,280 - - - 18,280
C Rosenberg 27,533 - - - 27,533
P Bol 2900 - - - 2900
P O'Sullivan 15,50% 24,270 - - 39779

Balance at the Purchased Sold during Other Balance at the
2022 start of year during the year the year movements? end of the year
Senior Executives of the Group
E Chung 200,068 172,876 {(172,874) - 00068
$ MacDonald 55,068 46,299 {55,000) - 46,367
P Jobbins 68 212,763 (212,763) - 48

9.4 Loans to Directors and Key Management Personnel

There have been no loans to Directors or Key Management Personnel during the financial year (2022: nil).

9.5 Other transactions with Key Management Personnel

During the year there were no transactions with the Key Management Personnel (2022: nil).
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10 Key questions

Key questions TechnologyOne approach

Why does our remuneration Qur Executive Remuneration Framework cligns with many commaen practices for ASX 100 companies but has been
framework have such a high adapted to meet the demands of the enterprise software market. Relative to our ASX-listed pesers, our Executives
weighting towards varioble receive:

rermuneration?

o) Relatively low fixed remuneration to enable a greater emphasis on performance.
bl Relatively large at-risk short-term incentive {§TH portion aligning Executives te current year performance.

f<l] Deferred STl component to help further drive iong-term shareholder wealth and ensure that we retcin high
performing Executives.

[dl Leng-term incentives (LTI linked to long-term strategy, targets, and shareholder wealth creation.

tel FY22 Retention LTI grants to ensure the retention of high performing technology industry executives during a
critical phase of growth and to ensure smooth transition from a founder-led company.

Winning of new business, driving continued profit growth in the current year is the key 1o our long-term success, and it is
for this reason our STl as a percentage of the total remuneration is significantly higher than our ASX-listed peers.

At the same time, the fixed remuneration for our Executives is comparatively low compared to our ASX-listed peers.

The significant weighting towards the STl encourages our Executives to drive new business and financial performance in
the current year, which creates Annual Recurring Revenue (ARR)' for future years, and therefore long-term success and
shareholder weakth.

TechnologyOne Executives are aligned to the leng-term outcomes of the business through the Deferred STl and o lorge
long-tarm incentive (LT and FY22 retention LTl) component.

The talent pool in Australia for Executives with large scale enterprise software companies is highly competitive.
Therefore, it is important to ensure that our remuneration framework is appropriately structured for the enterprise
software market. We believe that our remuneration structure offers the necessary flexibility and incentive to ensure that
we attract and retain talented Executives who understand the industry and, in turn, drive shareholder value.

Why is the KMP LTI based on Eamnings per share (EPS) growth and relative total shareholder return (FTSR) have been selected as appropriate
EPS growth and Relative TSR? performance measures, The rationale for the selection of these two measures is as follows:
«  EPS growth: Ensures that our Executives are remunerated in line with growth in shareholder wealth over the long
term.

- Relative TSR: Ensures that our Executives are remunerated in line with the Company's creation of sharehelder wealth
relative to our peers over the long term.

These two measures ensure we have LTI targets which are directly aligned with trends in shareholder wealth over the
long term.

There is debate among proxy advisors and investors about the use of TSR as an LTI mettic, with some for and some
against. Relative TSR may not be particularly useful as an incentive on its own, as management have little direct
influence over cutcomes, however, when combined with the EPS growth metric (which has been given o higher weighting
of 75%) we feel it results in a very effactive LTI for our Executive KMP. The combination of these metrics ensures that
Executives cre aligned with shareholder wealth creation (EPS growth} ensuring that performance is better than that of
our peers (rTSR).
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Key questions TechnolegyOne appreach

Why does the Relative TSR Relative TSR considers the relative performance of the Cormpany's share price, relative to the share price of its market
performance hurdle not have @ peers. For instruments to vest, the Company's performance needs to be better than that of our peers.

gate for positive TSR? If relative TSR is better than market peers, but represents a negative return, it is unlikely that there will be any intrinsic
value in the equity instrument, so the Executive is unlikely to realise any increased value at the time of vesting. Further,
the value of the instrument is cligned with shareholder experience, either positive or negative.

We belleve that this framework is consistent with our remuneration principle of commitment to simplicity.

Is our STI plan sufficiently The winning of new business, driving continued profit growth is the key to our long-term success. Having Executives
challenging with only one focus solely on net profit before tax (NPBT) ensures there is clear line of sight for Executives and transparency for
performance measure? shareholders as to how ST awards are determined. The setting of NPBT as the measure (rather than components

contributing to NPBT} give Executives the flexibility to be agile and choose appropriote strategies based on the market
environment and leveraging cpportunities to meet their targets.

NPBT incorporates the outcomes of the key drivers of our business including winning new annual recurring revenue
through new and existing customers, customer retention, expense management and margin expansion.

What is the rationale for having  An important element of the success of cur STl has been that it is uncapped on the upside and downside.

an uncapped STI? The greater the results in the current financiol year, the greater the STI. This not only encourages over performance in
the current financial year for the Company, it has a significant flow on effect in future years through the greater annual
recurring revenues for the Company. The uncapped STI also helps retain Executives over the long-term, because the
more they succeed, the more financial incentive there is to stay with us and continue to work hard to achieve each year,
and the greater benefit to our shareholders through an ever-increasing recurring revenue base.

Likewise, if the Company under-performs (e.g. loss of customers) or the results in a year are lower (e.g. impairment), there
is a significant financial impact to Executives as their ST forms a significant portion of their total remuneration. Just as
the STl is uncapped on the upside, it is also uncapped on the downside. Given that the Executive's fixed remuneration
percentage is significantly lower than cur ASX-listed peers, under-performance has a significant, negative impact on
their total remuneration.

This performance measure is well-aligned with the interests of shareholders, as NPBT cutcomes above target, rewards
shareholders as well as executives, Poor performance also penalises Executives as well as shareholders.
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10 Key questions (continued)

Key questions

TechnelogyOne approach

Why did we introduce a
Deferred STI?

A Deferred STl component was introduced in FY19 where an additicnal amount equat to 25% of the STl earned in the

year under review is awarded and deferred for a period of two years fie., 20% of tatal STI)

The award is only paid out to the Executive if they remain in emgloyment with the Company for the entire deferral

pericd. This deferral:

+  Assists in retaining high performing Executive KMP

. Halps further arive long-term sharehoider wealth via Executive skin in the game, fostering a leng-term mind set
among executives

. Provides opportunity to forfeit the award. Pricr to its award or vesting, the Remungration Committes considers
whether there are any iregularities or other factors that would affect the poyment or vesting of that award
{Malus Provision).

What is the rationale for
deferring 20% of the total
5Tl award, and not a highear
amount?

Cur Executives receive:

+  Reiatively low fixed remuneration to enable a greater emphasis on performance

«  Relatively large ot-risk short-term incentive (ST portion aligning Executives to current year performance

- Deferad ST| component to help further drive long-term shareholder wealth and ensure that weé retain high
performing Executives

Given the low fixed remuneration, and emphasis on performance related at-risk remuneration, it is not considered
appropriate to defer greater than 20% of the total STI.

Were Retention LTls granted?

No retention LTls were granted in FYZ3.

Does our remuneration
framework align our executives
with sharehelders?

TechnologyOne Executive remuneration continues to be clearly aligned with shareholder value creation. Qur Executives
have the greatest percentage of their remunerction at risk and aligned with Company performance when cormpared to
our peers,

Refer section 3.1 for our remuneration strategy and principles, and section 5.1 showing the creation of shareholder
wealth for the years ended 30 September 2023 compared to executive remuneration growth.

The Executive Remuneration Framework has successfully driven performance and the creation of shareholder wealth
over the longer term.
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Corporate Governance Statement

1 Corporate Governance
Statement

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsitle for its
corporate governance. The Board guides and monitors the business
and affairs of the Company on behalf of the shareholders oy whom
they are elected and to whom they are accountable.

The Directors have established guidelines for the operation of
the Board and its Committees. Set out below are the Company's
main corporate governance practices.

The TechnologyOne Board routinely considers industry
governance initiatives of benefit to the Company and its many
stakeholders. The Board has adopted the 4th Edition of the ASX
Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendaticns.

The Corporate Governance Statement, as well as supporting
documents are available on the Company's internet site:
www technologyonecorp.com/company/investors/
corporgte-governance

2 Board of Directors

The Board of the Cempany currently comprises eight Directors
and includes:

Non-Executive Chair -
Independent Board
{appointed 30/06/2022)

Pat O'Sullivan

Managing Director (appointed 15/08/2023)

Cdward Chung (CEO since 23 May 2017)

Non-Executive Director -
Majer shareholder {appointed 08/12/1999)

John Mactaggart

Non-Executive Director -

Richard Anstey Independent (appointad 02/12/2005}

Nen-Executive Director -

o) And
rlone Andrews | sependent (appointed 22/02/2016)

Non-Executive Director -

h Doyl
Sharon Doyle Independent (appointed 28/02/2018}

Non-Executive Director -

CIiff Rosenberg - yependent (oppointed 27/02/2019)

Non-Executive Director —

Sall
Peter Ba Independent (appointed 02/03/2020}

The following information is provided in the Corporate
Governance section of the Company’'s Annual Report:

Detaiis of names, qudlifications, skills, experience and dates
of appointment of ecch Board member.

The number of meetings of the Board and the names
of attendees.

Explanation of ary departures from the ASX Corporale
Governance Principles and Recommendations.
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The role of the Board is as follows:

- Setting objectives, goals and strategic direction for
management, with a view to maximising shareholder value.

+ Input into and ratifying any significant changes to the Company,

+  Adopting an annual budget and monitoring
financial performance.

- Ensuring adequate internal controls exist and are
appropriately monitored for compliance.

«  Ensuring significant business risks are identified and
appropriately managed.

+  Selecting, appointing and reviewing the performance of the
Chief Executive Officer / Managing Director.

- Setting the highest business standards and code of
ethical behaviour.

- Decisions relating to the appointment or removal of the
Company Secretary.

- To review and evaluate the performance of the Board as a
whole, each Committee, key Executives and each Director on
an annual basis.

The Board has the authority to delegate any of their powers to
committees consisting of such Directors and external
consultants, as the Board think fit. The Board has established
the following committees:

»  Audit & Risk Committee

+  Remuneraticn Committee

- Nomination & Governance Committee

Board papers are prepared for the Directers, containing detaited
operational reports from each region and department in the
Company, highlighting:

+  Cperational performance.

«  Initiatives undertaken/completed.

- Identified problems/risks and proposed solutions.

The Chief Executive Officer / Managing Director alsc prepares @
summary report that highlights:

Financial performance year to date, and ferecast for the
full year.
Key matters and significant issues.
+  Significant changes proposed.
Preposed strategic initictives.
+  Risk Management.
On a regular basis, members of the Senior Leadership Team are

invited to present to the Board directly and to answer questions
the Board may have.

The strategy of the Company, as well as matters reserved to the
Board, cre reviewed at least annually by the Board.



Matters Reserved to the Board

Matters that are reserved to the Board are as follows:

- Communications with shareholders and the market in general,
including ASX announcements, through the Board Chair.

+  Input into and subsequent approval of corporate strategy
and performance objectives.

+ Oversight of the Company’s governance policies, including
the Company's Code of Business Conduct.

«  Owersight and monitoring of the internal compliance with legal
and reguiatory obligations {e.9. ASX, ASIC, ATO, Whistleblower,
Workplace Health Safety)

+  Input into and subsequent approval of significant
organisational structure/restructure.

+  Review of the Chief Executive Officer / Managing Director
and Company Secretary to the relevant Code of Conduct
established by the Board.

Appointing and removing the Managing Director and / or Chief
Executive Officer and monitoring their performance respectively.

Input into and subsequent approval of the budget including
Operating Expenditure and Capital Expenditure, and any
significant variations.

Cversight of the Company, including its control and
accountability systems.

+  input intoc and subsequent approval of changes to internai
systems and controls.

Review, and dccept/reject recammendcations from
sub-committees such as Audit & Risk, Remuneration and
Nomination & Governance committees.

Input intc and ratifying any acquisitions and divestitures.

All other matters are referred to management via the Chief
Executive Officer / Managing Director. The Chief Executive
Officer / Managing Director are autherised to sub-delegate their
authority for the day-to-day opergtion of the Company.

Board Skills

As a collective, the Board has extensive commercial skills and
experience which provide a sofid base for the governance of the
Company. The Beard has a combination of experience in the
following core aredgs:
+  Strategic and Commercial Acumen
»  Finance and Taxation
+  Risk and Compliance
IT and Cemmunications Industry
Software and Product Development
+  Stort-ups and Early Stage Investments
Corporate Governance and ESG
Sales and Marketing
+  People, Culture and Conduct
+  Executive Management and Leadership
Listed Entities
+ International Business.

The Board as a whole benefits from the combination of the
Cirector's individual skills, experience and expertise in particular
areags, gs well as the varying perspectives that arise from the
Board's interactions through their diverse backgrounds.

The Board memkbership is to provide a suitable level of skills to
properly guide the Company and deliver the Company’s strategic
objectives and provide a solid base for governance.

The Board assesses its level of skills annually and will address

any requirements for additional skills that it feels would be in the
best interest of the Company in response to wider market factors
and the growth of the Company. The Beard has determined the
core skills for its governance of the Company. The Board has the
authority to appoint Directors and will consider the recommendead
agpointments as proposed by the Nomination & Governance
Committee. The Board will assess whether to recommend / not
recommend endorsement of a Director at each General Mesting.

Director Principles

The Directors operate in accordance with the following
broad principles:

- The Board should comprise of at least three members, but
no more than 10.

+  The Board may increase the numkber of Directors where it is felt
that additional expertise in specific areas is required. The size
of the Board is 1o be appropriate to all it to be effective and to
react quickly to opportunities and mitigote threats.

- The Board should be comprised of Directors with an
appropriate mix of skills, qualifications, expertise, experience
and diversity. The skills, experience and expertise which the
Board considers to be particularly relevant include those
listed cbove, In respect of diversity, the Board recognises that
diversity includes, but is not limited to gender, age, ethnicity
and cultural background. The Beard values diversity and
acknowledges the individual contribution that people can
make and the opportunity for innavation that diversity brings.

+  The Board shall meet on both a planned basis and an
unplanned basis when required and have available all
necessary information to participate in an informed discussion
of agenda items.

+  The Directors are entitled to be paid expenses incurred in
connection with the execution of their duties as Directors.
Each Director is therefore able to seck independent
professionc! advice at the Company's expense, where it is in
connection with their duties and responsibilities as Director.
The Company policy is that a Director wishing to seek
independent professional advice should advise the Board
Chair at least 48 hours before doing so.

+  The Directors and Officers will not engage in Short-Term
trading of the Company’s shares. Furthermore, the Directors
and Officers will not buy or sell shares at a time when they
possess Information which, if disclosed publicly, would be likely
to materially affect the market price of the Company's shares.
Information is not considered to be generally avdilable urntil a
reasonable time has elapsed to allow the market to absorb
these announcements. A detailed policy exists on this matter
- refer below, section: Trading in Company Securities.

+  Directors have a clear understanding of the corporate and
regulatory expectations of them. To this end, formal letters of
appointment are made for each Director setting out the key
terms and conditions, any special duties or arrangements,
remuneration and expenses, their rights and entitlements,
confidentiaiity and rights of access to corporate information,
as well as Indemnity ond Insurance cover provided.

+  Newly appointed Directors undertake an induction course
covering the Company's strategy, products and operations.
They are also provided a copy of the Company's constitution,
charters and key policies.
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2 Board of Directors (continued)

Director Principles (continued)

- Directors are reguired to disclose Directors' interests and any
matters that may affect the Director's independence. This
includes disclosure of conflicts of interest, which may include
transactions with family members or related entities.

If there is a potential conflict of interest, conflicted Directors must
immediately inform the Board and abstain from dellberations

on such matters. Such Directors are not permitted to exercise
any influence over other Board members. If the Board believes
the conflict of interest is material or significant, the Directors
concemed will not be allowed to attend the meeting or receive
the relevant Board papers.

Director Independence

The Board comprises a majority of independent Non-Executive
Directors who have broad commercial experience and tring
independence, accountability and judgement in discharging the
Board's responsibiities to ensure optimal returns to shareholders and
the ongoing provision of benefits to the Company’s employees.

The Board is required to disclose any material information that
could influence, or would be reasonably perceived to influence,
in a material respect ther capacity to bring an independent
judgement to bear on the issues before the Board and to act in
the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.

The independence of the Directors is assessed annually in
accordance with the ASKX Corporate Governnunce Principles
and Recommendations.

TechnologyOne will only enter into an agreement for the provision
of consultancy or similar services by a Director ar Senior Executive
or by a related party of theirs if TechnologyCne has independent
advice that the services being provided are cutside the

ordinary scope of their duties as a Director or Senior Executive;
the agreement is on arm’s length terms; and the remuneration
payable under it is reasonakle and with full disclosure of the
material terms to securityholders.

TechnologyOne has aligned its Committee composition strategy
to cemply with the ASX Corporate Governance Principles and
Recommendations, ensuring that newly appointed Directors are
made members of the appropriate Committees once they have
had sufficient time to develop a comprehensive understanding
of TechnologyOne's operations. All Committees are comprised of
independent Non-Executive Directors.
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Director Appointments

All Directors, both Executive and Non-Executive, receive written
notifications of their appointment and a new Directer induction
pack which details the terms and conditions of their appointment,
remuneration (including superannuation centributions), continuous
disclosure requirements {including interests in the Company),
ongeing confidentiality obligations, Company paolicies on when

to seek independent professional advice, and the Company's
indemnity and insurance measures.

Prior to appointment, apprepriate checks are undertaken on the
candidates and relevant information provided to sharehclders
to consider when voting on the election of the Director. Relevant
infermation is also provided for shareholders to consider when
voting to re-elect existing Directers upon rotation. Executive
Cirectors and Senior Executives of the Company will clso have
formal written employment agreements which set out the terms
of their employment, roles and responsikilities, reporting lines,
remuneration, confidentiality and termination provisions,

All Directors and Senicr Executives are required to comply with
key corporcte policies which include, but are not limited to, Cede
of Business Conduct, Share Trading Palicy, Insider Trading Policy,
Privacy Policy and Diversity Policy.

All new Directors and Senior Executives participate in the Company’s
formal on-boarding program which includes an induction program
which incorporates meetings with key Senior Executives.

The Board has the authority to appeint Directors and will consider
the recommended appointments as proposed by the Nomination
& Governance Committee. The Board will assess whether to
recommend / not recommend endorsement of a Director at each
General Meeting.

3 Company Secretary
Company Secretaries are appointed by the Board by resolution.

Company Secretaries are accountable directly to the Board,
through the Board Chair.

The role of the Company Secretary is as follows:

«  Advising the Board and Committees on governance matters.

Monitoring adherence of Board and Committees to policies
and procedures.
Coordinating timely completion and despatch of Board and
Committee papers.

»  Ensuring business at Beard and Committee meetings is
accurately captured in the minutes.

+  Helping to organise and facilitate induction and prafessional
development of Directors.



4 Audit & Risk Committee

The Board has established an Audit & Risk Committee.
The committee is comprised of:

Peter Ball {Chairn Independent Non-Executive Director

Dr Jane Andrews Independent Non-Executive Director

Sharon Dovyie Independent Non-Executive Director

The role of the committee is to assist the Board in discharging its
obligations with respect to the following areas:

1.  Financial Reporting

+  Ensure the integrity in financial reporting {refer section below —
Safeguard Integrity in Financial Reporting).

+  Review for accuracy financial statements for each reporting
period prior to approval by the Board, and publishing.

- Ensure required declarations from the Company's Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer are received for
each reporting period.

«  Ensure that the financial statements for each reporting period
comply with apprepriate accounting standards.

+  Regularly review Accounting Standards and Company Policies
in conjunction with the Auditors and recommend adoption/
changes to the Board.

Directly follow-up action where considered necessary.

+  Relay any matters of concern to the Board.

2, Tax Governance

Qversight of the Company's group taxation matters and
ongoing development.

Review of taxation governance processes, policies, control
framewaork and reporting.

3. Internal Audit

- Ensure that systems of internal control cre functioning
effectively and economically and that these systems and
practices centribute to the achieverment of the Cempany’s
corporate cbjectives.

+  Ensure the Internal Audit Function maintains a high standard
of performance.

4. External Audit
Receive and review reports from the external Auditor.
Qversight of the process to ensure the independence and
competence of the Company’s external auditors.
Review the performance of the external auditor on an
annual basis.

Recommend the selection and the appointment of the
external Auditors, based on specified criteria.

5. Compliance

+  Monitor compliance with the requiremeants of the Corporations
Act, Listing Rules, Australian and Foreign Taxaticn Offices
and other related legal obligations.

é. Risk Management

Oversee the ongoing development by management of an
enterprise-wide risk management framework for management
of material risks.

- Pericdically review the acdequacy and effectiveness of
the Company's policies and procedures relating to risk
management and compliance.

+  Make recommendations to the Board on key risk
management matters and levels of risk appetite.

+  Oversight of the insurance portfolio with considerction of
material risks, including cyber risk and information security.

Thne committee meets at least four times per year, with full
minutes being kept, and reports to the Board on a regular basis.
The number of meetings held during the year and the attendance
of the members is provided in the Annual Report.

The Audit & Risk Committee Charter is availakle on the
Company's website.

Principles of the Audit & Risk Committee

The committee operates in accordance with the following broad
principles:

+  Advise and assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities
relating to financial management, risk oversight and reporting
functions and in safeguarding the Company's assets.

+  Provide a means of easy access to the Board for the external
auditors in order to assist them in performing their functions.

«  Assign the Secretary of the Committee such duties and
responsibilities as the Cormmittee may deem cppropriate.

+  Toke cctions as necessary or prudent to fulfill the
responsibilities of the Committee, provided that no acticn will
be taken without prior approval of the Board.

- TechnologyOne requires the rotation of the external qudit
partner every five years. The Audit & Risk Committee includes
memkers who are financially literate; and at least one member
who has financial expertise, preferably a qualified accountant.
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5 Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a Rermuneration Committee.
The committee is comprised of:

Dr Jane Andrews (Chair)  Independent Non-Executive Director

Cliff Rosenberg Independent Non-Executive Director

Peter Ball Independent Non-Executive Director

The role of the committee is:

«  To advise the Board with regard to the Company’s broad
policy for Senior Executive and Director remuneration.

+  To determine, on behalf of the Board, the individual
remuneration packages for Senior Executives and Directors.

+  To give the Company’s Senior Executives encouragement
to enhance the Company's performance and to ensure
that they are fairly, but responsibly, rewarded for their
individual contribution.

+  To consider the vesting of any deferred remuneration
including deferred STI & LTI to assess whether there are any
irregularities or other factors that would affect the payment
or vesting of that award (that is, consider whether to apply
malus provision or utilise discretion).

Non-Executive Directors' remuneration is determined by the Board
within the aggregote amount per annum which may be paid in
Directors' fees.

Executives are not present for Committee discussions on Senior
Executive remuneration.

The number of meetings held during the year and the attendance
of the members is provided in the Annual Report.

The Remuneration Committee Charter is available on the
Company’s website.

Principles of the Remuneration Committee

The Committee operates in accordance with the following
broad principles:

The Cemmittee should provide the packages needed to
attract, retain and motivate Senior Executives, but avoid
paying more than is necessary.

The Cemmittee should judge where to position the Company
relative to other companies. Be aware of comparable
companies’ pay, but exercise caution.

+  The Committee should be sensitive to the wider scene,
aspecially regarding salary increases.
Performance related elements should form a significant

proportion of the package; should align interests with those of
sharehclders; and should provide keen incentives.

The Committee should ensure that the framework remains
largely consistent year on year with any changes designed to
motivate executives rather than destabilise them.
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6 Nomination & Governance
Committee

The Board has established a Nomination & Governance
Committee.

The Committee is comprised of:

CIiff Rosenberg (Chair) Independent Non-Executive Director

Sharon Doyle Independent Non-Executive Director

Dr Jane Andrews

Independent Non-Executive Director

The role of the Committee is as follows:
- Assessment of the necessary and desirable competencies
and experience for Beard membership.

+  Consideration of the membership of the Board, Audit & Risk
ang Remuneration committees

+  Bvaluation initially and on an on-geing basis of Non-Executive
Director's professional development, commitments, and their
ability to commit the necessary time reqguired to fulfill their
duties to a high standard.

+  Adherence by Directors to the Director's Code of Conduct
and to good corperate governance.

«  Review of Board succession plans.
+  Recommendation for changes to Committees.

+  Recommendation of, and undertaking the appropriate checks,
before the appointment of new Directors.

+  Recommendation of, and undertaking the appropriate checks,
for the endorsement or non-endorsement of existing Directors.

+  Ensuring that an effective induction process is in place for
new Board members.

- Review and oversight of the Company's Corporate
Governance Statermnent and governance related policies.

+  Review and oversight of the Company's Environmental, Sccial
& Governance (ESG) strategy and Sustainability Reporting

+ Oversee compliance with Modern Slavery Regulations

The number of meetings held during the year and the attendance
of the members is provided in the Annual Report.

The Nomination & Governance Committee Charter is available on
the Company's website,



Principles of the Nomination & Governance
Committee

The committee operates in accordance with the following
broad principles:

The Nomination & Governance Committee is entitled to seek
the advice of an external consultant.

The Nomination & Govermnance Committee will make
recommendations to the Board. The Board is responsible

to appoint the most suitable candidate, after receiving
recommendations from the Nomination & Governance
Committee. The nominated appointee upon acceptance will
hold office until the next Annual General Meeting, where the
appointee will stand for election.

The name of all candidates submitted for election as
Director is accompanied with necessary information required
by shareholders to make an informed decision including
biographical details, competencies, qualifications, details

of relationships between the Company, the candidate and
incumbent Directors; other directorships held, particulars

of other positions held which involve significant time
commitments, and any other particulars required by law

or goed corporate governance. For existing Directors
standing for re-election, the number of years as a Director of
TechnologyOne will also be provided in the Annual Report.

Directors [with the exception of a Managing Director if
appointed by the Board) must stand for re-election every
three years in accordance with the Company’s Constitution.
One third of the Directors retire from office at each Annual
General Meeting and are eligible to neminate for re-election.

A structured process has been established to review

and evaluate the performance of the Board and its
Committees. This process also identifies ways to improve
thelr perfermance, interaction with menagement, and quality
of infermation provided.

The following information is provided in the Annual Report:

The skills, experience and expertise relevant to the position
of Director.

The names of Directors considered by the Board to
constitute independent Directors and the Company’s
materiality thresholds.

The term of office held by each Director at the date of the
Annual Repert.

The number of meetings held by the Nomination &
Governance Committee and the names of attendees.

Explanation of any departures from the ASX Corporate
Governance Principles and Recommendations.

Assessment of Director Independence

The Board has determined that an independent Director will meet
all the following criteria:

.

Is not an Executive Director {i.e. not @ member of the
management team).

Is not a substantial shareholder of the Company, as defined
by Section ¢ of the Corporations Act, or an officer of
company that is a substantial shareholder.

Is not directly asscciated with a substantial sharehoider
of the Company.

Within the last three years, has not been employed in an
Executive capacity by the Company or another group
member, or been appcointed a Director within three years after
ceasing to held such employment.

Within the last three years, has not been a principal of a
material professional adviser or a material consultant te

the Company or another greup member, or an employee
materially associated with the service provider.

Is not @ material supplier or customer of the Company or other
group member, or an officer of or otherwise asseciated, either
directly or indirectly, with a material supplier or customer. This
includes family members being in these categories.

Has no material contractual relationship with the
Company or ancther group member other than as a
Director of the Company.

ls free from any interest and any business or other relationship
which could, or could reasonably be perceived to, materially
interfere with the Director's ability to act in the best interest of
the Company.

Making Ife simple for our community 49



Corporate Governance Statement

7 Corporate Governance Principles & Recommendations

7.1  Ethical Standards and Code of Business Conduct

All Directors, Senior Executives and employees are expected to
act with the utmaost integrity and objectivity, observe the highest
standards of behaviour and business ethics, and always strive to
enhance the reputation and performance of the Company.

A Code of Business Conduct has been established which is
applicable to each of the following:

- Directors

+  Chief Executive Officer / Managing Director
- Chief Financial Officer

- Chief Qperating Officer

+  Senior Executives

- Employees

The Code of Business Conduct has been approved by the Board
and given their full support.

The Cade of Business Conduct addresses:

+  Responsibilities to shareholders and customers.

+  "The TechnologyOne Way”, which refers to the success of the
Company coming from our shared values, our entrepreneurial
spirit and innovation.

- Employment practices (including diversity, inclusiveness,
anti-discrimination, workplace health and safety).

« Respunsibilities 10 the community.
+  Responsibilities to the individual,

+  Compliance with the codes,

In addition, all employees have employment agreements, which
include job descriptions that describe their duties, rights and
responsibilities.

In conjunction with the Code of Business Conduct,
TechnologyOne has developed a Whistleblower Policy, Modern
Slavery Policy, Supply Chain Pelicy and Bribery & Corruption
Policy. The Whistleblower Pclicy encourages employees to come
forward with concerns thot the entity is not acting lawfully,
ethically or in a socially respensible manner and provides
suitable protections if they do. The Board will be informed of
any material concerns raised that call inte question the culture
of TechnologyCne or have been raised under the Bribery &
Corruption Policy. The Whistleblower Hotiine is facilitated by an
externdl, independent third party and they provide translation
services for those where English is not their primary language.

The Board is informed of any material brecches of the Code of
Business Conduct by a Director or Senicr Executive and of any
other material breaches of the code that call into question the
culture of the crganisation.
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Diversity Policy

TechnologyOne has an inclusive Diversity Policy which covers the
broader dimension of diversity covering aspects of gender, age,
disability, ethnicity, marital or family status, religious or cultural
background, sexual orientation and gender orientation within the
total organisation, including the Board, and senicr management.
In conjunction with this policy, the Company has measurable
chbjectives which are assessed and reported in the annual report.

The Board has developed and has oversight of the following
diversity objectives:

Ensuring compliance with the published Diversity Policy.

Not less than 30% of the Board to be of each gender by 2025
{tc allow for the Board transition)

70% of all vacant roles are to have at least one female
candidate shortlisted.

+  Mcintain reperting measures that are in compliance with both
the ASX guidelines and Workplace Gender Equality Agency.

Continue to identify employee feedback mechanisms through
the review of axisting forums and information provided as
well as the identification of appropriate new mechanisms for
employee consultation.

Maintain existing educational pregrams that support diversity
including but not limited to induction, on boarding and
leadership programs.

The diversity of TechnologyOne remains fundamental to our
ohgeing success. TechnologyOne has established a Diversity
Folcy which retlects the Company's commitment to providing an
inclusive workplace.

A summary of the Diversity Policy is following:

Diversity is one of TechnologyOne's strengths. TechnologyOne
values this diversity and recognises the individual contributicn
our people can make and the epportunity for innovation such
diversity brings.

+  TechnologyOne believes that we will achieve greater success
by providing our people with an environment that respects
the dignity of every individual, fosters trust, and allows every
person the cpportunity to realise their full potential.

+  TechnologyOne is committed to providing an inclusive
workplace and cur commitment to diversity extends to our
interactions with customer and suppliers.

+  TechnologyOne's remuneration policy includes @ commitment
to equal pay for men and women. We conduct a gender pay
gap analysis annually, following which we investigate any
potential gender bias in performance pay, and correct
like-for-like gaps.

The Company’s 2023 Werkplace Gender Equality Agency report
can be found on the ‘Corporate Governance’ section of the
Company’s website.

TechnologyGne continues its strong suppoert for the involvement
of women In the technology sector, including building on strong
relationships with groups such as Women in Digital and being the
proud sponsors of the Women in Digital Transformation Leader of
the Year award.

TechnologyOne has policies in place in relation to anti-discrimination,
workplace gender equality, diversity, sexual harassment, flexible
working arrangements and paid parental leave.

Further detdils are available in the TechnologyOne Sustainability
Report, published on the Company website each year.



7.2 Sofeguard Integrity in Financial Reporting

The Company has established ¢ structure of reviews and
authorisations designed to ensure the truthful and factual
presentation of the Company’s financial position. This includes:

s The establishment of an Audit & Risk Committee, and the
review and consideration of the aecounts by the Audit &
Risk Committee.

Process to ensure the independence and competence of the
Company's external auditors.

+  Reguirement that the CEC and CFQ state in writing to the
Board that the Company’s financial reports present a true
and fair view in all moterial respects of the Company‘s
financial condition; operational results are in accordance with
the relevant accounting standards and the Company's Risk
Management and Interncl Compliance and Control System is
operating efficiently and effectively in all material respects.

+  Ensuring that the Company's external Auditor attends the
Company's Annual General Meeting each yeaor.

- Verification of statements and data supplied in the annual
Directors' report and other corporate reports to ensure that
the releases to the market are aecurate, balanced and
understendable and provide investors with appropriate
information to make informed investment decisions.

- Disclosure of the annual tax transparency statement.

The Company put the external audit services to tender in 2020
which is another example of how the Company expresses its
dedication to ensuring integrity of the financial reporting is
maintained.

7.3 Continuous Disclosure

The Company Secretary working closely with the Board Chair,
CEQ and CFO have been delegated responsibility for the
continuous disclosure of informaticon te the market, to ensure:

All investors have egual and timely access to material
information concerning the Company, including its financial
position, performance, ownership and governance.

»  Company announcements are factual and presented in a
clear and balanced way, requiring the disclosure of both
positive and negative information.

«  When analysts are briefed on aspects of the Company's
operations, the market is forewarned, and the materials
used in such presentations are also relegsed to the ASX
and posted on the Company's website.

Any information that a reasonable person would expect to
have o material effect on the price or value of the Company's
share price (as per Listing Rule 3.1) is immediately notified to
the ASX.
The Company has established a decumented procedure to
handle continuous disclosure requirements. Directors are provided

with copies of all announcements made under listing rule 3.1
promptly once made.

7.4 Risk Assessment Management

The Company has adopted an active approach to risk
management and the Board recognises that the Company’s
participation in commercicl and operational activities require
certain level of risk. As such, the Beard has delegated the risk
management function to the management of the Company with
oversight by the Audit & Risk Committee. A standing Item has
been included in the Audit & Risk Committee agenda to consider
the Enterprise Risk Register.

The Board has received assurance from the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer that the declaration provided
in accordance with section 295A cf the Corporations Act is
founded on a sound system of risk management and internal
control and that the system is operating effectively in all material
aspects in relation to the financial reporting risks.

The risk appetite of the Company considers the levet of risk and
risk combinations that the Board is prepared to take to achieve
strategic cbjectives together with the level of risk shock that the
Company is able to withstand.

The Company performs risk reviews at least semi-annuailly and
has identified several key risk categories for the business.

Material Risks

Cyber Risk

TechnologyOne has successfully completed the Information Security
Registered Assessors Program (IRAP) assessment for PROTECTED
classified dato. This provides our Saas customers with an increased
cyber security posture and greater certainty in o constantly evolving
cyber security landscape. This was achieved by leveraging the
strong compliance and security foundations established over recent
years and is a testament to TechnologyOne's mature security
practices, accountability mechanisms and belief in continuous
assessment and improvement.

The Company has a rebust data security and privacy program
developed to meet the requirements set out in Australia’s

Privacy Amendments (Notifiable Data Breaches) Act 2017, UK
Data Protection Act 2018 (DPA Act) and the EU General Data
Protection Regulation. This program ensures security is considered
throughout the day-to-day operations of the Company and

is backed by an independently verified process for dedling
promptly with matters should they arise. The Company alsc is
certified to the standards required In ISO27000, 1ISC?001, SOCH,
SOC2 and SOC3 {Service Organisation Controls).
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7 Corporate Governance Principles & Recommendations {continued)

7.4 Risk Assessment Management (continued)

People Risk

The Cempany needs to ensure we gttract, retdin, develop
and foster the talent, skills and knowledge needed to deliver
ambitious goals.

The Company manages people risk through:

Education of the Company's mission, values and purpose.

+  Career progression and succession, remuneration and
achievement and reward initictives.

«  Wellbeing initiatives — physical, mental, and financial
{including provision of an Employee Share Plan and gym
facilities for employees).

+  Leadership training and coaching.

+ eNPS surveys and retention / turnover reporting and analysis.

+  Promgtion of the success of the Company internally and
externally.

«  Afignment of education of the Company’s and departmental
strategies, and empowerment to deliver.

- Graducte, intern and global mobility prograrm.

The Board is provided with a summary of these initiatives at each
board meeting.

Building the Future Risk

The Company sets ambitious geals for its future growth which are
delivered on through:

«  Alignment and education of the Company’s and department
strategies and empowerment to deliver.

- Product success, Practice Management, Customer Success
Teams, and trices and ‘Brains Trust' groups established.

- Ongoing and frequent engagement with customers and user
groups and early adepter programs.

Continuous investrment in R&D and 'tribal days' including
Hack Day.

Cngoing monitoring of operating environment and
competitors.

Other Risks

The Company's focus on risk management is primarily conducted
through the Audit & Risk Coemmittee, with o number of identified
areas of specific risks as follows:

Contract Risk

The Company has established a Contract Approval Process that
reviews all proposed new contracts with non-standard terms prior to
signing to ensure the contracts can be fulfiled, the risks are known
and can be managed, and that the contract can be completed
profitably without exposing the Company to ongoing liabilities,

Financial Risk

The Chief Financial Cfficer, in conjunction with the Chief Executive
Officer / Managing Director, review the Company’s financial
exposure with a particular focus in the area of Qutstanding
Debtors, with oversight by the Board,
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Software Risk

The Company has a rigorous product development process that
reviews Software Release management, including resourcing ond
development issues.

Insurance Risk

The Audit & Risk Committee reviews the Company's insurance
requirements on an annual basis and compares this to the

level of cover provided to ensure it is adequately covered. A
recommendation is then provided to the Board for the placement
of the Company’s insurance pcolicies.

Project Risk

The Board requires the Chief Executive Officer / Managing
Director to report on any customer implementation project that
may be at significant risk of either incurring substantial penalties
or Incurring substantial over-runs. In addition, the Company has
established @ Customer Experience Team that reviews current
projects and consulting activities to provide an early detection
mechanism to ensure that any activities that pose a significant
risk to the Company are identified and reseclved before exposing
the Company to potential liabilities.

Sustainabitity Risk

The Company believes that it does not have material exposure
to specific economic, environmental, or social sustainability risks
due to controls implemented. However, the company recognises
the importance of these to its stokeholders and has developed
a Sustainability Regort to outline the Company's peosition and
initiatives across several sustainability risks.

The Sustainability Report provides the Company’s initiatives
and targets on items including:

+  Diversity

+  Customer satisfaction

+  Employee satisfaction

«  Corporate culture

= Ethical business practices

«  Supply chain

- Community support

+  Environmental sustainability practices

The Company has engaged external subject matter experts to
assist in the preparation of environmental risk reporting aligned
with the Taskforce for Climate-related Financial Disclosure (TCFD)
recommendations. The Board acknowledges that climate change
is both an environmental and economic issue. TCFD disclosures

are now provided in the Financial Statements and in the annually
published Sustainability Report.

Suppliers to TechnologyOne are expected to comply with all
applicable local, national and international laws and regulations,
including in relaticn to bribery and corruption, medern slavery and
ethical conduct. TechnologyOne undertakes due diligence of all
new suppliers and has initicted an annual supplier attestation
process to ensure our suppliers continue to comply.

The Sustainability Report is available on the Company's website.



7.5 Accounting Standards and Company Policies

Adhering to Accounting Standards and Company Policies,
and the appropriate interpretation of such policles/standards, is

seen as critical to managing the financial risk of TechnologyOne.

Accounting Standards and Company policies are reviewed
on a regular basis by the Audit & Risk Committee working

in conjunction with the Auditors, and recommendations for
adoption/change are made to the Board. Compliance with
Accounting Standards and Cempany policies are included as
part of the Auditors annual review.

Internal Controls and Compliance

The Company has an internal control framework that consists of:

Written policies and procedures.
- Division of responsibilities to ensure appropriate segregation
of duties.

«  Careful selection of high calibre well qualified staff.

TechnologyOne undertakes Internal Audits in accordance with
the Internal Audit schedule as approved by the Audit & Risk
Committee. These audits are undertaken by the Governance,
Risk & Compliance Team and reported directly through to the

Audit & Risk Committee. The scope cf the Internal Audits includes

evidencing the responses to the semi-annual Management
Attestations, ensuring the controls listed in the Enterprise Risk
Register are operaticnal, confirming findings from the previcus

audit are complete and to ensure that company-wide processes

are being complied with.

independent auditors are engaged to review the Company's
internal controls and complionce and to provide a report to the
Audit & Risk Committee. The Audit & Risk Committee oversees
the Company's compliance program with relevant international
standards (including 1SO 9001, 27001, 2717 and 27018, SOC 1, 2
& 3. IRAP and UK Cyber Essentials).

The Company has established Practice Management teams in
each business area to undertake reviews of compliance with
certain operational policies and procedures. Each Practice
Management Team provides quarterly reporting of their findings
tc the Audit & Risk Cormmittee. An independent audit of the
Practice Management reviews is undertaken by the Internal
Audit tearn annually.

7.6 Remuneration Principles

TechnologyOne believes in the full disclosure of remuneration of
its Directors and Key Management Personnel to the market, on
at least an annual basis. Disclosure includes all menetary and
ncn-menetary remuneration including salary, fees, non-cash
benefits, bonuses or profit share accruing each year irespective
of payment, superannuation contributions, entitlements at
termination or retirement, value of shares or options issued and
sign-cn payments.

As a matter of principle, TechnologyCne has adopted the
following guidelines to motivate Directors and Senior Executives
to pursue long-term growth, and ensure their interests and these
of the sharehaolders are closely aligned:

+  Remuneration packages should be set in the context of what
is reasonaile and fair, considering the Company’s legal and
industrial obligations, labour market conditions, the scale of
the business and competitive forces.

- Non-Executive Directors should be remunerated solely on the
basis of a cash payment, plus superannuation contributions
as required by law. Non-Executive Directers should not be
provided with bonuses, options, performance rights cr loans.
They should not participate in schemes designed for the
remuneration of Senior Executives. The Company does not
provide o Director's Retirement Plan.

+  Non-Executive Directors will not be provided termination or
retirement payments other than statutory superannuation,

«  Company Senior Executives (including Executive Directors)
should be provided with @ significant component of their
expected salary on "an at-risk basis”, tied to the Company's
profit target. Shares, Options or Performance Rights may
also be provided as part of the "at risk component”, but
these must be tied to performance hurdles. The performance
hurdles cre to be reascnable, objective and measurable.
Vesting of securities is also subject to malus provisicns.

+  Termination payments should be agreed in writing and in
advance if any are to be provided.
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7 Corporate Governance Principles & Recommendations (continued)

7.7 Performance Evaluation

Board

The Board meets annually for the purpose of reviewing

and evaluating the performance of the Board as a whole, each
Committee, key Executives and each Director individually in
meeting key responsibilities and achieving its objectives.

The following areas were considered by the Board in its 2023
annual review:

Performance evaluation of Directors and Senior Executives,

Review of skills and experience of the Board for current
operations of the Company and identification of any
shortfalls.

+  Board Chair, Director and CEQ succession planning.
+  Review of each Director’s independence status.

+  Review of skills matrix to ensure relevance of required skills.

To assist the Beoard in maximising its effectiveness, the Board
and Nomination & Governance Committee have a skills matrix to
provide objective information apout each Director and the Board
during the past year.

Each Director is encouraged to discuss any issue concerning
Board performance with the Baard Chair at any time.

Directors are encouraged to maintain and improve thelr
knowledge, skills and expertise through briefings, seminars and
attending professional development programs.

Remuneration of the Board Ts ¢ssessed every three (3) years
against comparotive data for Australian publicly listed companies
supplied by on independent cansultont and reported to the
Remuneration Committee. The relative risk, time, effort, complexity
of the underlying business, competency of the management
team, financial performance and track record, clarity of strategy
as well as the number of Board meeting required to oversee the
business are used as benchmarks to determine the appropriate
level of Director's fees. For years where a formal assessment of
remunerction is not conducted, the Director's fees are increased
by the Australian Consumer Price Index (CPI).

Senior Executives

The perfermance of Senior Executives is reviewed and
evaluated annually by a combination of the Company's
internal performance management program and as part of the
formal remuneration review that is conducted annually by the
Remuneration Committee.
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7.8 Trading in Company Securities

The Directors have resclved to adopt the following pclicy in relation
to tiading by Directors and Officers in the Company's shares.

The Directors and Senior Executives will not engage in
Short-Term trading of the Company’s shares.

The Directors and Senior Executives will not buy or sell shares
at a time when they possess information which, if disclosed
publicly, would be likely to materially affect the market price
of the Company's shares. Information is not considered to be
generally available until a reasonable time has elapsed to
allow the market to absorb these announcerments.

The Directors and Senicr Executives are not permitted to use the
Company's shares as security for margin leans. To assist Directors
and Senior Executives in abiding by these principles Trading
Windows have been established, relating to when Directors and
Senior Executives can buy and sell the Company’s shares. These
Trading Windows are open for 50 days following the full and half
year result releases.

At all times, the Director or Senior Executive must notify the Board
(s a minimum the Board Chair) in cdvance of any intended
transactions involving the Company’s shares, It is recognised that
there may be circumstances where it may not be appropriate for
Directors and Senicr Executives to buy and sell within the above
Trading Window In the event the Company is involved in strategic
initiatives {such as acquisitions), which could materially offect the
market price of the Company's shares.

The Directors and Senior Executives must advise the Company
Secretary of any completed trades immediately once each
transaction is done. This will allow the Company Secretary
sufficient time to notify the ASX of the change in shareholding
within the required period.

A register of Director’s holdings is made available for inspection
at every Board meeting.

This policy cpplies to Directors and Senior Executives (including
their nominee companies) and the entities which they control.

For the purpose of this Policy, Senior Executive is deemed to
include the following parties:

{a)  persons named by the Chief Executive Officer / Managing
Director from time to time who may be involved in
strategic issues

(b) persons named by the Chief Executive Officer / Managing
Director from time to time who are invelved in
financial reporting

(c}  Senior Executives of the Compaeny as defined as Officers
in section 9 of the Corporations Act being: ‘any person by
whatever name called who is concerned or takes part in the
management of the Company’.

In addition to the policy for Directors and Senior Executives, all

employees are reminded of the Insider Trading provisions of the
Corporations Act, Staff are reminded of their obligations during
the Trading Windows.



7.9 Shareholders’ Rights and Communication

The Board of Directors cim to ensure that shareholders are informed
of dll major developments affecting the Company's state of affairs.
The information is commuricated to shareholders, and forms part of
the Company's two-way investor relations program:;

« By ensuring that all shareholders can elect to receive
information and communications from the Company's share
registry either physically or electronically and can update
their preferences through the share registry.

+ By the Annual Report being distributed to all shareholders.

The Board ensures the Annual Report contains all relevant
information about the operations of the Company during the
financial year, together with details of future developments and
cther disclosures required under the Corporations Act 2001,

+ By publishing its Notice of Meeting and Explanatory
Memaorandum for each Annual General Meeting (AGM) or
other such meetings as required from time to time.

« By encouraging shareholders to attend and participate in the
Company’s Annual General Meeting,

+ By encouraging shareholders to participate in proxy voting
should they be unable to attend the Company's AGM.

+ By enabling shareholders to pose questions to the Company
in the lead up to the AGM for responding during the meeting.

+ By facilitating polls for each resolution voted during an AGM.
By the | lalf Year results released to the market;

By disclosures forwarded to the ASX under the Company’s
continuous disclosure obligations.

Through the Company’s website, under a special area called
investor Relations.

+ By the Company's participation in scheduled briefings with
institutional shareholders and security analysts.
By the participation of the Company’s Auditers and Soliciters
at the AGM.

TechnologyOne held its incugural hybrid technology AGM in
February 2023 with favourable feedback from its shareholders.
TechnologyOne informed its shareholders at that meeting that it
will continue to utilise this hybrid technology whenever possible
for future AGMs, to encourage shareholder participation for
those unable to attend in person. TechnologyCne does value the
cpportunity to meet with our shareholders face-to-face so will
continue to offer that also for AGMs.

All information communicated by the Company is in accordance
with its continuous disclosure requirements under ASX Listing Rule 3.1.

Legislative changes to the Comporations Act 2001 {Cth) effective
from 1 April 2022, means that companies are no longer

required to send shareholder communications by mail unless
specifically requested.

TechnologyOne aims to centinually reduce our carbon emissions
and to maintain carbon-neutrdlity, while continuing to provide
effective communications to shareholders. By no longer

sending shareholder communications by mail as the default
position, we save time and cost, and it helps reduce our carbon
footprint. Shareholders can still elect to receive some, or all,
communications by mail if they choose.

Shareholders are encouraged to review or update their
communication preferences through the Company’s share registry
provider. Contact details are available on the Company's website
through the Investor Refations area.

8 ASX Corporate Governance
Principles and Recommendations
4th Edition Compliance

The Company has complied with all the recommendations
cutlined in the Corporate Governance Principles and
Recommendations 4th Edition.
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Voluntary Tax Transparency Report

TechnelogyOne has a strong commitment to transparency

and compliance. TechnologyOne supports the cbjectives of the
Government and the Board of Taxation to provide stakeholders
with additicnal information and confidence that a company is
compliant with their statutory okligations.

The information provided complies with the standard of
disclosure expected of ‘large businesses' under the Voluntary
Tax Transparency Code.

The requirements of the Code are broken into Part A, which forms
part of the tax notes as referenced below and Part B as disclosed
below. The make-up of the respective parts is as follows:

(a) Part A:

Effective company tax rates for our Australian and global
operations (Note 7). The effective tax rate of the Australian
Group for FY23 is 21%

+ A reconciliation of acccunting profit to tax expense and to
income tax paydable (Note 7)

ldentification of material temperary and non-temporary
differences {Note 7}

(b) PartB
Tax policy, tax strategy and governance
Information about international related party dealings

- A tax contribution summary of income tax paid.

Information in relation to the year ended 30 Septermnber 2023 is
set out below.

Our Approach to Tax

TechnologyOne has a tax governance framework which has been
approved by the Board. Tax falls under the aversight of the
Audit and Risk Committee.

Tax is one of a broad range of commercial factors that is taken into
account when assessing and undertaking investment activities.

TechnologyOne is conservative in its approach to tax risk.
TechnologyOne dims to achieve full compliance with tax obligations
in ecch tax jurisdiction in which it operates. In accordance with its
commitment to best practice corporate governance and a culture
of excellence, TechnologyOne will not enter into any arrangements
that may be regarded as tax evasion.

The Tax Risk Governance Pelicy includes a framework for the
internal escalation process for referring matters to the CFQ.

The CFO must report any material tax issues to the Board.
TechnologyOne will not pursue aggressive tax positions or
strategies or adopt positions that are not akle to be supported
ar defended in a court of law. Where the tax law is unclear or
subject to interpretation, advice is obtained and when necessary,
the Australian Taxation Office {(ATO) [or other relevant tax
authority} is consulted to ensure certainty.

TechnologyOne has & strong history of complionce and an
open engagement with relevant tax authorities. We seek
to be co-operative and transparent and to maintain
collaberative rejationships.
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International related party dealings

TechnologyOne seeks to ensure all intercompany transactions are
undertaken in accordance with the arm'’s iength principle.

TechnologyOne has an Advanced Pricing Arrangement (APA) with
the Australian Taxation Office.

As an Australian headguartered company, we have created
and maintained significant intellectual property in Australia
which has been successfully utilised in our cverseas operations.
Our engagement with the ATO through the APA process, seeks
to ensure Australia receives a commercial return for the use of
intellectual property by our overseas businesses. These returns
are taxable in Australia.

In additicn, loans are made to and received from foreign
controlled entities for short-term, madium-term and long-term
funding requirements. As a large glokal group, these transactions
assist with managing cash flow and funding requirements.

Tax Contribution Summary

Below is a summary of the taxes paid, collected and remitted by
TechnologyOne to the relevant revenue authorities during the
financial year ended 30 September 2023.

Consolidated

Year ended 30 September 2023 Global Group AUD

Corporate income toxes 16,425,205
Fringe benefit taxes 1021240
Payroll taxes 9,;-02,510
_T;l“et GST/VAT taxes 44,673,070
Employee taxes remitted 62,327,444
Total 133,960,169
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Financial Statements

Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 30 September 2023

30-Sep-23 30-Sep-22
Notes ($'000) {($'000}
Revenue - Saa$ and continuing business 426,379 358,668
Revenue - Legacy licence business 2,999 2566
Revenue from contracts with customers E 429,378 368,234
Qther income 5 11,985 1,157
Total Revenue 441,363 349,391
Variable costs (21,031) 120,701)
Variable customer SaaS costs {34,863) {26,350)
Total varicble costs {55,894) {47,051
Occupancy costs (3,304) {2,539)
Corporate costs {32,305) 120,370)
Depreciation and amortisation & {53,502) {38,110}
Computer and communication costs {9,715) (10,458)
Marketing costs (13,724) (8,685}
Employee costs ) {135,115} (124,66%)
Share-based payments 6 (5,827) (3,353}
Finance expense (2,123) ) {1,844}
Total operating costs (255,615) (210,020}
Profit before income tax 129,854 112,320
Income tox expense 7 (26,978} (23,477}
Prefit for the year 102,876 88,842
Cents Cents
Basic earnings per share 3 T 2751
Diluted earnings per share Kyl 31.54 27.38
The above consolidated income statement sheuld be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 September 2023
30-Sep-23 30-5ep-22
{$'000) ($-000)
Profit for the year (from above) 102,876 £8,843
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 3,500 (3.198)
Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the period, net of tax 3,500 (3,194)
Total comprehensive income for the period 106,376 85,647

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated statement of financial position

As at 30 September 2023
30-Sep-23 30-Sep-22
Notes {$'000) {$'000]
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8 198,265 175,865
Financial assets 9 25,000 -
Prepoyments 25,151 20,379
7Trc:de and other receivables 10 62,416 57,2664
Contract assets il 22,891 21540
Other current assets 12 1127 400
‘Contrc:ct acquisition costs 14 9,576 6,505
Total current assets 344,426 282,155
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 13 13,315 8,505
Right-of-use assets 21 22,641 2310
Intangible assets 14 59,510 59,452
Capitalised development 4 148,618 126,509
Deferred tax assets 15 21,382 21060
Contract ossets 1 3,618 4881
Contract acquisition costs 14 23,227 13.873
Total non-current assets 292,31 257,790
Tetal assets 636,737 539,945
_LIABILITIES
Current ligbilities
Trade and other payobles 16 49,247 48,559
Provisions 18 21277 20,902
Contingent consideration 19 - 6,997
Deferred revenue 7 214,495 184,008
Current tax licbilities 9,923 2784
Lease liability 2 8,894 7.897
Total current liabilities 303,836 271,147
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 20 2,545 2,200
_Other non-current kobifities 68 @4
Lease liability 2 24,262 27,407
Total non-current liabilities 26,895 29,701
Total liabilities 330,731 300,848
Net assets 306,006 239,097
EQUITY
Contributed equity 22 67,466 57,635
Cther reserves 23 99.604 81875
Retained earnings 138,936 99,587
Total equity 306,006 239,097

The above consclidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying nates.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 September 2023

Contributed Retained Dividend FOREX Share option
aquity earnings reserve reserve reserve Total equity
Note (5'000) ($'000) ($'000} {$'000} {$'000) {$'000)
Balance as at 10ctober 2022 57,635 99,587 41,455 (1238) v BT
Profit for the period - 102,876 - - - 102,876
Exchange differences on translation of reserves - - - 3,500 - 3,500
Total comprehensive income for the period - 102,876 . 3,500 -
Dividends paict 24 - - {56,605} - - (56,605)
Transfer to dividends reserve - (63,527} 63,527 - - -
Exercise of share options 22 8,139 - - - - 8139
Employee share-based compensation 22 1,692 - - - 244 1936
Share based payments 32 - - - - 3,907 3,907
Tax impact of share trust - - - - 31546 3154
2,831 (63,527) 6,922 - 7,307 {39,467}
Balance at 30 Septermber 2023 67,466 138,936 48,377 2,262 48,965 306,006
Balance as at 1 October 2021 51,645 65,872 32,454 1,958 38,305 190,234
Profit for the period - 88,842 - - - 88,5843
Exchange differences on translation of reserves - - - 13,196) - {3,196}
Total comprehensive income for the period - 88,843 - (3.196) - 85,647
Dividends paid 24 - - {46,427) - - (46,127)
Transfer to dividends reserve - {55,128} 55,128 - - -
Exercise of share options 22 5990 - - - - 5990
Share based payments 32 - - - - 3,353 3,353
Tax impact of share trust ) - - - - - _
5990 {55,128) 2,001 - 3,353 (35,784)
Balance ot 30 September 2022 57,635 99,587 41,455 (1,238} 41,658 239,097

The above consolidated statement of changes n equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 30 September 2023

30-Sep-23 30-Sep-22
Notes {$'000) [$'000}
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers {inclusive of GST) 501,247 413,885
Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of GST) [292,567) (251,407}
Interest received 3,536 423
Net income taxes paid [146,434) (18,339}
Interest poid (2,123) (1,844)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities 30 193,659 142,718
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for property, plant and eguipment 13 {7,770} {3,767}
Payments for development expenditures and intangibles 14 (82,358) (63,515}
Fayments for investment in short-term deposits ? (25,000) -
Net cash inflow / {outflow) from investing activitias {115,126) {67,282)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from exercise of share options 8,139 5920
Principal repayments of lease liobilities 21 (7.757) (3.652)
.Dlw'dends poid to shareholders 24 {56,605) (46,127}
Net cash inflow / {outflow} from financing activities (56,223) {43,859)
Nat increase / {decrease] in cash and cash equivalents 22,310 31577
Cash and cash equivglents at the beginning of tha perind 175,865 144,210
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents Q0 78
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 8 198,265 175,845

The above consclidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

1 Summary of significant accounting policies

The financial report of Technology One Limited (the Company} for the year ended 30 September 2023 was quthorised for issue in

accordance with a resolution of Directers on 20 November 2023.

Technology One Limited (the Company} is a company limited by shares incorperated in Australia whose shares are publicly traded on

the Australion Securities Exchange.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated, The financial statements are for the consclidated
entity consisting of Technology Cne Limited and its subsidiaries. The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Group are

described in the Directors' report.

{a) Basis of preparation

The financial report is a general-purpese financial report
prepared by a for profit entity, which has been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act
2001, Australian Accounting Standards and cther authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board.

The financial report is presented in Australian dellars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars {$000) unless
otherwise stated.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of
the previcus financial year as no new or amended Standards or
interpretations were applicable in the current year.

Certain comparative iterns have been reclassified in the financial
statements to align with the 30 September 2023 year end disclosures.

() Compliance with IFRS

This financial report also complies with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the Internaticnal
Accounting Standards Board.

(i} New accounting standards and interpretations

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of
the previous financial year.

(  Issued but not yet effective

No new standards or amendment to an existing Standard have
been issued that will have a matericl impact to the Group.

(i) Critical cccounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the use

of certain critical cccounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise Tts judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounting paolicies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or cemplexity, or greas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in note 3.
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(b} Principles of consolidation
() Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate

the gssets and liagilities of all subsidiaries of

Technology One Limited (Company' or ‘parent entity') as

at 30 September 2023 and the results of all subsidiaries

for the year then ended. Technology One Limited and its
subsidiaries together are referred to in this financial report as
the 'Group' or the 'Consolidated entity”.

Intercormpany transactions, balences and unrealised gains on
transactions between companies are eliminated, Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of the impdirment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the poficies adopted by the Group.

{il Employee Share Trust

The Group has formed a trust to administer the Group’s
employee share scheme. This trust is consolidated, as the
substance of the relationship is that the trust is controlled by
the Group. At 30 September 2023, the Group had

167,813 treasury shares (2022: 260,813).

Treasury shares are shares in the Group that the Employee
Share Trust holds for the purpose of transferring shares under
the TechnologyOne employee share scheme.



(i} Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method under AASB 3 Business Combinations. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, which is measured at acguisition date fair value,
and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree.

For each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred
and included in administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financiat
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractuat terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisiticn date. This includes the separation of embeddead
derivatives in host contracts by the acguiree.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as equity Ts not
remeasured and its subsequent settlement is accountad for
within equity. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability that is a financiai instrument and within the scope
of AASB @ Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value
with the changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in accordance with AASB 9. Other contingent
consideration that is not within the scope of AASB @ is
measured at fair value at each reporting dote with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill is initially measured ot cost (being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any previcus
interest held over the net identifiable assets acquired and
ligbilities assumed). If the fair value of the net assets acquired
is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the
Group re-assesses whether it has cerrectly identified all of
the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and
reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be
reccgnised at the acquisition date. If the reassessmeant still
results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired
over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is
recognised in profit or loss. After initial recognition, goodwilt is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

For impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the combination, irespective of whether other

assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
{CGW) and part of the operation within that unit s disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation

is included in the carrying amount of the operatien when
determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed

in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
values of the disposed operation and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

{c) Foreign currency translation

{} Functional and presentation currency

lterns included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's operaticns are medasured using the currency of the
prirmary economic environment in which the entity operates
{'the functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Australian dollars, which is Technology One
Limited's functional and presentation currency.

(i} Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated inte the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing ot
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement.

(it Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
{none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translcted inte the presentation
currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are transloted at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position

+ Income and expenses for each income statement
and statement of comprehensive income are transicted
ot average exchange rates {unless this is not a
reascnable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the daotes
of the transactions)

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
cthar comprehensive income.
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Notes to the consolidated

financial statements

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Revenue recognition

The Group has the following key revenue categoeries:

1 Saas Fees

2 Annuat Licence Fees
3. Consulting Services
4

Initial Licence Fees

The accouriting policies for each of these categories has been
set out below:

Revenue categories
1. SaaS Fees

Revenue from term SaaS contracts are recognised on a daily
basis over the term of the contract. Included within this category
is revenue from contracts for annual Saas licences as well as
Platform services associated with initial licence fees. The Group
considers that Saas licence contracts represent a right to
access the Group's licenced intellectual property and as such
the performance obligation is fulfiled over the contract term.

Payment terms in respect of SaaS Fees are typically annual
within 14 to 30 days of invoice. Invoiced amounts are reflected
in trade and other receivables until poid.

Unsatisfied performance ckligations in respect of Saas Fees
received or receivable are recognised as deferred revenue in
the consclidated statement of financial position. Refer to
note 17 for details of deferred revenue.

Costs incurred in obtaining the customer contract are expensed,
unless they are incremental te obtaining the contract and the
Group expects to recover those costs. Costs that meet the
criteria for capitalisction will be amoertised cver the life of the
contract that they relate to. The Group has identified certain
commission costs as meeting the criteria of directly related
contract costs. These costs are capitalised in the month in which
they are incurred and amortised over an average contract term
of 5 years. The movement in the year and the closing balance
of this asset is disclosed within note 14 as ‘contract acquisition
costs”. This balance is presented as ‘contract acquisition costs' in
the statement of financial position.
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2,  Annual Licence Fees

Revenue from Annual Licence Fees are recognised daily
over the term of the contract. The Group censiders that
the performance cbligation in respect of these services is
satisfied over time.

Payment terms in respect of Annual Licence Fees are typically
annual within 14 tc 30 days of invoice. Invoiced amounts are
reflected in trade and other receivakles until paid.

Unsatisfied performance obligations in respect of Annual
Licence Fees received or receivable are disclosed as deferred
revenue in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Refer to note 17 for details of deferred revenue.

3. Consulting Services

Consulting services includes services for software and project
services revenue.

Revenue from these services is recognised as services are
rendered, typically in accordance with the achievement of
contract milestones and/or hours expended.

4. Initial licence fees

Initial licence fees includes both perpetual licence fees and
subscription term licences and are recognised on provision of
the software. The Group considers that such contracts represent
a right to use the Group's licenced intellectucl property and as
such the performance cbiligation is fulfiled at the point in time at
which the customer receives the licence key.

Payment terms in respect of Initial Licence Fees are typically
within 14 toc 20 days of invoice. Invoiced amounts are reflected
in trade and other receivables.

Perpetual licence fees are typically invoiced upfront on
signing the contract but subscripticn term licences are bilied
annually throughout the subscription period.

As the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time
{i.e. at contract delivery), there are no unsatisfied performance
chilgations in respect of Initial Licence Fees.

The Group considers the effects of variable consideration,
reviews the contracts to identify if a significant financing
component exists and considers the standalene pricing of the
initial licence fees when allocating the transaction price of the
contract to the performance obligation.



Associated contract balances

Censistent with AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, the timing of revenue recognition, customer
invoicing and cash collections results in the recognition of
trade and other receivables, contract asset and deferred
revenue (contract liability} on the Group's Consolidated
statement of financial position, As deferred revenue
represents payments received or receivable in advance from
custormers for Saas Fees and Annual Licence Fees which will
be recognised in future pericds, and not a future cash outfiow,
this balance does not impoct the Group's ability to meet its
short-term obligations as and when they fall due.

Revenue Groups disclosed in the consolidated
income statement

The Group has the following revenue groups:
i. Revenue — $aa$ and continuing business

The Group defines continuing business as those revenue streams
that form part of the growth strategy. Namely this includes SaaS
fees, Annual Licence Fees and Consulting Services.

iil. Revenue - Legacy licence business

The legacy licence fee business encompasses the sale

of initial licence fees which will continue to decline as

our customers transition to Saas, growing the SaaS and
continuing business revenue, Included within this revenue
group is Annual Licence Fees recognised from the date the
associated initial licence is delivered until the end of the first
financial yecr post signing,

{e} Income tax

The income tax expense or benefit for the pericd is the tax
payable on the current period's taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated based on the

tax laws enacted of substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the Group's subsidiaries
cperate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.

It establishes provisions where appropriate based on amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liakility method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
licbilities and their carrying ameunts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred incomne tax is not accounted

for if it arises fror initial recognition of an asset or figblity in a
transaction other than @ business combination that at the time

of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit

or loss except for transactions that, on initial recognition give rise

to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as
recognition cf an ROU Asset and a lease liability. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates {and laws} that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
reclised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future
taxable amounts wili be available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary
differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments
in foreign operations where the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the tempeorary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset cument tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation cutheority.
Current tox assets and tox liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
bas’s, or to redlise the asset and settle the liablity simuitcneously.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be availakle to
allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and lichilties are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Technology One Limited and its wholly cwned Australicn
controlled entities have implemented the tax consclidation
legislation. Consequently, these entities are taxed as a single
entity and the deferred tax assets and liabilities of these entities
are set off in the consolidated financial statements.

The head entity, Technology One Limited, and the controlied
entities in the tax consolidated group account for their own
current and deferred tax amounts. These tax amounts are
measured as if each entity in the tax consolidated group
continues to be a stand-alone taxpayer.

The Group has applied the Group aliocation approach in determining
the appropriate amount of curment taxes and deferred taxes to allocote
to memisers of the tax consclidated group. The current and deferred
tax omounts are measured in a systermnatic manner that is consistent
with the broad principles in AASB 112 Income Taxes.

The Group created an Employee Share Trust in 2009 which allows
an employee on the exercise of an option to hold the resultant shave
in the Trust. In accordance with AASB 112, on granting the opticon,

the Group records a deferred tax asset on the expected value of
the share, if the amount of the tax deduction (or estimated future
tax deduction) exceeds the amount of the related cumulative
remuneration expense, the difference is recognised directly in equity.
When the employee exercises the cption, the tax effect difference
between the actual market value and what was recorded as a
deferred tax asset is recognised in equity.

The Group is entitled tc claim special tax offsets in relation to
qualifying expenditure (namely the Resecrch and Development Tox
Incentive regime). In relation to nen-refundable tox offsets, the Group
accounts for such allowances as tax credits, which means that the
allowance reduces income tax payable

and current tax expense.
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(fil Segment reporting

An operoting segment is o component of an entity that
engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and
axpenses relating to transactions with other components
of the same entity}, whose operating results are regularly
reviewed by the entity's chief operating decision maker

to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segment and assess its performance and for which discrete
financial information is available.

Operating segments have been identified based on the
information provided to the chief operating decision maker
- being the Managing Directer and Chief Executive Officer.

Operating segments that meet the quantitative criteria as
prescribed by AASB 8 Operating Segments are reported
separately. However, an operating segment that does not
meet the quantitative criteria is still reported separately where
information about the segment would ke useful to users of the
financial statements.

(g) Leases

AASB 16 Leoses sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to recognise most leases on the balance sheet.

The Group's lease portfolio primarnly consists ot property leases.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
range of different terms and conditions.

Lease contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their
relative stand-alone values.

Lease liability

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value
of outstanding lease payments {including those to be made
under reasonably certain extension options). The payments
used in this calculaticn include the following:

+  fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable,

+  vaoriable lease payment that are based en an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date,

- amounts expected to be payable by the group under
residual value guarantees,

- the exercise price of a purchase option if the group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and;

- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the group exercising that option.

The lease payments above are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily determinable.
This is not the case for the Group's current leases. When the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable
AASB 16 requires the use of the incremental borrowing rate to
caiculate the present value of the lease payments.
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This rate is the rate of interest that a lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary te purchase the right of
use asset, over a similar term and with & similar security, in
similar economic environment.

In the absence of borrowings the Group uses the relevant
interest rate swap curve as the starting point in determining
the incremental borrowing rate. In line with the accounting
standard the Group ensures the swap curve rate reflects
the term of the leases, the value of the leases and the
creditwerthiness of the Group.

Once the lease liability has been recognised on the balance
sheet the periodic lease repayments are allocated between

an interest and a principal element. The interest is charged to
profit or loss over the lease pericd so as to produce a censtant
periodic rate of interest on the rermaining balance of the fiability.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on anindex ora
rate are recognised as expenses in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

Right~of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is initially calculated as being equal to
the lease liability and then adjusted for the following:

- Lease payments made on or before the commencement
date less any incentives received,

< Any initial direct costs, and;

- An estimate of restoration costs.

This right-of-use asset is then depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the calculated lease term.

Right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment testing
under AASB 136 Impairment of assets.

Short-term assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases (i.e, those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase opticn). Payments associcted with
short-term leases are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in profit or loss.

(h} Variable costs
The components of variable costs comprise:

»  Costs incurred in obtaining an initial licence fee contract as
well as incentives on achievernent of KPIs. These are
expensed as incurred.

- Costs incurred in fulfilling the contract with a customer are
capitalised if the requirements in AASB 15 are fulfiled and
are then amortised in line with the satisfaction of the related
performance obligation. The expense is recognised within
the Depreciation and Amortisation line of the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss.

() Vvariable customer Saa$ costs

Variable customer SaaS costs relate to costs incurred in providing
our customers with access to our Saa$ Platform, These costs are
expensed as consumed.



) Impairment of assets

Goeodwil and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are testad annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in crcumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be receoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped

at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at the end of each reporting period.

(k) Financial assets and liabilities

Financial instruments recognised in the statement of financial
position include; cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, contract assets, lease liabilities, trade payables
and contingent consideraticon.

() Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets and financiat liabilities
into the fellowing measurement categories;

»  those to be measured at amortised cost
(using the effective interest method} and;

+  those to be measured at fair value with changes through
the profit or loss (FVPL).

Classification into these categories is based on an assessment
of the Group's business modei for managing its financial
instruments and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

(il Measurement

Amortised cost

Financial assets are intially measured at fair value.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price. Financial
assets and liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method.

Further adjustments to the carrying value of the financial
instrument will arise if there is a modification to the contractual
cash flows creating a gain/loss in the measurement or if there
is no longer ¢ reasonable expectation of recovery of a financial
asset, resulting in a write-off.

Fair value through profit and loss (FVPL)

The finongial instrument is measured at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recognised in profit and loss as they arise.

{il} Impairment

The Group recognises impairment losses on its financial assets
carried at amortised cost using an expected credit losses
{ECL) model, in line with AASB ¢ Financial Instruments. The ECL
model essentially aims to calculate the assets’ credit risk. It
involves consideration of scenarios that would lead to default,
calculating the shortfall between what is contractually due
and what would be received under each scenario and then
multiplying the shortfall/loss by the probability of the default
situation occurring.

The Group has elected tc apply the AASB @ Financial
Instruments' simplified approach to measuring expected
credit losses which uses a lifetime expected credit loss
allewance for all trade receivables and contract assets.

The Group has also made use of the practical expedient
available for calculating expected credit losses for Short-Term
receivables. This practical expedient involves using a
“provision matrix” to calculate the loss allowance. This matrix
is based on historical default rates over the expected life of
the trade receivables, adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

A é-month historical default rate is applied to the trade
receivables balance to calculate the expected credit loss.
This appears as a provision against the trade receivables
kalance. Movements in this provision are recognised as

an expense in the consolidated income statement to the
extent that the related revenue has been recognised in the
consolidated income statement. If a receivable balance is
identified as being unrecoverable it is written off against the
allowance for expected credit losses,

{l Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpcse of presentation in the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held

at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.
Investments with original maturities over three months are classified
as fingncial assets in the statements of financial pesition. Cash

and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated statement
of cash flows, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

{m) Trade and other receivables

Trade and cther receivables are recognised initiclly at transaction
price which is deemed to be fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methed.
Trade receivables are typically due for settlement within

14 to 3C days.
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Notes to the consolidated

financial statements

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.
Depreciation is calculated on a stroight-line bosis cver the
estimated useful economic lives of the assets as follows:

Office furniture and equipment 3 -1 years

Computer software 3 - 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if apprepriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (note 1(j).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carnying omount, Thaese are included in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(o) Intangible assets

(! Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group's share of the net identificble
assets of the acquired subsidiary/associote at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is Included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised. Instead,
goodwill is tested for impairment annually, or more freguently
if cvents or changss in Circunslunces indicule thal it might be
impaired and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those
cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business combination in
which the goodwill arose (note 14},

(i} Intellectual property/source code

Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at
cost, and if acquired as a result of a business cormbination,
capitalised at fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, the cost model is applied to all
classes of intangible assets. The useful lives of the intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite, Where
amortisation is charged on intangible assets with finite lives,
this expense is recognised in the Income Statement through
the 'depreciction and amortisation expense’ line item.
Intongible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment
where an indicator of impairment exists. Useful lives are
examined cn an annual basis and adjustments, where
applicable, are made on a prospective basis.

Intellectual Property/Source Code 5 - 8 years
Customer contracts 6 -12 years
Trade names 8 — 12 years

Gains or losses arising from the de-recognition of an
intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income when the intangible asset is derecognised.
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(i} Sottware development

Research expenditure is recegnised as an expense as
incurred. Research costs are largely made up of employee
labour which is included in employee costs in the
consolidated Income Statement. Development expenditure
is only capitalised if the recognition requirements within AASB
138 Intangible Assets have been fulfiled and an economic
benefit of more than 12 menths is expected.

Costs that are directly asscciated with the develepment of
this software are recognised as an intangible asset where the
following criteria are met:

(o) The technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

{b) Intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

{c)  Ability to use or sell the intangibie asset;

{d) How the intangible asset will generate probable
economic benefits. Among other things, the entity can
demonstrate the existence of a market for the cutput
of the intangible asset or the intangible asset itself
or, if it is to be used internally, the usefulness of the
intangiole asset;

(e}  The availability of adeguate technical, financial and
other rescurces to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

{t}  Abiity to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.

As a SaaS company, access is provided to our products via a
SaaS plotform over a prolonged term. The technical feasibility
of our products can be established through pre-defined
project roadmaps.

TechnologyOne follows d robust process to ensure the accuracy
of the amounts capitalised on the balance sheet. The costs
included in the balance are costs of personnel and other directly
attributable costs incurred in the development of scftware.

The process for determining what constitutes capitalisable
expenditure under AASB 138 involves a detailed analysis of all
timesheet data available regarding projects that employees
have worked on during the year and cther directly attributable
costs In respect of software development spend.

Capitalised software development costs are recognised as an
intangible asset and amortised over their estimated useful lives,
which is considered to be five years. Software development
costs are capitalised as "under development” until the products
to which the costs relate become available for use. At the point
in which the products become available for use, the costs are
transferred from “under development” to "in use” and amortised
from that point {refer to categorisation in note 14). Development
costs previously recognised as expenses are not recognised as
assets in a subsequent period.



{p) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for gcods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are
unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within
30 days of recognition.

{gq) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
cbligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific te the liability. The inCrease in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised qs interest expense.

(1 Employee benefits
(i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits and annucal leave expected to be settled within

12 months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect of
employces’ services up to the end of Uie ieporting period
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
the liabilities are settled. Liabilities for sick leave, which are
non-vesting, are recognised when the leave is taken

and measured ot the rates paid or payable.

(i} Deferred STI

An amount equal to an additional 25% of the annual STI
earned by Executive KMP in the year is deferred and paid

at the conclusion cf the two-vear period following the end
of the financial year. It is accrued aver a three-year period
from the annual performance period in which it is determined
and deferred for a two-year period following the end of the
financial year.

(i} Long service leave

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision
for employee benefits and is measured as the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting period. Consideration
is given to expected future wade and salary levels, experience
of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future
payments are discounted using market yields at the end of

the reporting period on national corporate bonds with terms to
maturity and currency that match, as closely as pessible, the
estimated future cash outflows.

(iv)] Share-based payments

The Group provides benefits to certain employees in the form

of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services in exchange for rights over shares. The costs

of share-based payment transactions with employees are
measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments
ct the date at which they are granted. Refer to note 32.

The cost of share-based payments is recognised, together
with o corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled,
endging on the date on which the relevant employees become
fully entitled to the award (the vesting period). If aptions or
rights do not vest at the end of the performance period due
to the service condition or non-market condition not being
met, the corresponding expense will be reversed.

{s) Contributed equity
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Issued and paid up capital is recognised at the fair value of the
consideration received. Any transaction costs arising on the issue
of ordinary shares are recognised directly in equity as a reduction
of the share proceeds received.

{t} Earnings per share
() Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

The profit attributable to owners of the Group, excluding
any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares

By the weighted cverage number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year
and excluding treasury shares.

(i} Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

«  The after income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares

The weighted average number of additional ordinary
shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

(u) Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being
appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of

the entity, on or before the end of the reporting pericd but not
distributed at the end of the reporting period.

(v} Goods and services tax {GST) and equivalent
overseas value added taxes

Revenues, expenses and dssets are recognised net of the amount
of associated GST, uniess the GST incurred is not recoverable
frorm the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of
the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of
GST receivable or payalle. The net amount of GST recoverable
from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other
receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components
of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which
are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are
presented as operating cash flows,
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

- L] [
2 Financial Risk Management
Financial instruments recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position include; cash and cash equivalents, investments,

trade and other receivables, lease liabilities, trade paycbles and contingent consideration.

It is, and has been throughout the period under review, the Group's policy that no trading In financial instruments shall be undertaken.
The main risks arising from the Group's financial assets and liobilities are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Board reviews and agrees poalicies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

{a) Interest rate risk

At balance sheet date, some of the Group's cash and investment assets are exposed to movements in variable interest rates.
The Group does not hedge this exposure. Interest rate risk on cash and investments is not materfal.

{b) Foreign currency risk

As a result of operations in New Zealand, Malaysia, Papua New Guineq, the United Kingdom and Europe, and sales contracts
denominated in different currencies, the consclidated statement of financial position can be affected by movements in the exchange
rates applicable to these geographical locations and currencies.

The Group does not hedge this risk. The Group's exposure to foreign currency changes is not significant.
At balance date, the Group had the following exposures in Australian doliar equivalents of amounts to foreign currencies which are not hedged:

2023 2023 2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
PGK EUR usp HKD usp PGK EUR
{$'o00) ($'000) ($'0C0) ($'000) ($'0CO} ($'000)  ($'000)

Trade recelvables 1,193 344 191 &5 11 104 106

{c) Credit risk
The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade and other receivables and contract assets) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions.

To manage this risk the Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the
result that the Group's historic experience of credit loss is not significant. Information on credit risk exposures is contained in note 10.
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(d} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the financial liabilities of the Group and the Group's subsequent ability to meet their cbligations to repay their

financial liabilities as and when they fall due.

The below table represents the financial assets under note 2(c) and the liquidity risk of financial liabilities referred to in note 2(d).

Less than Between 1 Over5 Total contractuat
12 months and 5 years years cash flows
{$'000) ($°000) (3'000) {3000}
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2023
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash eguivalents 188,265 - - 198,265
Financial assets 25000 - - 25000
Trade and cther receivables 62,416 - - 62,416
Total 285,681 - - 285,681
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trade and ether payables 49,247 - - 7 49,247
Contingent consideration - - - -
Lease liabilities’ 10,609 24,867 1640 37,116
Total 59,856 24,867 1,640 86,363
Net inflow / (outflow) 225,825 {24,867 {1,640} 199,318
Less than Between 1 Owver 5 Total contractual
12 months and 5 years years cash flows
($000) ($-000) {$'000) (3’000}
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
FINANCIAL ASSETS V -
Cash and cash equivalents 175,865 - - 475,865
Trade and other receivables 57,266 - - 57266
Total 23313 - - 233,131
FINANCHAL LIABILITIES
“;F-rade and other payableg M562 - - 41562
Contingent consideration 6,997 - —_ 6,997
Lease liabilities® @715 27276 2,635 - 38,626
Total 58,274 27,276 2,635 88,185
Net inflow / (outflow) 174,857 (27.276) (2,635) 144,946
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2 Financial Risk Management
{(continued)

{e} Fair value measurement

Contingent consideration was classified as Level 3 In the prior
year. The release of the contingent consideration that does not
represent payment is recognised within the other income line of
the consolidated income statement while any payment would
be applied against this provision. For further details please refer
to note 19.

Contingent consideration

2023 2022

{$'000] ($'000)

Opening balance 6,997 7,576
Reversal of contingent consideration (7,378) -
Foreign Exchange movement 381 (579)
Closing bolance - 6,997

The carrying value of trade and other receivables, contract assets
and trade payables are assumed te approximate their fair value
due to their short-term nature.

{f} Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakehoiders through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance,

The Group's current conservative capital structure does not
include debt funding.

The equity funded positicn of the Group is managed by the
Board through dividends, new shares and share buy backs as well
as the issue of new equity where considered appropriate to fund
business ccguisitions.
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3 Critical accounting estimates
and judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated ond are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that may have a financial impact on the entity

and that are believed to be reascenable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future, The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates

and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

(i Impairment of goodwill and other assets

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note Hol(i). The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units have been determined based ¢n value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of
assumptions. Refer to note 14 for details of these assumptions
and the potential impact of changes to the assumptions,

All other assets are reviewed for indicators or objective
evidence of impairment. If indicators or objective evidence
exists, the recoverable amount is reviewed.

(il Share-based payments

The Group provides benefits to certain employees in the form

of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services in exchange for rights over shares. The costs

of share-based payment transactions with employees are
measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments
at the date at which they are granted. Refer to note 32.

The cost of share-based payments is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditicns are fulfifed,
ending on the date on which the relevant employees become
fully entitled to the award (the vesting pericd). In the event
that the rights over shares do not vest at the end of the
performance period, the expense relating to the unvested
rights is reversed. No expense is recognised for awards that
do not ultimately vest due to not meeting the non-markat
conditions or service conditions.

(i} Capitalisation of development costs

The Group capitalises costs related to software development.
Software development costs are recognised upon meeting
the criteria set out in note 1(ollii)l. The carrying value of

these costs are reguiarly reviewed for impairment. Software
development costs are amortised over a peried of five years.

(iv} Legal Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
cbligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The group recognises legal provisions based on the proeability
and management’s best estimate of the outcome of the claim.



4 Segment information

(a) Description of segments

The Group's chief operating decision maker (CoDM), being the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer Executive Officer, makes
financial decisions and dllocates resources based on the information received from the Group's internal management system. Sales are
attributed to an operating segment based on the type of product or service provided to the customer.

Segment information is prepared in conformity with the accounting policies of the Group cs discussed in note 1and the Accounting
Standard AASB 8 Operating Segments.

The Group's reportable segments are:

- Software - consists of Sales and Marketing, R&D, Saa$ platform.

- Consulting - responsible for services in relation to our software.

+  Corporate - includes all corporate functions.

Intersegment revenues/expenses are where one operating segment has been charged for the use of another's expertise.

Royalties are a mechanism whereby each segment pays or receives funding for thelr contribution to the engoing success of the Group,
For example, Software pays Corporate for the use of corporate services.

The chief operating decision maker views each segment’s performance based on revenue post royalties and profit before tax.
No reporting or reviews are made of segment assets, liabilities and cash flows and as such this is not measured or reported by segment.

{b) Segment information provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker

Software Consulting Corporate Total
2023 {$:000) ($'000) {$7000) {$'000}
REVENUE
Saas fees' 316,181 - - 316,181
Annual licence fees' 37,203 - - 37,203
Consulting services' N - %’3;183 - ) ?31&37
Initial licence fees? 2,81 - - 2,81
klntersegment revenue {555) 738 (183) -
Net royalty {72,372) (7,738) 80,110 -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 283,258 66,183 79,927 429,378
Other income 377 - 11,608 11985
EXPENSES 7 V
Total external expenses (185-,-876) 152,360 (-?3,273) (311,509)
Profit before tax 97,769 13,823 18,262 129,854
Income tax expense {26,978}
Profit for the year 102,876
Total assets 636,737
Total liakilities 330,75
Total depreciation and amaortisation 7 53,502}
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4 Segment information (continued)

Software Censulting Corporate Total
2022 ($'000) ($'000) {$'000} ($'000)
REVENUE
Sacs fees' 216,812 - - 216,812
Annual licence fees’ 70,221 - - 70221
Consulting services' - 72,670 - 72670
Initial licence fees? ) 787,‘531 - - 8,531
Intersegment revenue (443) 602 - 7(1‘;;}‘;;)7 T -
Net royalty (66,320) {7,300) 73,620 -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 228,801 65,972 73,261 348,234
Other income 583 - 574 1157
EXPENSES
kTotc] external expenses 1151,202) 49121 (56.5:8{ {257,071)
Profit before tax 77,482 15,851 17,987 112,320
Income tax expense (23,477
Profit for the year 86,843
Total assets 539,945
Total liebilities 300,848
Total depreciation and amertisation ) 7 {38,10]
{c) Other segment information
() Segment revenue
2023 2022
($:'000) ($'000)
Australia 350,364 302,486
New Zealand and Asia Pacific 47?155 40,482
APAC total 397,549 342,968
United Kingdom 31,829 25266
Total segment revenues from sales to external customers 429,378 368,234
(il Segment assets
2023 2022
{3'000} ($'000)
Australia 547,457 442497
New Zealand and Asia Pocu:i-f-i; 23,4447 37,901
APAC total 570,211 480,398
United Kingdom 44,444 33,487
Teta! segment assets' 615,355 518,885

(ii} Magjor customers

No Group customer contributes greater than 10% of external revenue.
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5 Revenue

2023 2022
($'000) ($'000)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
Saas fees’ 316,181 216,812
Annual licence fees' ;7,015 49,186
Consulting services' 73,183 72670
Revenus - Saa$ and continuing business 424,379 358,668
Initial licence fees? 2,81 8,531
Annual licence fees associated with initict licence fees?? 188 1035
_Revenue - Legacy licence business 2999 9566
Total revenue from contracts with customers 429,378 348,234
2023 2022
{$'000) ($'000)

OTHER INCOME

Foreign exchange gains / (losses) 21 34
Interest received 4,139 423
Reversol of contingent consideration (note 19) o 7.378 -
Other 447 ' 700
Total other income 11,985 1157
Total revenue 441363 369,31
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6 Expenses

2023 2022
($'000) {$000)
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX INCLUDES THE FOLLOWING SPECIFIC EXPENSES:
DEPRECIATION
Plant and eguipment 2,957 2,627
Total depreciotion 2,957 2,627
AMORTISATION
Other intangible assets amortisation 1933 1185
Contract acquisition costs amortisation 8,574 5839
Capitalised development amortisation - 34,055 23383
Arnortisation of right-of-use assets 5,983 5,076
Total amortisation 50,545 35,483
Total depreciation and amortisotion 53,502 38,410
Wages and salaries 98,840 94,048
wDefined contribution plan expense - 12,182 10,680
Payroll tax 9,562 8,588
Other employee benefits 1,079 45
Other 13,452 10,936_
Total employee costs' 135,115 124,661
Share based payments 3,907 3353
Employee Share Purchase Plan 1,920 -
Share-based payments 5,827 3,353
Profit ond loss maovement in expected credit loss 498 639
Foreign exchange {gain) / loss (108) (68)
(Gain} / loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (3} {6)
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7 Income tax expenses

(@) Income tax expense

2023 2022
{§'000} {$'000)
Current tax 26,549 19,374
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences l 672 517
Adjustments for tax expense of prior periods (243) (1.614)
Income tax expense 26,978 23477
DEFERRED INCOME TAX EXPENSE / {(REVENUE) INCLUDED IN INCOME TAX EXPENSE COMPRISES:
{Increase) / decrease in deferred tax assets (note 15) {4,955} 1,786)
Increase / {decrease) in deferred tax liabilities {note 15} 7,789 6,447
Adjustments for deferred taxes of pricr periods (2,162} 1056
Deferred tax expense 672 517
(b} Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable
2023 2022
($'000) {5000)
Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 129,854 12,320
Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30% {2022: 30%) 38,956 33,696
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods (24‘4) (1614}
Research und development tax conceassion [10,214) d (8,453)
Non-taxable income (1,584) :
Expenditure not allowable for income tax purposes 218 279
Current year tax losses not recognised 16 (35)
Tax rate variance in subsidiaries (858) (39¢)
Change in foreign tax rate 688 h -
income tax expense 246,978 23477
{c} Amounts recognised directly in equity
2023 2022
{$'000) {$'000)
Aggregate current and deferred tax arising in the reporting period and not recegnised in net profit or loss or other
comprehensive income but directly debited or credited to equity:
Net deferred tax debited / {credited) directly to equity [3,156) —
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8 Current assets ~ Cash and cash equivalents

2023 2022
($'c00) {$'000)
Cash and cash equivalents 198,265 175,865

The Group has a $2 million overdraft facility to assist with working capital requirements. The facility is unused at 30 September 2023

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates (ranging from 0.0% to 4.45%). Included in the Cash and cash
equivalents amount are term deposits invested for periods ranging from one day to three months (eaming interest from 4.47% to 5.67%). Given
the short-term nature of these term deposit accounts, the fair value of cash assets at 30 September are their carrying values.

Q@ Current assets —- Financial assets

2023 2022
($'000) ($'000)
Term deposits 25,000 -

Term deposits with original maturities over three months, but less than twelve months, are classified as current financial assets
{earning interest of 5.02%).

10 Current assets ~ Trade and other receivables

2023 2022

($'000) {$'000)

Trade and other receivables 62,764 59,6017
Allowance for expected credit losses (1,849) (3,172)-
Sundry receivables 1,501 521
62,416 57,266

Trade and other receivables are non-interest bearing and are on 14 to 30 day terms. No interest is charged on trade and other
receivables.

Included in the trade and other receivables balance are debtors with a carrying amount of $2.8m (2022: $4.2m) which are past due at
the reporting date for which the consolidated entity has not provided a specific allowance as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality. The Company believes that the amounts are still recoverable. The Company does not hold any collateral over these
balances, however is able to withdraw future support and software licence use rights if concerns arise relating to the recoverability of an
outstanding customer balance.

{a) Allowance for expected credit losses

Movements in the provision for expected credit losses are as follows:

2023 2022

{$'000) {$'000)

Opening balance - 1 October 3,172 4158

Increase/(decrease) in expected credit loss allowance 176 1387)

7Amount5 reversed/written off (1:4§;l (599)
Closing buiance - 30 September 1,84% 3172

In determining the recoverability of a trade and other receivable the Group considers any change in the credit quelity of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the
customer base being large and unrelated.
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Trade Expected Trade Expected

Debtors credit loss Debtors credit loss
2023 2023 2022 2022
Age ($'000) ($r000) {$000} ($'000)
0 - 30 days 58,751 {664) 47,234 {433)
31 - 60 days 1,687 {175} 4,742 (44)
61 - 90 days 360 {26) 1135 (262)
21+ doys 1,966 (984) 6806 (2,433}
62,764 {1,849) 59,917 (3472)

11  Contract assets
2023 2022
{$'000) ($'000)
Contract assets - current 22,134 21781
Contract assets -~ non-current 3,618 4,881
Allowance for expected credit losses {243) (244}
26,509 26421

The above contract asset balance represents revenue recognised for contracts with customers which has not been inveiced at the end
of the financial year, in accordance with customer contracts.

Expacted cradit loss for contract assets

Movements in the provision for impairment of contract assets are as follows:

2023 2022

{$'000) {$'000)

Opening balance - 1 October 241 209

Increase/{decrease) in expected credit loss allowance recognised in profit and loss during the year 2 32

Closing balance - 30 September 243 241
12 Current assets — Other current assets

2023 2022

{$'000) ($'000)

Refundable deposits 1127 600

1,127 600
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13 Non-current assets — Property, plant and equipment

Office furniture

% equipment Cther Total
{$000) (3'000) (5'000)
YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023
Opening net book amount 8,501 4 8,505
Additions 1752 18 7,770
Disposals (3 - {3
Depreciation charge (2,955) (2) (2,957)
Make good movement 7 - {17)
Exchange difference 17 - 17
Closing net book amount 13,295 20 13,315
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2023
Cost 50,975 4,789 55,764
AccUmulcted depreciation (37,680} {4,769) {42,449)
Net book amount 13,295 20 13,315
YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
Opening net book amount 7,323 54 7377
.;i\dditions 3,767 - 3,767
Disposals (13) - (13)
Depreciation charge {12.577) (50} (2,627)
Make good movemsnt (54) - (54)
Exchange difference 55 - 55
Closing net book amount 8,501 4 8,505
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
Cost 46,31 4770 51,081
Accumulated depreciation {37,810) 4,766) (42,576}
Net book amount 8,501 4 8,505
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14 Intangible assets

Intellectual Contract Software
property/ Customer acquisition under Software-
Goodwill source code contracts costs' development in use Total
{$'000) {$'000) {$'000) ($'000) {$'000) {$'000) {$'000}
YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023
Opening net book amount 46,580 6,792 6,080 20,378 33,947 92,962 206,739
Additions - 987 - 20,764 60,605 o “-“W 82,356
Transfers to software - in use - - - B - (51574) 51,574 -
Amortisation charge - (802) {1,131) (8,574) - 134,055) {44,562)
Derecognition - {218) - - - (5,022} (5,938}
Foreign Exchange difference 1,37 &2 487 235 149 32 23368
Closing nat book amount 47,951 6,123 5,436 32,803 43,427 105,491 240,931
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2023
Cost 54,704 15,949 7,626 56,347 43427 188,038 365,791
"Accumuloted amortisation - 16,233) (2,190) [23,544) - {77.525) (109,492)
Accumulated impairment (6,753} (3,593) - - - (5,022) {15,368)
Net book amount 47,951 6,123 5,436 32,803 43,127 105,491 %
YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
Opening net book amount 47,;94 5,900 7,180 14,677 30,295 70,713 176,459
Additions - 1547 - 11,208 50,060 - 63,515
Transfers to software - in use - -_ - - {46,368) 46,369 -
Amortisation charge - (549) {616) (5,839) - 6;383) (30,407) -
Darecognition - - - - - - -
Foreign Exchange difference {1,114) [86) (484} {368) - 3%} {737} (2,828)
Closing net book amount 46,580 6192 6.080 20,578 33,947 92,962
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
Cost 53,333 14,200 7139 35,348 33,947 136,432 281099
Accurmulated amortisation - (5,;31) {1,059} 14,870} - {43,470} 164,930)
Accurnulated impairment (6,753) (2677 - - - o - 9,430)
Net bock amount 46,580 5,792 6,080 20,378 33,947 92,962 206,739
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14 Intangible assets (continued)

{a) Review of intangible asset carrying values in relation to the contingent consideration

The events and circumstances leading to the reduction in the provision for contingent consideration {(note 19} have also been considered
in terms of whether there are indicators of impairment in the carrying value of the geodwill and other intangibles acquired.

An assessment of Goodwill and other intangible assets resulted in no impairment being recognised.

In addition, a review of the intangible assets acqguired has been performed in the period that has resulted in the following:

+  The carrying value of the acquired tradename has been derecognised in full ($0.9m, £0.5m) as the tradsename is no longer in use,
Certain acquired software assets have been derecognised ($5.0m, £2.7m).

+ A portion of the acquired customer relationship asset has had accelerated amortisation due to a change in the assessed useful life
{$0.9m, £0.5m)}.

A total of $5.9m (£3.2m} has been recognised as an expense within the Corporate costs line of the Consolidated Income Statement

representing the carrying value of assets derecognised.

An amcunt of $0.2m (£0.5m) has been recognised as an expense within the Depreciation and amortisation line of the Consolidated
Income Statement representing the accelerated amortisation of a portion of acquired customer relationships.

These expenses have been recognised within the external expenses line of the Corporate segment (note 2).

(6) Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill and indefinite life intangibles are allocated to the Group's Software and Consulting cash-generating units (CGUs) which are
also operating and reportable segments for impairment testing purposes.

A segment-level summary of the goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets allocation is presented below.

Software Consulting Corporate Total
{$'000) ($:000) ($'000) ($'000)

2023
Goodwill 38,343 9,608 - 47,951
7ndefinite life intangible assets 1,362 - &40 - 2,022
39,705 10,268 - 49,973

2022
Goodwill ‘ 36,972 9,608 - 44,580
indefinite life intangible assets 1,362 660 - 2,022
38,334 10,268 - 48,602

The recoverable amounts of each CGU has been determined based on cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
senior management covering a five-year period, with a value-in-use basis being used for all valuations.

The following table sets out the key assumptions for each cash-generating unit:

Software Consulting
2023
Pre-tax nominal discount rate applied to the cash flow projections 1.5% 11.6%
Terminal growth rate 3% 3%
2022
Pre-tax nominal discount rate applied to the cash flow projections 15% 15%
Terminal growth rate " 3% 3%
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15 Non-current assets — Deferred tax

[a) Deferred tax assets

2023 2022
[($'000) ($'000)
THE BALANCE COMPRISES TEMPORARY DIFFERENCES ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Employee benefits 5,434 5,097
Other provisions 2,042 2,450
Accrued expenses ) 981 1384
\ntonéible assets 477 fE
Copyright - softwara 3t 37
Lease liability (net) 2,315 3,064
Employee share trust 4,738 2,952
Deferred revenue 58,259 ) 50,621
Other 3,195 2924
77,472 69,361
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursucnt 1o set-off provisions (56,090) {48,301)
Net deferred tax assets 21,382 21,060
Net deferred tax assets expected to be recovered within 12 months 53,120 48,688
-;\let deferred tax assets expectad to be recovered after more than 12 months (31,738) {27.628)
21,382 21,060
2023 2022
($'000) (s'c00)
MOVEMENTS:
Cpening balance a1 October 69,361 47,643
-Credited / [charged) to the consolidated income statement 4,955 1718
Credited / (charged) to equity 3,156 -
Offset from deferred tax liakilities (56,090) (48,301
Closing balance at 30 September 21,382 21,060
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15 Non-current assets — Deferred tax {continued)

{b) Deferred tax liabilities

2023 2022
{$°000} {$'co0)
THE BALANCE COMPRISES TEMPORARY DIFFERENCES ATTRIBUTABLE TO
Contract assets (&4?2) (5461
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (1,491} [914]‘7
Prepayments (44} {25)
Capitalised development (42,685} {36,176)
Contract acquisition costs (7,458} (5725)
Total deferred tax liabilities (56,090) (48,301
Set-off of deferred tax licbilities pursuant to set-off provisions 56,090 48,301
Net deferred tax liabilities - -
2023 2022
($7000) {$'000)
MOVEMENTS
Opening belance at 1 October (48,301) {41,854}
Charged/(credited} to the Consolidated income statement {note 7) o -77,789) {6,447)
Offset to deferred tax assets 56,090 48,301
Closing balarnce at 30 September - -
16 Current liabilities — Trade and other payables
2023 2022
($'000) {$'000}
Trade paycbles 39,7143 40,331
Sundry creditors 9,340 8,143
Directors fees 174 65
49247 48,559

Trade payables and sundry creditors are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 day terms. No interest is payable on outstanding

balances. The Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe.
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17 Current liabilities — Deferred Revenue

2023 2022

{$'c00) ($'000)

Carrying amount at 1 October 184,008 169,322
Carrying amount at 30 September 214,495 184,008
Revenue recognised from the opening balance 182,41 148,003

Deferred Revenue represents payments received or receivable in advance from customers for SaaS Fees and Annual Licence Fees which
will be recognised as revenue in future periods, generally over the next 12 months. These amounts are classified as a contract liability
under AASB 15, These amounts do hot result in a future cash outflow.

18 Current liabilities — Provisions

2023 2022
{$'000) ($'000)
Maoke good provision - 76
Other provisions' 5,302 5,524
Annuatl Iec\;e : 7.743 7 8,032
Long service ieave 8,232 7270
24,277 20,202

19 Contingent consideration
2023 2022
($'000) {$'000)
Contingent consideration - current - 6,997
Contingent consideration- non-current - _
- 6997

Gn 15 September 2021, the Group acquired Scientia Resource Management Limited (Sciential, @ United Kingdem company servicing the
higher education sector. The total consideration at 30 September 2021 of £10.2m included an initial cash payment of $11.5m (£6.1m}
and contingent consideration payable of $7.6m (£4.1m). The contingent consideration represented amounts potentially payable on the
achievement of specified performance targets. The performance hurdles set were based on Net Profit Before Tax (NPBT)

and Annual Recurring Revenue (ARR) results as of 31 December 2022.

The assessment period for these perfermance hurdles has now concluded and the Group notes that the NPBT and ARR targets set out in
the acguisition agreement have not been met. Therefore, no contingent consideration payment in respect of the calendar year ending
31 December 2022 was required to be paid under the agreement.

Given the above, the Group released the provision held on the Balance Sheet at 30 September 2022, $7.4m (£4.1m) has been cradited
to the profit and loss within the Other Income line of the Consolidated income Statement. Movement of $0.4m since
30 September 2022 is due to foreign exchange movements.
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20 Non-current liabilities — Provisions

2023 2022

($'000) {$:000}

Long setvice leave 2,359 2,066
Make good provision 206 134
2,565 2,260

{d) Movements in provisions

Movements in each class of provision during the financial year, other than employee benefits, dre set out below:

The non-current provisions have been discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of

money and the risks specific to the liability.

Annual  Long service Make Legal Contingent
leave leave good provision consideration Other Total
{$'000) {$'000) ($'000) ($'000) ($'000} ($'000) {$'c00)
2023
Carrying amount at 1 Qctober 2022 8,032 2334 210 524 6,997 303 30,099
Additional provisicns recognised 3451 2,498 130 - - 42 514
Release of provision - - (134) - (7.378) - £7,512)
?E‘;Zﬂ;‘:ﬁfg r’r']';i t‘he year or Foreign (3.740) (4,243) - - 8 (264) (4.866)
Carrying amount ot 30 September 2023 7.743 10,5 206 5221 - 81 23,842
21 Leases
Property Equipment Total
Right-of-use assets ($'000) ($r000) {$'000}
YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023
Opening net book amount 23,01 39 23110
Additions 1912 167 ZC—J;’?_
Meodifications during the year 2,809 - 2,809
Disposals - - -
—Depreciation charge (5,932 (51 {5.983)
Exchange difference 426 - 626“
Ciosing net book umount 22,486 185 22,681
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2023
Cost 43,510 367 43876
Accumulated depreciction 121.024) {211} {21,235)
Net book amount 22,486 156 22,641
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Property Equipment Total
Lease liability {$'000} {$'000) ($'000)
YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2023
Cpening licbility 35,253 51 353,304
New leases entered into during the year ‘{879 167 2,046
Modifications during the year 2,803 - - 2,803
Payments {9,765) (55) (9,87275;
Interest expense 2,058 5 2,063
Exchange difference 760 - 760
Closing liobility’ 32,988 168 33,156
2023 2022
The following are amounts recognised in profit or loss under AASB 16: (000} {$'000)
Amartisation on right-of-use assets 5,983 5,076
Interest expense on lease liabilities - 2,063 1724
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 8,046 46,800
2023 2022
Cashtlow from leases {$'000) {$'000)
Total cash outflow as a lessee? 9,820 5376
9,820 5376
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21. Leases (continued)

Property Equipment Total
Leases Right-of-use assets ($'000) {$'000) ($'000}
YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
Opening net book amount 22,285 57 22442
Additions 4,558 40 4598
Modifications during the year 1262 - 1292
Disposals B - - -
Depreciation charge {5,018} {58] {5,074}
Exchange difference (146} - (146)
Closing net book amount 23,01 39 23,110
AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
Cost 38,164 199 38,363
kAccumuloted depreciation (1;093) (160} {15,253)
Neat book amount 23,01 39 23110
Property Equipment Total
Lease liability ($'000} {$'000) {$°000)
YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
Opening liability 33,325 64 35,58;
New leases entered inte during the year - 4,543 40 4583
Medifications during the year 1,286 - 1,280
Payments (5,322) (-54) (5,376}
Interast expense 1,723 1 1724
Exchange difference [296) - (296)
Closing liability 35,253 51 35,304
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22 Contributed Equity

(a) Share capital

2023 2022 2023 2022
Shares Shares {$'000) ($'000)
ORDINARY SHARES

Fully paid 324,674,728 323,345,816 &7,466 7 57,635

(b} Movements in otdinary share capital

Number

Date Details of shares {$'000)
1-Oct-22 Opening balance 323,365,816 57,635
Exercise of options 1,303,806 8,139
Share grant to employees 108,912 1,692
Movement i.n treasury shares {103,806) -
30-Sep-23 Closing balance 324,674,728 67,466
1-Oct-21 Cpening balonce 321,648,793 51,645
Exercis.;;; options 1392572 5,620
Share grant to employees 4,607 ) 70
Movement in treasury shares 39,844 -
30-Sep-22 Closing balance 323,365,816 57,635

Information relating to the TechnologyOrnie Employee Share Option Plan, including detgils of options issued, exercised and lapsed during
the financial year and options outstanding at the end of the financial year, is set out in note 32,

23 Reserves

(@) Other reserves

2023 2022

($000) {37000}

Share option reserve 48,965 41658
Foreign currency translation 2,262 {1,238)
Dividend reserve 48,377 41,455
99,604 81875

(b} MNature and purpose of other reserves

{i

Share option reserve

The reserve is used to record the value of equity benefits provided to employees, through share-based payment transactions
and associated tax benefits.

(i) Foreign currency translation

Exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign controlled entity are recognised in other comprehensive income as described
in note 1{c) and accumulated in a separate reserve within equity. The cumulative amount is reclassified to the consslidated income

statement when the net investment is disposed of.

(i)

The reserve records retained earnings set aside for the payment of future dividends.

Dividend reserve
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24 Dividends

(a) Ordinary shares

2023 2022
{$7000) ($'000])

Final dividend for the year ended 30 September 2022 of 10.82 Cents (2021: 10.09 Cents)
per fully poid share paid in December 2022 (2021 - December 2021}
&0% franked {2021 60%) based on tax paid at 30% 35,119 32,454
Special dividend for the year ended 30 September 2022 of 2 Cents {2021: nil)
per fully paid share poid in December 2022
60% franked [2021: nil) based on tax paid at 30% 6,491 -
Interim dividend for the year ended 30 September 2023 of 4.62 Cents (2022: 4.2 Cents)
per fully paid share paid in June 2023 (2022: June 2022}
60% franked {2022: 60%) based on tax paid ct 30% 14,995 13,673
Total dividends paid 54,605 46,127
{b) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period

2023 2022
Final {$'000) {$'000}

In cddition to the akove dividends, since year end the directors have recommended the payment
of a final dividend of 11.90 cents per fully paid ordinary share {2022: 10.82 cents) 60% franked 38,637 34,788
(2022: 60%) based on tax paid ot 30% (2022: 30%).

The directors have also recommended the payment of a special dividend of 3 cents per share, 9.740 §467
60% franked (2022: 60% franked). ! )

The cggregate amount of proposed dividend expected to be poid out of retained eamings, but not recognised as
a liabifity at year end

48,377 41455

(¢} Franked Dividends

The franked portions of the final dividends recommended after 30 September 2023 will be franked out of existing franking credits or out
of franking credits arising from the payment of income tax in the year ended 30 September 2023,

2023 2022

{$'000} {$000)

Franking account balance as ot the end of the financial year at 30% (2022: 30%) 402 1M
Franking credits that will arise frem the payments of income tax payakle as at tha end Of_ghr:et%;ﬁonciol year 6,712 1197
Franking credits available for subsequent financial yeors based on a tax rate of 30% 714 1368

The above amounts represent the balance of the franking account as at the end of the reporting period, adjusted for:

(o) Franking credits that will arise from the payment of the amount of the provision for income tax

{b) Franking debits that will arise frem the payment of dividends recognised as a liability at the reporting date

The impact on the franking account of the dividend recommended by the Directors since the end of the reporting date, but not
recognised as a liahility at the reporting date, will be a reduction in the franking account of $12,439,681 (2022: $10,659,985),
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25 Directors and key management personnel disclosures

2023 2022

(s) {$)

Shart-term employes bensfits 5,339,272 5,553,807
Deferred STI 305,731 422177
Share-based payments 1,229,551 1,263,638
6,874,554 7,239,622

Equity instrument disclosures relating to key management personnel

Details of options provided as remuneration to KMP and shares issued on the exercise of such, tegether with terms and cenditions can
be found in the remuneration report.

26 Remuneration of auditors

During the year, the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the consolidated entity:

{a) Ernst and Young (Australia)

2023 2022
(%) %
Fees to Emst and Young (Australia)
Fees for auditing the statutery financicl report of the parent covering the group and auditing the statutory financial
I 772,356 878,450
reports of any controlled entities
Fees for other assurance and agreed-upon-procedure services 223,300 214,987
Tees for other serviceys’ 948,484 197,244
Total remuneration of Ernst & Young Australia 1,944,140 1290478

27 Contingencies

TechnologyCne is a global business and from time to time in the ordinary course of business it receives enquiries from variocus regulators
and government bodies. TechnologyOne cooperates fully with cll enguiries and these enquiries do not require disclosurs in their initiat
state, however should the Group become aware that an enquiry is developing further or if any reguiator or government action is taken
against the group, appropriate disclosure is made in accordance with the relevant accounting standards.

As a global business, from time to time TechnelogyQOne is also subject to various claims and litigation from third parties during the
ordinary course of its business. The Directors of TechnologyOne have given consideration to such matters which are or may be subject
to claims or litigation at year end and, unless specific provisions have been made, are of the opinion that no materiat contingent liabllity
for such claims of litigation exists. The group had no material contingent assets or liabilities.

Guarantees

At 30 September 2023, the Group had $3,833,314 (2022: $3,745,483) in outstanding bank guarantees issued to TechnelogyOne. The total
available guarantee facility is $8,300,000 (2022: $8,300,000). These guarantees relate primarily to office leases.

The parent entity, Technology One Limited, continues to support its subsidiaries in their operations, by way of financial suppert.
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28 Related party transactions

{a) Ultimate controlling entity
The ultimate centrolling entity of the consolidated entity is Technology One Limited, a company incorporated in Australia.

{b) Subsidiary entities

interest in subsidiary entities are set out in note 29.

29 Controlled entities

The consclidated financial stotements incorporate the assets, liobilities and results of the following subsidiories in accordance with the
accounting policy described in nete 1{b):

Equity holding

Country of Class of 2023 2022
incorperation shares (%) (%)
TechnologyCne Corporgtion Sdn Bhd Malaysia Ordinary 100 100
TechnologyCne New Zealand Lid New Zealand Ordinary 100 100
TechnologyCne UK Limited England Crdinary 100 100
Avand Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100 100
Desktop Mapping Systems Pty Ltd (DMS) Australia - Ordinary 100 ) 100
-Dig‘\tal Mapping Soiutions NZ Limited (DMS) New Zealand Ordinary 100 100
Boldridge Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100 100
lcon Solution Unit Trust {ICON) Austrclic; Ordinary ”1-00 100
lcon Strategic Solutions Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100 100
Jeff Roorda and Associates Pty Ltd (JRA) Australic 6rdinary 100 ‘“ 100
Scientia Resource Management Limited (UK) England Qrdinary 100 1(;8_
Cyon Knowledge Computing Pty Ltd Australia Ordlinary ' 100 100
Scientia Limited England Qrdinary 100 100
Scientia P3M England Ordinary 100 100
Cyon Knowledge Computing SDN BHD Malaysic Ordlinary 100 100
Scientia GmbH Germany Ordlinary — 100 100
Cyon S.E Asia PTE Limtad Singapere Ordinary ‘77100 100
Procyon Research Ltd England Orddinary 100-__. 100

The parent entity is Technology One Limited, ¢ public company, limited by shares and is domiciled in Brisbane, Australia and whose
shares are traded on the Australian Securities Exchange. Al entities operate in the software industry in their geographical locations.
The Registered office is located at:

TechnologyOne HQ

Level 11,

540 Wickham Street,
Fertitude Valley, Qld, 4004
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30 Reconciliation of profit after income tax to net cash inflow from
operating activities

2023 2022

($000) ($:000)

Profit for the year 102,876 88,843
Depreciation and amortisation 53,502 38410
Non-cash employee benefits expense - share-based payments 5,827 3,353
Finance costs 502 1844
QOther non-cash {608) -
Net {gain) / ioss on sale of non-current assets N - (&)
Maovement in ECL through profit or loss 498 539
lincrease} / decrease in trade and other receivables and contract assets (5,237) {6,771
{increase) / decrease in prepayments and other current assets i (5,901 {6,568)
(increase) / decrease in tax assets and liobilities o 10,544 (3.466)
Increase / (decrease) in trade creditors 2,252 11,206
Tcre:ose / [decrease) in provisions ) 965 (1.067)
Increase / {decrease) in lease liabilities 7 {2,148} 1915
Increcse / (decrease) in deferrad revenue 30,487 14,686
Net cash inflow / {outflow) from operating activities 193,659 142,718
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31 Earnings per share

(a} Basic earnings per share

2023 2022

{cents) {cents}

Basic earnings per share (cents per share) 3 27.51

Diluted earnings per share [cents per share) 31.54 27.38

Profit used for calculating basic and diluted earnings per share ($'000) 102,876 88,843
{b) Weighted average number of shares used as denominator

2023 2022

(number) (number)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used as the dencminator in caleulating basic earmings per share 324,422,822 322,953,789

Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share:
Options 1,799,585 1526148
Weighted average number of ordinary and potential ordinary shares used us the denominator in calculating 326,222,406 324,479,937

diluted earnings per share

There are no potentially dilutive share instruments not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share.

There hove been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares that would significantly change the number of ordinary
shares or potential ordinary shares outstanding between the reporting date and the date of completion of these financial statements.

32 Share-based payments

{a) Employee option plan

Options are granted to employees at the discretion of the Beard based on the option plan approved by the Board.

TechnologyOne Issues options with up to 25% discount on the volume weighted average price for the 10 days prior to the grant date,
The period available between vesting date and expiry date of each option is five years. There are nc cash settlement alternatives.

Each option entitles the holder to purchase one share. For non-KMP employees, covered extensively the Remuneration Report,
options granted as part of remuneration are based on values determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Set out below are summaries of options outstanding’ under the plan:
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32 Share-based payments (continued)

A total of 1,231,010 options (2022: 2,8956,602) were issued to employees during the year.
The weighted average strike price at the date of exercise of options exercised during the year ended 30 September 2023 was $6.24 (2022: $4.25).

The weighted average remaining contractual life of share options outstanding at the end of the period was 6.6 years (2022: 7.0 years).

(b) Fair value of options granted

The fair value of the equity-settled options is measured at the reporting date taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the instruments were granted.

The fair value of options granted during the year was between $2.32 and $7.42 (2022: $2.13 and $3.65).

The model inputs for options granted during the year ended 30 September 2023 included:

iy  Dividend yield of 1.35% (2022:1.2%)

(i)  Expected volatility 33.89% (2022; 33.15%)

(il Risk-free interest rate 3.61% (2022: 1.24%)

(iv) Expected life of option 3.3 years (2022: 3.3 years)

(V] Option exercise price between $9.46 and $11.03 (2022: $12.31 and $9.23}
(vii  Weighted average share price at grant date was $12.64 (2022: $11.56)

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility of the Group's share price over a petiod similar to the fife of
the options is indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome.

{c) Executive performance rights

After further market consultation, the Group made the decision to return to issuing options or EPRs. Please refer to section 3 of the
remuneraticn report for further information.

{d) Expenses arising from share-based payment transactions
Total expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognised during the year as part of employee benefit expense were as follows:

2023 2022
Options issued under employee option plan: {$'000}) {$'000)
Vested or yet to vest 4,085 3,589
Forfeited a {178) (236}
Total share-based payment expense 3,907 3,353

{e} Employee share plan

During the year the Group launched an Employee Share Plan which provides 1 bonus share (fully paid ordinary share) for every 2 shares
purchased by an emgloyee.

An eligible employee under the plan is defined as a current permanent full-time or part-time Group employee who:

{a) has completed their probation period,
(o) is 18 years or older, and
(¢} reside in Australia, New Zealand, the United Kingdom or Malaysia.

Eligible employees can opt inte the plan and choose an amount to be deducted from their post-tox salary each month during the
contribution period (typically a 12-month period with the contribution capped at $25,000 AUD per person. This equates to a monthly
contribution cop of $2,083. This post-tax deduction is used to purchase TechnologyOne shares at market value at the end of each
contribution month.

Employees whe participate in the plan will become entitled to one matched share for every two shares they acguire under the plan
subject ta vesting conditions. The vesting condition attached to the bonus shares is that the employee must remain employed for one
month after the contricution period ends. A participant whe satisfies the vesting conditions will become entitled to the matched shares
on the last day of the vesting period.

The fair value of the matched share is estimated at the measurement date using Black-Scholes option pricing model and is recognised over
the petriod that the matched share vests, FY23 was the first year that employees have been able to enter into the employee share plan.
The contribution pericd for the first offering was 1 January 23 to 30 June 23, with the vesting date being 31 July 23 and the second offering is
1 July 23 to 30 June 2024, with the vesting date being 31 July 24.
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33 Parent entity financial information

{a) Summary financiol information

The individual financial statements for the parent entity show the following aggregate amounts:

2023 2022
{$'000) {$'000)
BALANCE SHEET
Current assets 313,297 227,751
T\lon-current assets 288,687 260,224
Total ogsets 501,984 487975
Current fiabilities 270,830 219,344
Non-current liabilities 19,254 14,207
Tota! liabilities 290,084 233,551
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Centributed eguity - 67,466 57,635
Dividend reserve 48,277 41455
Share opticn reserve 48,965 41,458
Retaining earnings 147,092 113,;%:;_
- 311,900 254,424
Profit or loss before tax for the year 119,914 103,583
Total comprehensive income 119,914 103,583

At 30 September 2023, the statement of financial position shows a current liability balance of $271m (30 September 2022: $219m)
which is largely attributable to the Deferred Revenue balance in current liabilities. As Deferred Revenue represents payments received
or receivable in advance from customers for SaaS Fees and Annual Licence Fees which will be recognised in future periods, and not
future cash outflow, this balance does not impact the Group's ability to meet its short-term obligations as and when they fall due.

(b} Guarantees entered into by the parent entity

At 30 September 2023, the Group had $3,833,314 (2022: $3,745,483) in outstanding bank performance guarantees. The total available
guarantee facility is $8,30C,000C (2022: $8,300,000).

The parent entity, Technology One Limited, provides ongoing financial support to its subsidiaries in their operations.

(c} Contingent liabilities of the parent entity

At 30 September 2023, the Parent had no contingent liabilities. At 30 September 2022, the Parent had a provision for contingent
consideration as disclosed in note 49,

34 Events after the reporting period

On 21 November 2023, the Directors of Technology One Limited deciared o final and speciai dividend on ordinary shares in respect of
the 2023 financial year. The total amount of the dividend is $48,376,534 and is 60% franked.

No other matter or circurnstance has occurred subsequent to period end that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the
operations of the Group, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Group or economic entity in subsequent financicl years
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Directors' Declaration

technology

Technology One Limited Directors' declaration 30 September 2023
In cccordance with a resclution of the Directors of Technology One Limited, | state thot:
In the opinion of the Birectors:

(c)  the financial stotements and notes set out on pages 57 to 98 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

il  giving o true and fair view of the consolidated entity's financial position as at 30 September 2023 and of its performance for
the year ended on that date; and

(il  complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations
Reguiations 2001,

(b) the financial statements and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in note 1{a); and

(¢} there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Group will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable;
cand

{d) this declaration has been made after receiving the declarations reguired to be made te the Directors in accordance with section
295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the reporting year ended 30 September 2023

On behalf of the Board of Directors

OMJ/

Pat O'Sullivan
Chair

Brisbane

21 November 2023
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Technology One Limited

Report on the audit of the financial report

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Technology One Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the Group), which comprises the consalidated statement of financial position as at

30 September 2023, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the directors’
declaraticn.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial repart of the Group is in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001, including:

a. Giving a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 September
2023 and of its consolidated financial performance for the year ended on that date; and

b. Cemplying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accerdance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s respensibilities for the audit of the financial
report section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accerdance with the auditer
independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including independence Standards) (the Code) that are retevant to our audit of the
financial repert in Australia. We have also fulfilled cur cther ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our prefessional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial report of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, but we do not provide
& separate opinion on these matters. For each matter beiow, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fuifilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibiiities for the audit of the
financial report section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accerdingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
materfal misstatement of the financial report. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinicn on the
accompanying financial report.

A rgrnper trmoof Erest & Youna Gizoal Limited
Liabalizy e tes by 3 schene aaproved under Professicnal Stardargs Leqisiehion
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Measurement and recognition of revenue and associated assets and liabilities

Why significant How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The Group applies AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts Qur audit procedures included the following:

with Customers to account for the following key » For a sample of customer contracts related to
revenue streams: Saas fees and Annual licence {ees, assessed
whether the revenue has been recorded
» 5aasl fees; appropriately, by:
» Annual licence fees; and »  Agreeing the amounts recorded te contract,
» Consulting services fnvoice and payment: and

»  Reperforming the recognition of revenue
based on the satisfaction of performance

The measurement and recognition of revenue and P
obligations.

associated assets and liabllities is considered to be a
key audit matter due to the significance of revenue to »  For a sample of consulting services contracts, we

the financial statements. assessed the Group’s controls associated with the
recording of consulting days delivered and the

Note 1(d) to the financial statements details the contracted fee rates applied to the days

Group's revenue streams and the associated detivered.

accounting poiicies. Revenue is gisclosed in Note 5,
associated assets in Note 10 and Note 11 and
associated liabilities in Note 17.

For deferred revenue (contract liabilit’es) and
contract assets, we tested a sample cf balances
at year end, including:

»  Agreeing the amounts recorded to contract,
invoice and payment, where appropriate,
and

»  Recalculating the amount of the contract
asset or contract liability balance at year
end.

» Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
included in the financial report,

Amemoer fien of Eongt & Yourg Glotal Limeted
Licamty imited by a scheme approved under Piofessicnai Stardards Legisiaticn
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Accounting for software development costs

As set out in Note 14 to the financial statements the
Group capitalises costs related to the development of
software products in accordance with AASB 138
intangible Assefs.

The accounting for software development costs is
considered to be a key audit matter due to:

» Judgement on whether the costs incurred
relate ta research costs, which are required
to be expensed, or development costs which
meet the definition of an intangible asset
that is reguired tor capitalisation;

» The assessment of the useful tife of the asset
and the timing of amortisation; and

» The assessment of future economic benefits

and indications of impairment of the
capitalised software development costs.

How out audit addressed the key audit matter

We performed the following procedures in respect of
the development costs capitalised:

»

Assessed the nature cf the Group’s projects and
the poticy of capitalisation of software
development costs for compliance with the
criteria in AASB 138 iIntangible Assets.

Held inquiries with R&D Directors and cther team
members, to understand the deveiopment
activilies undertaken.

For capitalised salaries, we performed the
following procedures:

»  For a sample of employees, we agreed the
salary rates used in the capitalisation
calculation te underlying payroll recerds
and employee contracts; and

»  For a sample of time capitalised, agreed
hours to the relevant timesheet and
confirmed the associated work relates te
activities eligible for capitalisation.

For a sample of cther directly attributable costs
capitalised, agreed the amount to invoice or
other supporting documentation and assessed
the Group's determination that the service or
goods received was atiributable to development
activities.

Considered the appropriateness of the
amortisation period including the commencement
date of amortisation for the capitalised software
development costs and the timing of
amortisation.

Assessed the Group's indicators of impairment of
capitalised software development costs.

Assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
included in the financial report.

A miemiber firm of E-ast & Young Glosal Lirlea

Liability mited by a schema soproved cnde- Profeswioral Standasds Ceqislation
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Information other than the financial report and auditor's report thereon

The directors are responsible for the ather information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Company’s 2023 Annual Report other than the financial report and our
auditor’s report thereon. We obtained the Directors’ Report, the Corporate Governance Statement and
the Voluntary Tax Transparency Report that is to be included in the Annual Report, prior to the date of
this auditor's report, and we expect to obtain the remaining sections of the Annual Repert after the
date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other infermation and we do not and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon, with the exception of the Remuneration Report
and our related assurance opinion.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other infermation
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
report or cur knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is @ material misstatement of this other information, we are
1eyuited Lo reporl Lhat fact. We have nothing te report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are respansible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic aiternative but to do so.

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance abcut whether the financial repert as a whole is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit cenducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the ecenomic
decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to these risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for cne resulting from
error, as fraud may involve coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Amember firm of Erast & Young Glonal womited
Lighihly hmited by a scheme approved uades Professional Standards Lesislalion
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» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

» Conclude on the approgpriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, basad on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
¢ease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial repert, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial report. We are
respansible for the direction, supervisicn and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinicn.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a staterment that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safequards applied.

From the matters communicated to the directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial report of the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matier
sheould not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

A mesnber firen of Errst & Young Global Limited
Liabilty hmited by 4 scheme aporavas under Profossionar Standards Legislation
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Report on the audit of the Remuneration Report

Opinion on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included within the Directors’ Report for the year ended
30 September 2023.

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Technology One Limited for the year ended 30 September
2023, complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Responsibilities

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the
Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Acf 2001. Cur
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Evmet l/w?/

Ernst & Young

LU 4

John Rokinson Jennifer Barker
Partner Partner

Sydney Brishane

21 Novembher 2023 21 November 2023
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Shareholder information

The shareholder information set cut below was applicable as at 27 Octeler 2023,

{a} Distribution of Equity Securities

Number Number of Fercentage of
of Shares Shareholders Shareholders
1-1,000 7,659 51.06%
1001 - 5,000 4,954 33.03%
5,601 - 10,000 1,214 “ﬁ;O‘??:
10,001 - 10C,000 111 1.A1%
100,001 and over &1 0.41%
There were 290 holders of less than a marketable parcel of ordinary shares (1.93% of shareholders).
{b) Equity Security Holders
Twenty largest quoted equity security holders
Number Percentage of
Name Heid Issued Shares
JL Mactaggart Holdings Pty Ltd! 24,902,500 7.67%
Masterbah Pty Ltd’ 14,372,500 4.43%
Selactor Funds Mgt {Sydney) 11,721,486 36;%_
State Street Giobal Advisors (Sydney} 1,152,446 3.44%
Vanguard Group (Philodelphia) “_—1-(;,402,343 3.20%
Hyperion Investor Mgt (Brisbane) 8,740,149 2.69%
Macquarie Asset Management (Sydney) 7,788,446 2.40%
Blackrack Investrmant Management {San Francisco) 7,246,455 2.23%
Argo Investments (Sydney) ;,758.000 2.08%
“First Sentier Investors (Sydney) 6,577,263 2.03:/;
Dimensional Fund Advisors (Sydney) 6,366,523 196%
Fundsmith {London) 6,339,946 195%
Alphinity Investment Mgt (Sydney) 6,082,85‘;_—. 1.87%
Acadian Asset Mgt [Boston} 6,069,950 1.87%
Vanguard Investments (Melbourne) 4,989,311 154%
Plato Investment Mgt (Sydney) ”4,835,8% 149%
uIB-I;:ckro(:k Investmeant Mgt {Australia) 4,577,703 141%
Walter Scott & Partners (Edinburgh) 4,426,290 136%
Wasatch Global Investors (Salt Lake City) 4,263,005 131%
Goldman Sachs Asset Mgt {New York) 4,256,061 131%
{(c} Unguoted Securities
Number Number of
Detuils on Issue Holders
TNEAI {Options) 5,278,909 @9
TNEAJ {Performance Rights) 159,503 - 50

(d} Voting Rights

All erdinary shares issued by Technology Cne Limited carry one vote per share without restriction. Options and Performance Rights

have no voting rights.
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Corporate directory -
Technology One Limited

Branch Locations

Board of Directors

Pat O'Sullivan
Edward Chung
John Mactaggart
Richard Anstey
Jane Andrews
Sharon Doyle
Cliff Rosenberg

Peter Ball

Company Secretary
Stephen Kennedy

Australian Business
Number (ABN)

84 010 487180

Registered Office

Technology One Limited

Level 11, TechnologyOne HGQ
540 Wickham Street

Fortitude Valtey QLD 40NA
Australia
www.TechnologyOneCorp.com
P. 1800 671 978

International: +&17 3167 7300

Brisbane
Sydney
Melbourne
Cankerra
Adelaide
Perth

Hobart
Auckland
Wellington
Kuala Lumpur

Londen

Auditor

Ernst & Young
Level 51, 111 Eagle Street
Brisbane QLD 4000

www.ey.com/au

Lawyer

McCullough Robertson
Level 11, 66 Eagle Street
Briskbane QLD 4000

www.mccullough.com.au

Share Registry

Link Market Services Limited
Locked Bag A14

Sydney NSW 1235

Phone: 02 8280 7454

Fax; 02 9287 0303

www.linkmarketservices.com.ou

Stock Exchange Listing

Australian Securities Exchange

(ASX: TNE)
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